
RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT 
 May 24, 2018  
 Agenda 

  9:00 a.m.  

 

 

9:00 a.m. Call to Order         Action 

  

Review and approve agenda       Action 

 

Requests to appear        Information 

 

  May 10, 2018 Minutes       Action 

 

  Financial Report dated May 23, 2018      Action 

   

  Investment Summary        Information 

 

 Black River Impoundment, RLWD Project No. 176    Information  

  Project Acceleration Grant  

 

Thief River Falls West Side FDR Project No. 178    Info./Action 

  Resolution 

  Letter of Support to Governor Dayton 

 

  Rob Sip, RRWMB         Information  

 

 RLWD Permit Violation       Info./Action 

 

 Petition – RLWD Ditch #7, RLWD Project 20    Info./Action 

 

 Permits: 18023, 18024, 18026, 18027, 18029, 18030, 18031  Action 

  

 Aluminum Trailer        Info./Action 

 

 Polk and Clearwater County Fair Booth     Info./Action 

 

 2017 Annual Report        Action 

 

 Administrators Update       Information 

                  

  Legal Counsel Update        Information 

 

  Managers’ updates        Information 

 

  Adjourn          Action 

 
 

UPCOMING MEETINGS  

 May 28, 2018  Memorial Day - Office Closed 

June 12, 2018  RRWMB Meeting, Hallock, 9:30 a.m. 

June 14, 2018  RLWD Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m. 

June 20-22, 2018 MAWD Summer Tour 

June 28, 2018  RLWD Board Meeting, 9:00 a.m.0 



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT 

Board of Manager’s Minutes 

May 10, 2018 

 

President, Dale M. Nelson, called the meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. at the Red Lake Watershed 

District Office, Thief River Falls, MN. 

 

Present were:  Managers Dale M. Nelson, Terry Sorenson, Brian Dwight, Gene Tiedemann, 

LeRoy Ose and Les Torgerson. Absent: Allan Page.  Staff Present: Myron Jesme and Tammy 

Audette and Legal Counsel Sparby. 

 

The Board reviewed the agenda.  A motion was made by Ose, seconded by Tiedemann, and 

passed by unanimous vote that the Board approve the agenda.  Motion carried. 

   

The Board reviewed the April 26, 2018 minutes.  Motion by Torgerson, seconded by Sorenson, 

to approve the April 26, 2018 Board meeting minutes as presented.  Motion carried.   

   

The Board reviewed the Financial Report dated May 9, 2018.   Motion by Sorenson, seconded by 

Tiedemann, to approve the Financial Report dated May 9, 2018 as presented.  Motion carried. 

 

Staff member Arlene Novak stated that she is waiting on quotes for the Blackduck Lake 

Structure Joint Powers Board, RLWD Project No. 50E.  Novak will report back to the Board 

once she receives the quotes.  

 

Emily Hutchins and Matthew Morin, MnDNR appeared before the Board to discuss needed 

structure repairs on the BR-6 Impoundment (Burnham Creek), RLWD Project No. 43A.  The 

BR-6 Impoundment was installed in the late 1980’s by a joint effort between the District, West 

Polk SWCD, MnDNR and NRCS (formerly known as SCS).  The impoundment is a two-pool 

system, with one flood control impoundment and a wildlife pool. The existing structure consists 

of an 18” culvert with a screw gate.  The culvert has water running around it, which has caused 

the culvert to heave, and cracks have appeared. The MnDNR did some patching last year as a 

temporary fix.  Staff member Loren Sanderson stated that the concrete pipe sections are not tied 

together, except for the end pieces.  The maintenance agreement states the District and MnDNR 

will coordinate on future maintenance.  Discussion was held on obtaining a cost estimate to 

repair the structure and the possibility of obtaining a MnDNR CPL Grant.   

 

Deb Walchuk, NRCS, and Keith Weston, Red River Retention Authority appeared before the 

Board to discuss the NRCS Regional Conservation Partnership Program (RCPP) process.   

Walchuk stated that the District, currently has two projects, Pine Lake, RLWD Project No. 26 

and Four-Legged Lake, RLWD Project No. 102A.  Of the 20 projects originally started, twelve 

of the projects are in Minnesota with the other seven in North Dakota, with one in North Dakota 

leaving the program.   Walchuck reviewed the status of each of the District’s two projects.  

Review points 1-3 have been concurred on the Pine Lake Project, with Walchuk currently 

reviewing Point 4 and 5.  Review Point 1 for the Four-Legged Lake Project is complete, with 

Point 2 under review.  Keith Weston stated that Walchuck can review Points 1-3, but an 

Engineer is required to provide a technical review for Points 4-6.   Weston discussed the 



Red Lake Watershed District 

May 10, 2018 

Page 2 of 5 
 

possibility of amending each of the grant agreements to allow for completion of the review 

points.  Weston stated that the end-product of each project would be the completion of an 

Environmental Assessment.   Walchuck stated that the remaining funds in the Four-Legged Lake 

Grant Agreement are $44,407.48; with $92,204.04 remaining in the Pine Lake Grant Agreement. 

 

Staff member Loren Sanderson and landowner Glen Hanson addressed the Board regarding a 

drainage complaint on the Darrell Dolalie property located in Section 29, Pine Lake Township, 

Clearwater County.  It appears that Mr. Dolalie has illegally blocked local drainage, which is 

causing water to back up onto Mr. Hanson’s property.  Pine Lake Township has a perpetual 

easement with Mr. Dolalie for a drainageway, with a right-of-way easement of 10’ from the 

center of the ditch for maintenance.  Discussion was held regarding the jurisdiction of Pine Lake 

Township.  The next Pine Lake Township meeting will take place May 15th.  It was the 

consensus of the Board, to authorize staff member Loren Sanderson to communicate with Pine 

Lake Township officials after their May 15th meeting.  

 

The Board reviewed the Plans and Specifications for the Little Pine Lake WMA -Outlet 

Structure Replacement Project, RLWD Project No. 26 in cooperation with the District and the 

MnDNR-Division of Fish and Wildlife.  Engineer Nate Dalager, HDR Engineering, Inc. stated 

that a new concrete water control structure will replace the old structure.  This project is in 

cooperation with the MnDNR in order to operate their facility differently to gain an additional 

270 ac.ft. of storage for flood control.  Motion by Tiedemann, seconded by Torgerson, to 

approve the Plans and Specifications for the Little Pine Lake WMA-Outlet Structure 

Replacement Project, RLWD Project No. 26, to advertise for bids and to set the Bid Opening 

date for June 14, 2018 at 9:30 a.m. at the District office.  Motion carried.  

 

The Board reviewed a letter submitted to the Minnesota Department of Transportation regarding 

the District’s commitment to move forward with the Thief River Falls Westside FDR Project, 

RLWD Project No. 178.  Administrator Jesme stated that Mayor Brian Holmer informed him 

that the Senate has earmarked $1.5 million for the project.  Discussion was held on the need for a 

landowner meeting/open house in the near future.  The District will need to start the process of 

amending the Red Lake River 1W1P for the inclusion of Water Management Districts. 

 

The Board reviewed the Lease Agreement with Nick Knott for rental of agricultural land within 

the Black River Impoundment, RLWD Project No. 176.  A copy of the Lease Agreement will be 

forwarded to the Pennington FSA.  Administrator Jesme stated that Nick Knott intends to crop 

share 50% of the leased lands with Jim Knott.  

 

The Board reviewed a letter submitted by Mary and Gerald Mozinski regarding the proposed 

establishment of Red Lake Watershed District Ditch 16, RLWD Project No. 177. 

 

Administrator Jesme stated that the District has been waiting for the U.S. Army Corps of 

Engineers (Corps) to certify the wetland banking credits on the Louisville/Parnell Project, 

RLWD Project No. 121.  The District was recently informed, that the Corps will give the District 

credit for 4.7195 acres as the site stands now, or the RLWD could develop vegetative 

performance standards to bring the vegetation up to meet the standards of a mitigation bank.  



Red Lake Watershed District 

May 10, 2018 

Page 3 of 5 
 

This may result in yielding additional credits if the performance standards are met.  However, 

this would add additional costs and the full mitigation bank plan would need to be prepared to 

include performance standards, vegetative management would have to be conducted, and 

monitoring would take around 5 years.  If all standards are met after the five-year monitoring 

process, the bank could receive an additional 1.6235 acres but if it fails, we may gain less or no 

additional acres.  Motion by Dwight, seconded by Sorenson, to accept the wetland banking 

credits proposal of 4.7195 acres from the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers for the 

Louisville/Parnell Project, RLWD Project No. 121.  Motion carried.   

 

Administration Jesme requested that the Board update the resolution granting Jesme the authority 

to sign certain grants agreements for District projects.  A motion was made by Tiedemann, 

seconded by Dwight, and passed by unanimous vote that the Board adopt the following 

resolution: 

 

 WHEREAS, the Red Lake Watershed District applies for grants from the MN 

Department of Natural Resources, MN Pollution Control Agency, MN Board of Water and Soil 

Resources, Federal Emergency Management Agency, United States Fish & Wildlife Service and 

the State of Minnesota, and  

 

 WHEREAS, authorized signatures are needed on these documents;  

 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Red Lake Watershed District 

designate the Administrator of the Red Lake Watershed District as the authorized agent to sign 

these grant applications approved by the Board for funding from the entities previously noted.  

 

Motion by Tiedemann, seconded by Torgerson, to approve the Grant Agreement in the amount 

of $677,551 with the Minnesota Board of Water and Soil Resources for the Red Lake River 

1W1P, RLWD Project No. 149.  Motion carried.  

 

The Board reviewed a Release of Claims and Indemnification and Hold Harmless Agreement for 

gopher trapping on District projects.  Motion by Torgerson, seconded by Ose, to approve the 

Release of Claims and Indemnification and Hold Harmless Agreement for Harvey Klipping, on 

RLWD Ditch 3-RLWD Project No. 7 and RLWD Ditch 10-RLWD Project No. 161.  Motion 

carried. 

 

Knife River Materials has inquired if the District would allow them to pump water from a 

borrow pit located in the Euclid East Impoundment, RLWD Project No. 60C.  Knife River 

Materials estimates they would take between 5,000-20,000 gallons of water per day for 

approximately 20 days, with the use of pumps and hoses.   Staff member Loren Sanderson stated 

that he would recommend that they do NOT park on the embankment levy.  Motion by 

Tiedemann, seconded by Ose, to allow Knife River Materials to pump water from the Euclid 

East Impoundment, RLWD Project No. 60C, with the following conditions: Knife River 

Materials will pay a one-time fee of $500.00 to the District for administration costs; all pumping 

shall be completed from approved staging areas provided by District staff; any damages that 

occur to the levee or driveway during pumping, be repaired and approved by District staff prior 



Red Lake Watershed District 

May 10, 2018 

Page 4 of 5 
 

to leaving job site, these repairs may include but not be limited to turf establishment or gravel 

driveway repair; the District reserves the right to terminate this agreement prior to Knife River 

Materials completing their project, with the District being held harmless; it is agreed the Knife 

River Materials will pump approximately 5,000-2000 GPM per day between May 29, 2018-July 

15, 2018, and if additional time is required permission must be granted by the District; and Knife 

River Materials will comply with all township, county and state rules and ordinances.  Motion 

carried.   

 

The Board reviewed the permits for approval.  Motion by Ose, seconded by Tiedemann, to 

approve the following permits with conditions as stated: No. 18001, Todd and Debra Stanley, 

Espelie Township, Marshall Township; No. 18017, Roger Hagen, Grand Forks Township, Polk 

County; No. 18020, James Harder, Smiley Township, Pennington County; No. 18021, Dean 

Phillip, Rocksbury Township, Pennington County; and No. 18022, David Rodahl, Agder 

Township, Pennington County.  Motion carried.  

 

Administrators Update:  

• Jesme and Manager Ose will attend the RRWMB meeting in Fertile on May 15, 2018. 

• The Thief River 1W1P Citizen Advisory Committee and Policy Committee met on May 

9, 2018 in Grygla, to review Section 3 and introduce Section 4 of the plan. 

• The following impoundments are releasing water: Euclid East, Brandt and Parnell/JD60.  

Landowner Gary Pulkrabek called the office and commended the District staff on the 

operation of the impoundments during the spring runoff event. 

• Included in the packet was information on facility tours by Enbridge Pipeline.  Jesme and 

staff member Sanderson participated in a conference call with Enbridge staff concerning 

permitting for the Line 3 Replacement. 

• Jesme is scheduled to tour the Grand Marais Creek Outlet Restoration Project with Brad 

Dokken from the Grand Forks Herald on May 17th.  

• Jesme reviewed information from MAWD regarding various committees. 

 

Legal Counsel Sparby stated that he sent an email to the Attorney General’s Office regarding the 

appointment of a member of the Red Lake Tribal Council on the District Board.  The Attorney 

General’s office informed Sparby that they will have someone within their office contact him.   

 

Legal Counsel Sparby discussed the conference call he had with Attorney John Kolb regarding 

the abandonment of Judicial Ditch 5, RLWD Project No. 102.   

 

Manager Torgerson discussed the meeting he attended with the Clearwater County Board of 

Commissioners May 8th.  He brought an update to them informing them that the RLWD Board 

had voted to remove the Petition for Abandonment of Judicial Ditch No 5 from the table and 

schedule a hearing on the Petition June 14th at the RLWD office.  He also discussed possible 

new directions the petition for abandonment might create for the Four Legged Lakes if 

passed.  A discussion ensued about the original resolution that the county board rescinded and 

about the concerns in that resolution that have not been addressed and different claims about 

what the average height of the lakes have been over the past fifty years.  The county board did 



Red Lake Watershed District 

May 10, 2018 

Page 5 of 5 
 

not give any specific message for Torgerson to bring back to the RLWD Board, but three 

specific comments were made by individual commissioners.  Commissioner Nelson stated he 

supported the view of the landowners affected by the proposed FDR Project.  Commissioner 

Syverson stated that aircraft sometimes draw water from the Four Legged Lakes to fight 

wildfires in the area; and Commissioner Stenseng stated that if the FDR Project No 102 does not 

work out, the RLWD might consider an alternate site in the Solberg Lake area terminating at CR 

223. 

 

Manager Dwight stated that he spoke to Gary Kiesow regarding subsurface tiling, informing him 

that the District’s intent is to look at erosion control.   

 

Manager Ose discussed the RRMWB meeting to be held on May 15, 2018 in Fertile, 

encouraging other Managers to attend the meeting.  

 

Motion by Ose, seconded by Torgerson, to adjourn the meeting.  Motion carried.  

 

 

              

       LeRoy Ose, Secretary 
 

 

 



Ck# Check Issued to: Description Amount
online EFTPS Withholding for FICA, Medicare, and Federal taxes 3,650.85$           

online MN Department of Revenue Withholding taxes 675.49                

online Public Employees Retirement Assn. PERA 2,513.68             

online EFTPS Withholding for FICA and Medicare taxes 210.66                

online MN Department of Revenue Withholding taxes 50.00                  

online EFTPS Withholding for FICA and Medicare taxes 103.28                

36803 Elroy Aune Mileage for Thief River 1W1P meeting 28.34                  

36804 Beltrami SWCD Thief River 1W1P planning 60.70                  

36805 Breiland Landscaping Cedar mulch for landscaping around building 300.00                

36806 Crookston Times Printing Ad for Black River land for rent 159.25                

36807 Delta Dental Dental insurance premium 437.45                

36808 Farmers Union Oil Company Gas for vehicles 218.23                

36809 Garden Valley Technologies Telephone maintenance 112.75                

36810 HDR, Inc. *Engineering fees 68,945.58           

36811 Steve Holte Mileage for Thief River 1W1P meeting 8.72                    

36812 Houston Engineering, Inc. Engineering fees for Black River Impoundment 30,000.00           

36813 Curtis Hunt Mileage for Thief River 1W1P meeting 107.91                

36814 Dale M. Nelson Mileage 43.60                  

36815 Northwest Beverage, Inc. H20 for office 29.50                  

36816 Northwestern Mutual Financial Deferred Compensation 623.36                

36817 Pennington Square, Inc. Gas for vehicle and batteries 26.02                  

36818 Pennington SWCD Thief River 1W1P planning 27.26                  

36819 Pribula Engineering, PLLC Engineering fees for Improv.to Polk Co. Dt. 39, Ditch 17 15,700.00           

36820 Darrold Rodahl Mileage for Thief River 1W1P meeting 27.25                  

36821 Terracon Geotechnical services, per contract, Black River Impoundment 9,328.00             

36822 Cenex Credit Card Gas for vehicles 539.82                

36823 Marshall Co. Environmental Services Thief River 1W1P planning 158.58                

36824 Marshall Co. SWCD Thief River 1W1P planning 115.66                

online Aflac Staff paid insurances 698.61                

online Cardmember Services **See below for explanation 655.28                

online Further (was SelectAccount) Medical FSA 20.00                  

Payroll
Check #11409 -11417 11,708.43           

Total Checks 147,284.26$       

*HDR, Inc.
Proj. 26-Site F-Pine Lake 2,326.50

Proj. 26-Pine Lake 7,846.94

Proj.102A Four Legged Lake FDR 44,035.14

Proj. 178 TRF Westside FDR 14,737.00

TOTAL 68,945.58

** Cardmember Services
AT&T-cell phone expense 269.03

China King(TRF)-meals-TRF Westsid 25.40

Black Cat-Board meeting meals 130.33

HACH Co.-WQ calibration solution 230.52

TOTAL 655.28

RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
Financial Report for May 23, 2018



Northern State Bank
Balance as of May 9, 2018 697,623.64$       

Total Checks Written (147,284.26)        

Receipt #016543  Garden Valley Telephone-Capital Credit(4) 112.83                

Balance as of May 23, 2018 550,452.21$       

Border State Bank
Balance as of March 31, 2018 18,153.13$         

Receipt #016538  Monthly interest 3.73                    

Balance as of April 30, 2018 18,156.86$         

American Federal Bank-Fosston
Balance as of April 30, 2018 700,272.88$       

Receipt #016542  Gordon/Mary Jo Myklebust-Water Management District fee 894.74                

Balance as of May 23, 2018 701,167.62$       



Name of Institution Purchase Int. Rate Mat. Date *Maturity Amount

10010 Northern State Bank (checking) 550,452.21$      0.40% 550,452.21$            

10020 Border State Bank (Investor savings) 18,156.86$        0.25% 18,156.86$              

    Thief River Falls

10030 American Federal Bank 701,167.62$      1.20% 701,167.62$            

Fosston

10470 CDARS-Bank of America, Charotte, NC 200,000.00$      1.25% 7/5/2018 200,000.00$            

monthly interest payment via ACH

10240 CDARS-TriState Capital Bank-Pittsburgh 200,000.00$      1.40% 8/9/2018 200,000.00$            

  12 mos. CD, int. paid monthly

10550 Citizens State Bank, Roseau 200,000.00$      1.05% 9/3/2018 200,525.00$            

#59137 18 mos.(int.pd semi-annually)

10760 Ultima Bank Minnesota-Fosston (1076) 200,000.00$      1.00% 10/2/2018 201,002.74$            

#16623   12 month CD semi-annual int.

10770 CDARS-Bank of China, NY 243,500.00$      1.50% 10/18/2018 243,500.00$            

Interest direct deposited monthly

10770 CDARS-Great Plains National Bank 113,000.00$      1.50% 10/18/2018 113,000.00$            

Interest direct deposited monthly

10770 CDARS-MainStreet Bank 243,500.00$      1.50% 10/18/2018 243,500.00$            

Interest direct deposited monthly

10830 Edward Jones-Morgan Stanley 200,000.00$      1.50% 10/30/2018 203,000.00$            

Interest paid at maturity

10650 First National Bank-Bemidji-12 mos. CD 200,000.00$      1.05% 12/12/2018 201,582.19$            

#94230  Qtrly interest-direct deposit(1065)

10660 CDARS-Amarillo National Bank, TX 146,500.00$      1.50% 1/17/2019 146,500.00$            

  12 mos. CD, int. paid monthly

10660 CDARS-Conway, AR 53,500.00$        1.50% 1/17/2019 53,500.00$              

  12 mos. CD, int. paid monthly

3,269,776.69$   3,275,886.62$         

Red Lake Watershed District
as of May 23, 2018



     

Office Location   11 5Th Avenue East, Suite B  Ada, MN 56510 
www.rrwmb.org  218-474-1084 

 

Red River Watershed Management Board 

Meeting Highlights – May 15, 2018 

 
 

1. Financial Activity – The RRWMB approved moving forward with an inquiry for services 
related to options and tools for investment of RRWMB funds. The inquiry will soon be sent out 
to financial institutions within the jurisdictional boundaries of the RRWMB.  
 

2. Treasurer – RRWMB Manager Jason Braaten of the Roseau River Watershed District was 
officially appointed as the Treasurer by President John Finney. Jason will be working closely 
with RRWMB staff over the coming months on monthly financial information, internal controls, 
general accounting processes, and reporting activities. 
 

3. Insurance Coverage – The RRWMB Managers accepted a quote from the League of 
Minnesota Cities for various insurance coverages such as general liability, directors/officers 
liability, workers comp, bond, etc. The new annual premium will be approximately 60 percent 
less per year that the current annual premium of $11,000. 

 
4. Records Retention – The need for a schedule of records retention was discussed as the 

RRWMB has 42 years of records in storage. As a result, RRWMB staff will be drafting a 
schedule to ensure that records are properly archived, stored, managed, and disposed. Staff 
will also research software and equipment needs to store records electronically. 
 

5. Internal Controls – Credit cards were recently obtained by the RRWMB for use by staff. New 
policy has been developed for credit card usage and additional internal controls are currently 
being developed.  
 

6. Outreach – The Executive Director reported that several meetings have been scheduled with 
member watershed districts for the coming weeks. Additionally, staff have been in contact with 
the Association of Minnesota Counties and the Minnesota Association of Townships to 
participate in upcoming summer district meetings in the Red River Basin. Several factsheets 
and outreach materials have also been developed and will be distributed at upcoming events. 
RRWMB staff are also working on several changes to the RRWMB website at: www.rrwmb.org 
 

7. Reports – Several reports were shared in the meeting packet including member watershed 
districts, the Red River Retention Authority, the International Water Institute, and other 
partners. 
 

8. Upcoming Meetings – A monthly meeting calendar of upcoming watershed district meetings 
and related events has been implemented and the May and June 2018 calendars were 
included in the meeting packet.  
 

• Next RRWMB Board Meeting – June 19, 2018 in Hallock at the Two Rivers Watershed 
District. 

 

http://www.rrwmb.org/


Public lnformation Update
May 2018

RRWMB tission:
The principal objective of
the RRWMB is to assist
memberWatershed
Districts with the
implementation of water
related projects and
programs. The purpose of
these projects and
programs is the reduction
of local and mainstem
flood damages and to
enhance environmental
q¡d water resource
management.

Gontact lnformation:
11 5n Ave East Suite B
Ada, MN 56510
Phone: 21 8-784-9500
Fax: 21 8-784-9502

Robert L. Sip
Executive Director
r a, .,t_ .i i .¡ ,, ,ìj, i ì

218-474-'t084 (Cell)

NikkiSwenson
Executive Assistant
rrì,1¡.,f , :rt.:t:, i.l:..i)'11"1' . "i

218-784-9500 (Office)

The Red River Watershed Management
Board (RRWMB) is working on a strategic
plan that will include outreach to local units of
government. The RRWMB will be increasing
outreach and communication effotls in the
coming months and has implemented the
following to increase transparency and to
share more information about its activities:

Public Office Location - The RRWMB has
established its principal place of business in

Ada, Minnesota. The office will be co-located
with the Wild Rice Watershed District in mid
to late 20'18. RRWMB staff are temporarily
located in the Arvig Building in Ada. This is
the first time the RRWMB has had a public
office and staff are looking fonrvard to your
visit to Ada.

Annual Conference - The joint event
between the Red River Basin Flood Damage
Reduction Work Group and the RRWMB
provides a venue for knowledge sharing,
technical transfer of information, relationship
building, and the opportunity for the RRWMB
to share information about current activities

Communication Plan - ln 2016, the
RRWMB finalized a communication plan that
will guide its outreach and communication
efforts. This document also builds off of data
and information that was recived during a

Public lnformation Campaign from 2008. ln
addition, the University of Minnesota
Completed a Social Science Assessment of
Conservation in the Red River Basin in2014.
This study provides a wealth of information
that the RRWMB can draw from social
attitudes related to water and natural
resources management and flooding. The
study can be found here:

Conservation. pdf

Social Media

-+ Facebook Page:

-+ Website:
WlUryJIWmb qrg

--) Constant Contact

-+ Email Distribution Lists:
lf you would like to be included in future
RRWMB emails, let us know by
contacting RRWMB staff.

Monthly Meeting Highlights - The RRWMB
has started using highlights to better inform
local watershed district managers, county
commissioners, and other local units of
government about decisions that are made at
monthly RRWMB meetings. MonthlY
highlights were started in February 2018.

Annual Conference Highlights -

Communication was recently sent out
discussing highlights from the recent joint
annual conference with the Flood Damage
Reduction Work Group. The RRWMB will
continue to provide information about the
results of the conference in coming years.

Public lnformation Committee (PlC) - The
RRWMB has a standing PIC that reviews and
provides recommendations to the Board of
Managers on communication issues,
activities, and intiatives. The PIC will meet
more frequently in 2018 to continue working
on outreach and communication.

We look fo¡ward to working with you and
your organizations in 2018 and heyond.



Red River Watershed Management Board

Current Goals

l. COORDINATION - lt is a supporting
objective of the RRWMB to Provide
leadership for the coordination of projects
and programs related to water management.
The RRWMB accepts this leadership role as
a matter of policy.

2. FINANGIAL SUPPORT - lt is a supporting
objective of the RRWMB to participate in

funding initiatives which include projects and
related programs that encourage
consideration of mainstem benefits and
enhance environmental and water resources.
It is current policy of the RRWMB to
participate in funding of member watershed
district initiated projects meeting RRWMB
established criteria for financial support and
other initiatives beneficial to the basin.

3. BASIN PLANNING - The RRWMB assists
private, local, state, interstate, federal, or
international water management and natural
resource activities within the Red River
Basin, through coordination and assistance
with implementation. The RRWMB assists
planning efforts at all levels within the Red
River Basin and is committed to supporting
basin planning efforts as a matter of Board
policy.

4. WATER QUANTITY - The RRWMB
supports projects and programs for the
alleviation of damage by floodwater, with an
additional emphasis on maintaining low flow
conditions for the aquatic environment and
providing water supply for public use. lt is
Board policy to support flood control and
water conservation Projects.

5. WATER QUALITY - lt is a supporting
objective of the RRWMB to Provide
assistance for studies, programs, initiatives
and projects to improve water quality. lt is a
policy of the RRWMB to support ongoing
studies, initiatives, and programs for the
improvement of water quality.

6. EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION - lt is a
supporting objective of the RRWMB to
provide assistance for studies, programs, and
initiatives, including cooperative efforts with
other agencies, to reduce soil erosion and
sedimentation. lt is a policy of the RRWMB to
support studies, programs, and initiatives
conducted by federal, state and local
agencies for the reduction of soil erosion.

7. EDUGATION - lt is a supporting objective
of the RRWMB to support development of
informational and educational programs
related to water and natural resource
management concerns. lt is a policy of the
RRWMB to utilize education as a tool to
inform the public on issues related to the
conservation of water, soil, and the
preservation and enhancement of natural
resources in the basin.

8. RESEARCH - lt is a supporting objective of
the RRWMB to provide assistance for basic
and applied research related to natural
resources management within the Red River
Basin. lt is a policy of the RRWMB to commit
to an administrative and financial role in

supporting and sponsoring relevant research
related to water and natural resource
management within the Red River Basin.

9. PUBLIC INFORMATION - lt is a supporting
objective of the RRWMB to inform the public
of water management activities and concerns.
It is a policy of the RRWMB to promote a

strong public information program to educate
the public regarding its operations and
initiatives.

10. GONFLICT RESOLUTION - The RRWMB
shall work toward the resolution of conflicts
regarding water management. The RRWMB
is committed to the resolution of conflicts and
methods to reduce conflict include, but are not
limited to negotiation, mediation, arbitration,
or legal action. lt is a policy of the RRWMB to
commit itself to the speedy and efficient
resolution of any conflicts related to managing
the basin's water resources.MAY 2018



SAND FTILL RIVER
\\¡A'iÌ]R:; I.iED D IS]'F ICl'

PO Box 584
Fertile, IVIN 56540

May 14,2078

RRWMB

L1 5th Ave E

Ada, MN 56510

Dear RRWMB Board Managers:

At their May 1, 2018 board meeting, the Sand Hill River Watershed District Board of Managers
appointed Roger Hanson aSthe Delegate and Dan velsedahl as the Alternate.

Ph: 2 I 8-945-3204

Fax: 2 t 8-945-32 I 3

shrwd@gvtel.corn

urrv. sandhillwatershed.org

s

rt risti
Chairman



May L4,2OL8

John Finney

Humboldt, MN

Dear Mr. Finney:

This letter will serve as my formal resignation from the RRWMB as a board alternate and Treasurer

effective immediately.

As you well know, in February I met with RRWMB staff twice with multiple correspondence via e-mail to

help develop an accurate and transparent Treasure/s Report. ln March and April, multiple e-mails

mirroring the same requests as February, were transm¡tted back and forth. lt is now May, and the most

recentTreasure/s report lwas provided stilldoes not have manyof the revisions I have asked for

months ago, and now new discrepancies have come to light.

The role of the Treasurer, according to the Treasurer's Manual, states sole responsibility for Cash,

Records, lnvestments, Payroll, and Audit. Staff has consistently not followed the treasure/s manual and

has created an environment not conducive to teamwork. I am unable to stand behind, with confidence,

and sign off on the numbers and reports that are presented. As treasurer, an insubordinate staff who

deliberately attempts defying even the smallest of requests (such as sort¡ng a column in ascending order

so the board can easily see that payroll, for example, is paid on the 15th and end of the month) does not

provide an opportunity for the Treasurer to fulfill his/her obligations. More alarming, the January

statement of receipts and disbursements reflects salary and employee reimbursement expense

contradictory to the disbursements register. I will not sign my name to a report I question, with cash

flows coded incorrectly. I have attached a detailed list of the issues identified in my review of the most

recent reports, noting that last week staff was made aware of the discrepancies I found, and still

presented this report with the discrepancies.

I write this with hopes that board managers will see the severity of the situation and demand a flawless

Treasure/s report that accounts for taxpayer dollars correctly. The prior RRWMB staff was able to
produce a flawless and balanced report with the existing system. There is no excuse to have inaccurate

reporting for five months, and I will not be a part of it. ln addition, my attorney has advised me to not

sign anything I was not sure was correct, and he recommended that I resign immediately from the

RRWMB to avoid potential liability due to incomplete and inaccurate financial reporting.

I request that this resignation letter be placed in the permanent record of the May minutes to ensure

every manager has been provided the information regarding the challenges they face. For the good of

the RRWMB, which has been a passion of mine since 1976, I encourage every board manager to exercise

their due diligence by carefully reviewing the finances of the RRWMB.

l, Daniel Wilkens, hereby resign from my position as treasurer of the Red River Watershed Management

Board, effective

ò 5-//-tF
DanielWilkens Date



1. ln April, I had asked that the Liabilities for payroll be journal entried into the correct month, or change the date to

reflect that month (on the January report). lf that is done then there will be no discrepancy and ending totals will

match. lf you choose journal entries, you can add the journal entries to the Disbursements report. Without them in

the current month, it is very difficult to double check the payroll wages and manager wages that are listed on the

Statement of Receipts and Disbursements.

2. When the Statement of Receipts and Disbursements and the Disbursements report are compared, the

Administrator/Executive Payroll and Manager Expenses isn't match¡ng the Disbursements report and the two

contradict each other. For example the January report is as follows:

Manager Expenses

Total net Manager Checks 52293.74 according to Disbursements Register

Manager Expenses according to Statement of Receipts and Disbursements:

Lodging - 5t77.25
Meals - S22t
Mileage -5L575.54
TotalS1973.79

Admin/Executive Payroll reported on Disbursements register is 52770.78 for Rob and 5t474.77 for Nikki. Wages on

Statement of Receipts ¡s S10,598.79 total.

Disburcement's Register:
o Still not sorted accordíng to DATE. I asked for this in writing twice in February and once last month and once in May.

Receipts Register:
o Deposits are still out of order. May have to renumber the deposits or make date adjustments. I asked for this in

writing twice in February and once last month and once in May.

Comments on the January Report for Disbursements:

t. For January, according to the Statement of Receipts and Disbursements, it shows the benefits are

52,300.91. According to the Disbursements Register there is only MN Peip for 51479.36, Delta Dental and auto

Owners. The three of those do not total 52,300.91.
2. For the January Report, ls the .17 and.78 reimbursed somewhere?

3. ln February of 2OLS,lasked that you move Webpage-Member Dist. Cost share somewhere otherthan to Public

Relations. This is not a Public Relations Expense.

Februarv. March and April Reports:

Payroll's are not reported in the month that they happen. For example, the month end February payroll, is reported on

the March report. To keep a consistent and transparent outlook, and to provide a readable report that all managers can

follow, payroll should be reported in the month of which ¡t happens. All managers will be able to see the payroll

amounts and double check any suspicious amounts.

Reimbursed expenses have never been EFT and have always been approved at the meeting for reimbursement.

According to the auditor, the Treasurer has always reviewed every voucher and signed off on them before payment.

When did this policy change?

ln April 2018, Payroll is report twice, and it appears that each pay period is lumped into one transaction and viewers

cannot view the amount for each employee, making it hard to double check numbers and double check suspicious

payrollamounts.



flrd t¡lt t¡ttrrhrd 0iitrirt

., i J'r'¡

Permit #'18-028 Status Report: Tabled

Applicant lnformation

Name Organization Address Email Phone Numbe(s)

20499 350th Avenue SE

Trail, MN 56684

tel:

mobile: 2'18-686-2143

lax:
Wayne Vettleson

General Information

(1) The proposed poect is a:

Tiling

(2) Legal Description

(3) County: Red Lake Township: Equality Range: 40 Sectlon: 26 114: NE1l4

(4) Describe in detail the work to be performed lnstall pattern t¡le w¡th gravity outlet.

(5) Why is th¡s work necessary? Explain water related issue/problem be¡ng solved lmproved drainage.

Status

DateStatus Notes

May 24,2018Tabled area

May 1 5, 201 8Received None

Conditions

P.A. #18028 - "table" - Wayne Vettleson - benefitted area petition/discussion

NOTE: This permit does not relieve the applicant of any requirements for other permits which may be necessary from Township, County, State, or Federal Government

Agencies



RED LAKE WATERSFMD DISTRICT
SUBSURFACE TILE DRAINAGE APPLICATION

ou", F5,! Ç .2af Ç
ÒApplicant Name

Contact Address 2ô4qq A¡t ç- 56 Phone: AIR- bAL. -2-Ì 41,
-Ì-RA{L, tVN íèbA+

Is applicant landowner?@ (N) (if no, list landowner & ph. #):

Name of designer:

Name of installer: t( t( Phone:

Legal description and site map and/or GPS coordinates to accurate scale showing location of all tiles, surface water inlets, outlet(s),
P.' ¿-<. ðo. - Eot:-r.rtTv lu¿ Plift stations, pumps, and flow control devices; (att.maps)

Land area to be tiled (acres) '3f
r-lí-N , R-+o-,J
Ãe r/q Sse t¿o

Type of tiling (circle) Random Tile

Type of outlet (circle) Lift StationfPump

Date proposed plan submitted: Month 5 ¡t- Èua:ì
st^pþ58Þ -Tö

Pump/lift station outlet flow capacity (G

. All subsurface tile drainage systems must protect from erosion and include RLWD approved erosion control measures.

. All subsurface tile outlets including lift station pumps, must be located out of a legal drainage system and govemmental

roadway right of way unless approved by District and must be visibly marked.

o It is recommended that after harvest, tile outlet controls, including lift station pumps, be opened or tumed on to

femove water from the system unless downstream culverts are freezing.

o Obtaining a permit from the RLWD Managers does not relieve the applicant from the responsibility of obtaining any

other additional authorization or permits required by law. (Ex: NRCS, SV/CD, Township, County, State, etc.)

. Upon completion of the project, "As Built" plans must be provided to the District'

o Consideration must be made for turning off pumps for short period of times during the summer so maintenance can

be performed on public, legal and private drainage ways, such as road ditches or private natural field drains.

EXHIBITS. The following exhibits may be requested to accompany the permit application. Two copies, (standard paper

size of 8.5 inches by 1l inches), which include:

Signature of Owner or Authorized

RLWD staff use:
Date received:

5/ts-/ttr
Permit #
Drain tile outlets to

it

tl

EGE[Î1IE

By

¡/iAl I 5 2ülû

ffif

Legal System (Benefited Area):
Culvert size upstream and downstream of tile outlet:



tl
I]
b(

RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT

I RECOMMEND approval of this permit.

I DO NOT RECOMMEND the approval of this permit.

I request this application be put on the agenda for the next Board
meetins. ôr\ twÂy e4 | â,org

Comments:

SignatureDate f- Aa- Ie
Title Ert r_t _



Glem & Mægaret
Delude

320

160

Delmer Neslmd
317.5

33

LawreM Robert Ralph
127.2

Pcnnington County

Gayle
& Rene
Hofstad

343.3

Cayle & Rene
Solvik

371 Þ3 Hofstad
Pe
oI

f
o

!
I

: David Johmon

0

100 63.7 dlô
N

James
Gu¡valson

etal
289.9

Margaret
Johnson

'137

456.3

!*
I

¡

a
Ë
sþ
s
èô

Eq¡\
I
qt

d
o

!
I

_Emil I <l
Kvasaser I ì

â L{-O
" ¡9

378.7 i Ë
!\
I

I
¡

!
!
!
!,¡

i
I''Í

360

lr4ilan
Rustan
477.7

,31 '

lÌ- Oren
Syrtveit
.253.6 $

È
J(,

23
l0 &

z
o
F

O¡lean

123

&

410.8
Stoneouse

Brenda Scherer
etal

133.1

Elaine
Green
"t60.7

Magnell
1.60

Gregory
&

g Deborah

160

Donald
& Alma
Stenberg

160

Orlean &
Virginia

Stoneouse
160.7

Vigstol

Bjune

Allen
Basness

Daniel &
Charissa
Larson

+

-

!
!
!
I

!
!
I

Craig &
Michelle

Gregory
&

Deborah
Whalen

Horst
Lesser Tr

Stenberg
Bros Inc

754.7

Roger
Smith

Lee

160

40

Cindy

I

\{ayne
&

Debra

240

Alice
Bluemke

Einar
Kvasager

136 160

Wìralerr
140

Barbæa
72.8

Einar Kvasager

Joel 240

160
155

etal
76Vernon

Holla¡d

275.7

t
I
¡

I

!
!
I
i
I

Modeen

Larry
Fossrm

"160

320
! ¡e.nis
! Li^d"t\o

È\
e)

$\
q)

q

Kvasager

320&

f
Robert240

Sohen

Lorella
Heue¡

Barbara
r Sohen

94

CRANE

WMA252.7

Edrvard
& Sha¡on
Larson

L60

C Gene Hegge
tol a

¡ Robert&
Pamela O'Neill

216.4

5 Leslie
& Cheryl

, O'Neill

Anthony
& Sandra

Copa

80 Mickeì

200 |

Fms
720

Leslie &
Cheryl
O'Neill !

=l

320 314.6

:4

24

480
&

m_Dt\clr
40

t

40

Robe¡t
Sherman

190

Gary Rahier

556.5

-'ïr'
Stenberg Bros

lnc
236.4

240

Steven
Svendsen

320i rruan I
i Groven !

I

'+.-'-"-'-.-,r
160z

E
(u

J
o

E
OJÉ

318 5

David
Norberg

etal

310

-.t-,-

Randall
Potthoff :

146
128.5

I

Lora Johnson

Boland

Chtuüe

^1482

720

601.6

111.1

Elmer
& Laura
Rmtan

160

Errol
Rustafì

280

160

Gunvalson

1.56.2Joh.
Gu¡valson

etal

James
Lmieì

160

James
& Sue

Ken¡eth
& Cathy

,

130

)

-30-r
Ordeân
Rystad

54.2

I

137

3¡l

Roy Jacobson

Joel
Stolaas

160

477

1L3.9

+

Tr

470.6
o.1J,¿

I
I
I
¡
È

lna
Burmm

160

Gary Ralph
1.57.5

Gerald
Hou'ard

155

Eina¡RichædDeImer
Nesland

Dale & Arlen
Brekke
310.9

James
Lmiel

160

Fra¡k Warzecha
306.7

David
& B¡enda
Odegaard

160

Charlie
Johnson

lr
160

Arlar Fore

I

I aro

loitch ',t 11t
¡

Diame
Gagner

etal

160

Darryl
& Luverne
Mathson

160

Leslie & Alice
Hofstad

320 !-

Vernon
Holland

742.5

Dale &
Shelly
Brekke

Jmes
&

Lori
Rei¡bold

315

1.56.2

Charles
& Juanita
Stuhaug

etal
157 4

Edward & Shæon
Larcon 147.6 Burmm 80

&

Loretta
Flatgard

eta.l

757

Gary
Lmdeen

80

i Burman
i tzo

240

Ina
720

Bruce Moen 158.7 Mak&Ma
Gebhard

320

Cecil
Eva¡s

760

Alice
Bluemke

etal
757.4

InaBu¡mm
3L9James

Bendickson
q

318.4

DNR
320CIMP

Fiber Farm
LLC

State
of MN

760

Clyde & Laura
lr{oen 158.7

757

1.57.4

David
& Lori

Svendsen

79,5
Re¡nbôl¿

35

q
'tr
d

¿
u

o
É,

G

Oóoa

40
O
æ

80

Jetkey
Anderson

200
Steven & Don¡ra

Linder
----1575-- --

Kim & Rhondå

s

Linda lç{ickelson
etal

7 sss.s

Richard
lvlarinucci 80

Charlie &
Lora Johnson

80
Iona Berry

40
80

80

151

782

Gaylen
So¡dahl

etal

&
Nancy

80

L60

Doris Reeær
71

137

6

&

156.1
Beth M¡la

Larmn
s 697

CD IM

80

Robert
&

Pamela
O'Neill

781

Kelly
Knutson

1.52.4

etal
160

She¡man
Groven

LìÌlian
G¡oven

153 4

300

254

310

150.9

320 Polk County 3{0

320



Vettleson

Generated with the GeoMOOSE Printing Utilities

5- i5- i8-
'/ø



FIELtrI
trlRAtNAEE, INE

t0' 

-

t2"
6" t2"DW-

Wayne Vettleson
Equality 26NE 40

r5"DW



Petition for Use of Red Lake Watershed Ditch 7, Project 20

Drainage System as an Outlet

To: Red Lake Watershed District
1.000 Pennington Avenue South
Thief River Falls, MN 56701

WHEREAS, Wayne and Debra Vettleson are seeking authority to use the established

drainage system of Red Lake Watershed District Ditch 7, Project number 20, drainage system as

an outlet and requests that the Red Lake Watershed District grant its express authority to allow

the usage of the same.

Wayne and Debra Vettleson request that the drainage authority, in consultation with the

appropriate County Auditor, set a time and loòation for a hearing on this petition and to give

notice by mail and publication of said hearing.

The propertysoughtto be included isthe NE 1/4 NE %, Section 26, EqualityTownship, Red Lake

County.

€/tlrr
Vettleson

ra eso

il Eß EfiTÍH
IúAY 2 T 2Û18

By vtf



F¡ELE
tr'RAINAG¡E, INE

4"
5"-

10"
l2' 

-

6"- l2'. D!ñi 

-
t5"DW

Wayne Vettleson
Equality 26NE 40



MINNESOTA STATUTES 20 1 7 103F,.741

IO3F,.74I INCLUDING PROPERTY NOT ASSESSED BENEFITS.

Subdivision l. Consideration by engineer. In a proceeding to repair a drainage system, if the engineer

determines or is made aware that properfy that was not assessed for benefits for construction of the drainage

system has been drained into the drainage system or has otherwise benefited from the drainage system, the

engineer shall submit a map with the repair report. The map must show all public and private main ditches

and drains that drain into the drainage system, all property affected or otherwise benefited by the drainage

system, and the names of the property owners to the extent practicable. The properly owners must be notified
of the hearing on the repair report at least ten days before the hearing. The auditor must give notice of the

time and location of the hearing by mail.

Subd. 2. Appointment of viewers. At the hearing on the repair report, if the drainage authority determines

that property not assessed for benefits for the construction of the drainage system has been benefited by the

drainage system, the drainage authority shall appoint viewers as provided by section 103E.305 before the

repair contract is awarded. The viewers shall determine the benefits to all properly and entities benefited by

the original construction of the drainage system and not assessed for benefits arising from its construction.

The viewers shall make a viewers' repair report to the drainage authority as provided by section 103E.315.

When the viewers' repair report is filed, the auditor shall give notice of a hearing as required by section

1038.325 and the drainage authority has jurisdiction of each tract ofpropefty described in the viewers'report

as provided in section 103E.331.

Subd. 3. Viewers' repair report hearing. At the hearing on the viewers' repair report, the drainage

authority shall hear all interested parties and determine the benefits to property and entities benefited by the

original construction of the drainage system and not assessed for benefits.

Subd. 4. Appeal of assessment order. A person may appeal from the order determining the assessments

as provided by section 103E.09 I .

Subd. 5. Property benefited in hearing order included in future proceedings. For the repair of the

drainage system under this section that included the propefi bhat was not assessed and in all future

proceedings relating to repairing, cleaning, improving, or altering the drainage system, the properly benefited

in the viewers' report hearing is part of the property benefited by the drainage system and must be assessed,

in the same manner provided for the assessment of the property originally assessed for and included in the

drainage system.

History: 1990 c 391 art 5 s 99

copyright @ 2017 by the Revisor of Stahrtes, State of Minnesota. All Rights Reserved.



ltd t¡lt t¡ttdtd 0irtilil
''

,¡lH,
Permit # 18-023 Status Report: Approved

Applicant lnformation

Name Organization Address Email Phone Number(s)

646 Pineview Court
Roseville, MN 55113

tel:651 -247-3054

mobile:

fax:

Julie Efta

General lnformation

(1) The proposed project is a:

Culvert lnstallation / Removal / Modif¡cation

(2) Legal Description

(3) County: Pennington Township: Kratka Range: 41 Section: 30 1/4: NW1/4

(4) Descr¡beindeta¡l theworktobeperformed Replaceexisting36"x24'culvertwitha36"x40'culvert.WorkiswithinCountyRoadSSrightofway

(5) Why is this work necessary? Explain water related issue/problem be¡ng solved Exist¡ng culvert has deter¡orated. Extend culvert length.

Status

DateStatus Notes

Approved None May 24,2O18

Received None May 8, 2018

Conditions

P.A. #18023 Red Lake Watershed District (RLWD) approval to replace and lengthen a 36 in. diameter field entrance culvert as

per approval of Pennington County specs/conditions; proposed work is in County Road #58 Right-of-Way. Contact persons at

Pennington Co. Hwy. Dept. are Engineer Mike Flaagen or Assistant Mike Stennes at 218-683-7O17. Fo¡ proposed work on lands

not owned by applicant, he/she must obtain, in writing, permission from the affected landowners to perform proposed work.

Applicant is responsible for utility locates by calling Gopher 1. (1-800-252-1166)

NOTE: This permit does not relieve the appl¡cant of any requirements for other permits which may be necessary from Township, County, State, or Federal Government

Agencies



Permit # 18-024 Status Report: Approved

Applicant lnformation

Name Organization Address Email Phone Number(s)

Kenneth Skaaren
367 lndigo Lane NW

Bemidji, MN 56601

tel:218 '114-5692
mobile: 218-766-2588

fax:

General lnformation

(1) The proposed project is a:

Culvert lnstallation / Removal / Modification

(2) Legal Descript¡on

(3) County: Pennington Townsh¡p: River Falls Range: 43 Section: I 114.SE114

(4)Descr¡beindetail theworktobeperformed lnstall lS"culvertforfieldcross¡ng.WorkiswithinCountyRoadS0rightofway

(5) Why is this work necessary? Explain water related issue/problem be¡ng solved No current access.

Status

Status Notes Date

Approved None Nlay 24,2018

Rece¡ved None May'10,2018

Conditions

P.A. #18024 Red Lake Watershed District (RLWD) approval to install an entrance with an1 8 in. diameter culvert, as per approval

of Pennington County specs/conditions; proposed work is in County Road #80 Right-of-Way. Contact persons at Pennington
Co. Hwy. Dept. are Engineer Mike Flaagen or Assistant Mike Stennes at 218-683-7017. Fo¡ proposed work on lands not owned

by applicant, For he/she must obtain, in writing, permission from the affected landowners to perform proposed work. Applicant
is responsible for utility locates by calling Gopher 1. (1-800-252-1166)

NOTE: This permit does not relieve the applicant of any requirements for other permits which may be necessary from Township, County, State, or Federal Government

Agencies



Permit # 18-026 Status Report: Approved

Applicant Information

Name Organization Address Email Phone Number(s)

Terry Lubitz
12997 210th Street NE

Thief River Falls, MN 56701

tel:

mob¡le: 218-688-0010

fax:

General lnformation

(1) The proposed poect is a:

Gulvert lnstallat¡on / Removal / Modification

(2) Legal Description

(3) County: Marshall Township: Excel Range: 43 Section: 5 1/4: SW1/4

(4)Describeindetail theworktobeperformed lnstall culvert/fieldcrossing.Workiswithintownsh¡proadrightofway

(5) Why is this work necessary? Explain water related issue/problem being solved No current access.

Status

Status Notes Date

Approved None May 24,2018

Received None May l'l , 2018

Conditions

P.A. #18026 Red Lake Watershed District (RLWD) approval to install a field entrance with a 42 in. diameter culvert as per

approval of Excel Township specs/conditions; proposed work is within township road Right-of Way. For proposed work on
lands not owned by applicant, he/she must obtain, in writing, permission from the affected landowners to perform proposed

work. Applicant is responsible for utility locates by calling Gopher 1. (1-800-252-1f 66)

NOTE: This permit does not relieve the applicânt of any requirements for other perm¡ts which may be necessary from Townsh¡p, County, State, or Federal Government

Agencies



Permit # 18-027 Status Report: Approved

Applicant lnformation

Name Organization Address Email Phone Number(s)

Don Berry
PO Box241
Oklee, MN 56742

tel:

mob¡le: 21 8-280-0930

fax:

General lnformation

(1) The proposed project is a:

Surface Dra¡nage (New D¡tch or lmprovement)
Culvert lnstallation / Removal / Modification

(2) Legal Description

(3) County: Polk Township: Chester Range: 40 Sect¡on: 6 114 SWll4

(4) Describe in detail the work to be performed Clean south s¡de of County Road 33. lnstall culvert for new crossing.

(5) Why is this work ndcessary? Explain water related issue/problem being solved D¡tch is not working property, water not mowing. Culvert for new access to
building site.

Status

Status Notes Date

Approved None May 24,2018

Rece¡ved None May 14,2018

Conditions

P.A.#18027 Red Lake Watershed District (RLWD) approval to clean south road ditch, install a field entrance with an 18 in. dia.

culvert, and also to salvage and relay existing 18 in. dia. driveway culvert, or, if necessary, replace with same size at ditch
grade; as per approval of Polk Co. Hwy. Dept. specs/conditions; proposed work within Polk Co. Road #33 Right-of Way.

Contact persons at Polk Co. Hwy. Dept. is Engineer Rich Sanders at218-281-3952 ext. 8253 or Asst. Engineer Darrin Carlstrom
at ext. 8254. For proposed work on lands not owned by applicant, he/she must obtain, in writing, permission from the
landowner(s) priorto the start of any work. Applicant is responsible for utility locates by calling Gopher 1. (1-800-252-1 166)

NOTE: This perm¡t does not relieve the applicant of any requ¡rements for other perm¡ts which may be necessary from Townsh¡p, County, State, or Federal Government
Agencies



Permit # 18-029 Status Report: Approved

Applicant lnformation

Name Organization Address Email Phone Number(s)

Wayne Vettleson
20499 350th Avenue SE

Trail, MN 56684

tel:

mobile: 218-686-2143

fax:

General lnformation

(1) The proposed project ¡s a:

Tiling

(2) Legal Description

(3) County: Red Lake Township: Equality Range: 40 Section: 35 114. NE'l14

(4) Describe in detail the work to be performed lnstall pattern tile w¡th either lift station or gravity outlet. This may be an addition to an existing system or new
separate system,

(5) Why is this work necessary? Expla¡n water related issue/problem being solved lmprove dra¡nage.

Status

Status Notes Date

Approved None May 24,2018

Received None May 15,2018

Gonditions

P.A. #18029 The Red Lake Watershed District (RLWD) approves the pattern tile project with gravity flow to an existing tile
project. This project is an addition to, an existing pattern tile project and lift station. lf any work is within public ditch and/or
road Right-of-Way, applicant shall contact the appropriate ditch / road authority for their approval, and must meet their
specs/conditions. For proposed work on lands not owned by applicant, he/she must obtain, in writing, permission from the
affected landowners to perform proposed work. Applicant is responsible for utility locates by calling Gopher 1.

(1 -800-252-1 1 66)

NOTEi This permit does not relleve the applicant of any requirements for other permits which may be necessary from Township, County, State, or Federal Government
Agencies



Permit # 18-030 Status Report: Approved

Applicant lnformation

Name Organization Address Email Phone Number(s)

Wayne Vettleson
20499 350th Avenue SE

Trail, MN 56684

tel:

mobile: 218-686-2'143

fax:

General lnformation

(l) The proposed project ¡s a:

Tiling

(2) Legal Description

(3) Countyi Red Lake Township: Equality Range: 40 Section: 23 114. SWll4

(4) Describe in detail the work to be performed lnstall pattern tile with a gravity outlet.

(5) Why is this work necessary? Expla¡n water related issue/problem being solved lmproved drainage.

Status

Status Notes Date

Approved None May 24,2018

Received None May 15,2018

Conditions

P.A. #18030 The Red Lake Watershed District (RLWD) approves the pattern tile project with a 'gravity' outlet. lf any work is
within a public road and/or public ditch Right-of-Way, applicant shall contact the appropriate road/ditch authority for their
approval, and must meet their specs/conditions. Directly downstream of the tile and/or pump station(s) outlets, applicant shall
ensure that adequate grade and drainage is provided. I Note: Please be aware of, and review the 'bullet points' on the bottom
half of the application. For proposed work on lands not owned by applicant, he/she must obtain, in writing, permission from
the affected landowners to perform proposed work. Applicant is responsible for utility locates by calling Gopher 1.

(1 -800-252-1 I 66)

NOTE: This permit does not relieve the applicant of any requirements for other permits which may be necessary from Townsh¡p, County, State, or Federal Government
Agencies



o¡I'',¿

t¡ttdrd 0rÍrtltdt¡lt
Permit # 18-031 Status Report: Approved

Applicant lnformation

Email Phone Number(s)Organization AddressName

tel:

mob¡le: 218-686-2143

fax:

20499 350th Avenue SE

Trail, MN 56684
Wayne vettleson

General lnformation

(1 ) The proposed project is a:

Culvert lnstallation / Removal / Modification

(2) Legal Descr¡ption

(3) County: Red Lake Townsh¡p: Equality Range: 40 Section: 26 1/4: Nwl/4 NEí/4

(4)Descr¡beindetail theworktobeperformed lnstall lS"diameterculvert(centerlineCountyRoad#135).

(5) Why is this work necessary? Expla¡n water related issue/problem being solved

Status

DateStatus Notes

May 24,2018Approved None

May 15, 2018Received None

Conditions

p.A. #18031 Red Lake Watershed District (RLWD) approval to install an 18 in. diameter centerline culvert in Red Lake Co. Rd.

#135 Right-of-Way. The existing drainage area to this culvert shall remain 'as-is' and no additional acreage shall be added by

means of ditching and / or tiling. Contact person at Red Lake Co. Hwy. Dept. is Randy Konickson at 218-253-2697. For

proposed work on lands not owned by applicant, he/she must obtain, in writing, permission from the landowner(s) prior to the

start of any work. Applicant is responsible for utility locates by calling Gopher 1. (1-800-252-1166)

NOTE: This permit does not relieve the applicant of any requirements for other permits which may be necessary from Township, County, State, or Federâl Government

Agencies



HUBERT'S OUTDOOR POWER
17269 US Hwv. 59 N.E.

THIEF RIVER FALLS, MN 56701
(218) 6Er-59Er

S¡onature âbove conslilutes acceptance of above work as beìng
aaisiactory and lhal equ¡pment häs beên lefl in good condil¡on

4

Guaranty on other side

INVOICE THANK YOü

( /.Ft* .Y",1 /, /*' r
,l/

20838
DAÍE OF ORIGINAL INSTALLATIONPHONECITY

oI7 MODELMAKE

I d4î_ ìo
ESTIMATE

! mnnauw
! corrnrcr

DATE PROMISEDSERIAL NO

ôò+b7l' 5,oe R.,4r. lC,tÑ
NATURE OF SEBVICE

IrL 4o n /,r-t /f!oY
(*," / t / n/. n;?1,t- 1,-L

L pÐh,trt þ
t!è4t"1lrS,^e R¡tt V,¡

frl

%z? oÞTOTAL MATERIALS

TECHNICAL SERVICE TIME: N SHOP f] HOH¡E

n prcx up oR DELIvER n seRvtcr oALL cHARGE

TECHNICIAN

TAX
DATE COMPLETED

TOTALCASH ON COMPLETION
oF woRK 

-S IGNATUBE
TOTAL MATERIALS

DESCRIPTIONOTY, PRICE AMOUNT



Ealattþ 4øt" & 7eaolen Sdlßa
Authorized Dealer

' 15469 U.S. Hwy. 59 NE

South on Highway 59 ' P.O. Box 337

Thief River Falls, MN 56701

21 8-681 -7093 . 888-681 -7093

Scott Hickerson

Stock #: Date Salesperson:

Buyer Name: (Last)

Co-Buyer Name: (Last) (First)

Address: City State:- County Zp

Bus. Phone: Buyer DOB Co-Buyer DOB:Home Phone:

Buyer D L #: Co-Buyer D.L.

Buyers lnsurance Co : Policy

PLEASE ENTER lVlY ORDER FOR: New Cl Used O Demo Cl Lienholder Address

COLOR INTERIOR& BODY TRANSMISSION7 ""'t5¿itr
MILEAGE DELIVÊRED

ON OR ABOUT
TAB EXP DATE STATELlc I

Å4s< q,
CASH PRICE OF VEHICLE

FREIGHT

DEALER INSTALLED OPTIONS

')tE

I

I
f)eBODY

STYLE
I\¡AKE

_ìÀ\2LICENSE
STATE DATE

TRADE-IN DATA

ADDRESS

YEAR

VIN #

LIEN HOLDEFS
NAI\¡E

LICENSE
PLATE #

NIILEAGE
NOW

TRANSMISSION

2qs= æTOTAL

-eLESS TRADE IN ALLOWANCE FOR USED VEHICLE (-)

,*A* ã -ÞTAXABLE AMOUNT

;T Ø SALES - EXCISE TAXLICENSE PLATE

POLLUTION CONTROL SYSTEM DISCLOSURE
(TRADE-IN VEHICLE)

ln order to comply w¡th lvlinnesota Statutes, Section 325E 0951, no petson may

lransfer a motor vehicle without prov¡ding a wr¡tten d¡sclosure to the transferee
(buye0 certilying the condition ol the pollution control system

Transferor (seller) hereby cert¡fies, to the best of his/her knowledge, that the
pollut¡on control system on th¡s veh¡cle being kaded in, includ¡ng the restricted
gasoline pipe, has not been removed, altered, or rendered lnoperalive

Seller's S¡gnature ú)

ñ FEDERAL LUXUFY TAXTITLE & THANSFEF FEES /u nrQ Ø
ADMINISTRTIVE FEE
DOCUMENT

LIEN RECOBDING FEE

SERVICE CONTFACT

/,7 aTOTAL LICENSE & FEES

r22c</L,SUBTOTAL

DEALER'S DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTY

The Dealer expressly d¡sclaims all warranlies, e¡ther express or ¡mpl¡ed on lhe vehi-

cle sold, except any warranties oftered and expla¡ned in Paragraphs l0 through 13

on the back of th¡s contract Buyer acknowledges receiving this information before

the sale and further acknowledges having read and understood the prov¡s¡ons on

the back of this conlract

Buyer's S¡gnature (Ð

LESS CASH SUBÀ/IITTED WITH ORDER (-)

(+)PLUS BALANCE OWING TO LIENHOLDER ON TRADE IN

TOTAL AMOUNT DUE ON DELIVERY

DEALER'S POLLUTION CONTBOL SYSTEM DISCLOSURE
(VEHICLE BEING SOLD)

Transferor (Deale.) hereby cerlifies, to the best of h¡s/her knowledge, that the pollu-

tion conlrol system on th¡s vehicle being sold, includ¡ng the restricled gasol¡ne pipe,

has not been removed, altered, or rendered ¡noperat¡ve

The front and back of this CONTFACT comprise the ent¡re CONTFACT âffect¡ng

You certify that no credit has been extended by dealer for the purchase of this motor
this purchase, The DEALEF will not recognize any verbal agreement, or any olher agreement or understanding of any nalure

VeHtCLg yo, certify that you arê 18 years of age or older, ând acknowledge receiv¡ng a copy of this contracl

IMPORTANT THIS MAY BE A BINDING CONTRACT
AND YOU MAY LOSE ANY DEPOSITS IF YOU DO

NOT PERFORM ACCORDING TO ITS TERMS,

this CO upon and the CONTRACT signed in lhis dealersh¡p on the dale noted al
. tf DEA fbr YOU, th¡s CONTBACT ilnot valid unlil a credit d¡sclosure is made
Regula cepted the cred¡t extended.

NOTTCE OF SALESPERONS'S L|MITED AUTHOBITY Th¡s contract is not valid unless signed and accepted by sales
Manager or Officer or Dealership.

Accepted íx, @
Buyer's S¡gnature Accepting Terms of



áelf

)tlil

AW,-s- *W
'1''{

ALUMINUM TR,ATLERS r1,/4DE
ûv usA



a

,
D

,

\ )

Utilitt
ATV'g EoIf E¿o

Utilitg Trailers
Bear Trqck uti-ity troilers hove o 2200# torsion axle (no transfer of rood shock from one wheel to the other),

and include 2" boll mount coupler wíth safety choins.

Alt Beor Trock troílers carry o S-yeor structurol worronty ond o S-yeor torsion oxle worronty.

Models 8TU5396, BTU53120, 8TU6596, BTU65'I2O,8TU65144,8TU651685, BTU7672O,

BTUT 6144, BTU821 20, BTU821 4
I Model BTU6596 (left) shown wÍth optional side kit,

oluminum wheels & tongue iack
,.iæEE_

r,l
Lt ..'

nt---
lrì
f;t_
flriñ it

I

T'
\D

All Beor Trock UtilÍty Models feoture:
. All aluminum construction for Curled front rail and tie-

a virtually maintenance free down rods in all four corners
trailer offer manY waYs to tie down

. Extruded 6" deep side rail loads

with ribs provides maximum ' 13" load range C tires on
strength ánd stability to the white modular steel wheels.
entirðframe Aluminum wheels are optional

. Full width, bi-fold arched end 'Three inch formed aluminum
gate ramp minimizes wind tongue with wishbone design
resistance. Unfolded ramp . Welded side stake pockets
length is 42"

*Bi-fold end gote capocíty is 1500 lbs, H.D, model: 2500lbs capocity

Ligltt Dttxg Utilitg Trailer

All troílers
are svoilable
with seoled

LED toìl lights
(optional)

Model BTU4978
. Lighter duty version of our other trailers
. 1200 lb load capacity
. 1800 lb torsion axle
. Durable plastic fenders
. Optional side kit available

Shown wìth
optionol side
roil kit



trts o Earden Tractors o Motorcgcles
:

Motorcgcle Trailers
. Easy to handle bi-fold loading ramp end gate
. Torsion axle
. V-front design for cycles
. 8' to 10' of useable space before the start of the

V-front allows the trailer to be used for other
cargo, fike an ATV or golf cart

Your bike travels Ín style ond sofety with a
Bear Track motorcycle trailer.

Model BTU5312O (above)
Shown with optÍonol alumìnum wheels,
rock guard, tongue jack, & wheel chock
(8' length before the V, 10' overall length)

Model BTU8O"|42 (not pictured)
(10' length before the V, 12' overall length)

Model BTU761
Shown wÍth optíonol rock guard & tongue jack
(9' length before the V, 11' overoll length)

ATV Trailers
Models BTU821 02, BTU821OË1, BTU821 2AT,
BTU821 4AS, BTU8214AI 8TU82192
. 82" deck width is ideal for AW's
. 2200# torsion axle
. 10" load range C and E tires
. Ramps mounted for travel in front of trailer
. Ramps can be used for loading either from

the side or the rear

Shown with optionol 13" oluminum wheels



HeaW lltttg Utilitg
Models BTU651 68-H, BTU651 92-H, BTUSol 44-H, BTU80168-s, BTU8OI68-H,
BTU801 92-H, BTU8021 6, 8TU80240

I

. Single Axle: 3500# torsion axle & 14" load
range C tires

. Tandem Axles: Two - 2200# torsion axles &
'l 3" load range C tires

. lncludes tongue jack

I
ì
I

'l
. Trailer has a 2800# load capacity

(when equipped w/brakes)
. Also avaílable with bi-fold end gate

' Optional side kit is available

I

!

AII heovy duty troilers avaÍløble with bifold,
heavy duty bí-fold or 54" stroíght ramp

I

I

Ear IIauIer

Models BTl4CH, BT16CH, BT18CH, BTHDI6CH, BTHDISCH
(shown with optionol 2 ft. beovertøil, front storage box and olumínum wheels)

Optional Upgrades
A. Recessed Tie-down Ring

B. Front Storage Box

C. Beaver Tail & LED Tail Lights

Strong
& Dependoble
Car Hauler Features:
. All aluminum construction creates

a virtually maintenance free trailer
. Extruded 6.5" deep side rail with

ribs províde maximum strength
and stability

. Removable fenders

. 14" white steel wheels standard

. Ramps stow easily under the side
of the trailer

. Stainless steel "D" ring tie downs
to secure your load. (Recessed
"D" rings are available)

. Demco EZ-LATCH coupler makes
hooking up your trailer fast, easy
and worry free

Bear Track Trailers have a
S-year structural warranty

S-year torsion axle warranty

I

ALt SPECIFICATIONS ON BACK



0

trailers; and two, three and four-place snowmobi
aluminum loading ramps for AWs, snowmobiles,

Abottt Us
Founded in the year 2000, Bear Track Products
is a family owned business located in Evansville,
Minnesota. We manufacture a complete line of
high quality aluminum trailers, including small to
heavy duty utility trailers; motorcycle and AW

le trailers. We also manufacture a large variety of
motorcycles and garden tractors.

ti )r

t
ü

I AII of our trailers and ramps are covered by a S-year structural warranty.
Bear Track's trailers and loading ramps are sold through a network of knowledgeable and friendly
dealers throughout the United States and Canada. ¡aih of our dealers has the-highest customer
satisfaction in mind. Please contact us to find the dealer nearest your location.
Our goal at Bear Track is to provide our customers with the best quality products and services at the
best possible price.

WItg Alutninurn?
o Better Fuel Economy - Lightweight aluminum trailers pull easier.
o Lower Maintenance - Dirt and salt do not affect aluminum like steel.. Durable - There's no paint to scratch, fade or peel.
' EasI to Handle -.Many of our lightweight utility trailers can be moved by hand.
o Better Resale - Aluminum simply will not rust. Your trailer looks better lónger.

'g:.i.r::r¡r:¡. . ¡,t.

Whg BEAR TRACK"
Arched Bi-fold End Gate
o Low profile creates less wind resistance
. Arched design gives the ramp strength
. Lightweight, easy to unfold

f, Torsion axles are standard on all Bear Track trailers.
o Lasts longer than traditional spring axles
. Reduces frame flex in cross winds and on rough roads
o No shock transfer from wheel to wheel

Welded Stake Pockets
o Ev€rY trailer comes standard with a minimum of 4 stake pockets (2 per side)
' side kits bolt on easily so that one person can install them.

Curled Front Rail
o Provides additional tie down options (work great to compress AW front suspensions). Helps deflect some debris from your load

Bear Track uses extruded aluminum
. Decking won't warp, splinter, or crack
o Custom extrusions have specific contours added to give strength and rigidity
o Precision welds throughoutaû



t

ATV'g . EoIf Earts . Earden Tractors .
Utilitg Trailers

IWotorcgcles
Bear Track DIodeIs and !îpecÍfrcations:Utilitg Trailers

No. of Axles
.l

1

1

1

1

1

1

1

I
1

1

No. of Axles
2
2
1

1

2
2
2
2

No. of Axles

No. of Axles
1

1

1

No. of Axles

Tlre Slze
480X12-B
sTl 75-80-R1 3_C
5T1 Z5-80-R.13_c
sï1 75-80-R.t3_C
sTl 75-80-R1 3_C
sT't 75-80-Rl3-C
sT.t75-80-R]3-C
5T1 75-80-R1 3-C
sTl 75-80-R1 3_C
sTl Zs-80-R1 3-C
5t1 75-80-R1 3_C

Tire Slze
sTl 75-80-R1 3-C
sTt 75-80-R1 3_C
sT205-75-R.t4_C
sT205-75-R1 4-C
sTl z5-80-R1 3_C
sTl 75-80-R1 3-C
sT205-25-R1 4-C
sT205-75-R1 4-C

Trailer Wt.
275 lbs
300 lbs
3ó5 lbs
325 lbs
390 lbs
425lbs
520 lbs
415 lbs
440 lbs
425lbs
450 lbs

Traller Wt.
660 lbs
700 lbs
670lbs
72O lbs
860 lbs
910 lbs
960 lbs
1010 lbs

Traller Wt.
400 lbs
480 lbs
525 lbs
660 lbs
750 lbs
890 lbs

ATV Trailers
Model Bed Length
8TU82102 8.5'
BTUS2IOAT 1O'
BTU8212AT 12'
BTU8214AS 14'
BTU8214AT 14'
8TU82192 16'

Carrylng Capacity
1800 lbs
2330 lbs
2330 lbs
2330 lbs
2240lbs
2100 lbs

Axle
2200# Torsion
3000# Torsion
3000# Torsion
3000# Torsion
2200# Torsion
2200# Torsion

B€d Wldth
82"
82"
92"
82u
82"
82"

Bed Wdth
81"
91"
81"
81u
81 "

Carrying Capacity
1800 lbs
2100 lbs
2100 lbs

Axle
2200# Torsion
3000# Torsion
3000# Torsion

Axle
3500# Torsion
3500# Torsion
3500# Torsion
4400# Torsion
4400# Torsion

Tlre Size
20.5X8X10-C
20.5X8X10-E
20.5x8X10-E
20.5X8X.t0-E
20.5X8X10-C
20.5X8X10-c

Tire Size
sT205-80-R1 4-C
sT205-80-R1 4_C
sT205-80-R1 4_C
sT205-80-R1 4-C
sT205-80-R1 4-C

Tire Size
sTl75-80-R.t3_C
sTl 75-80-R1 3-C
5T175-80-R.13-C

Trailer Wt.
325 lbs
450 lbs
510 lbs

.l

1

1

1

2
2

2
2
2
2
2

Motorcgcle Trailers
Model Bed Length Bed W|dth8TM53120 10' 53"8TM76132 1't' 76"BTM80142 12' 80"
Ear Hauler
Model
BT14CH
BT1 6CH
BT1 8CH
BTHDl 6CH
BTHDl 8CH

Bed Length
14',
16',
1&',

16',
18',

Carrylng Capacþ
5000 lbs
5000 lbs
5000 lbs
6500 lbs
6500 lbs

Trailer Wt.
1345 lbs.
1440 lbs.
1525 lbs..1520 

lbs.
1630 lbs.All traÍlers qbove have on optÍonol síde roÍl kit ovailoble except cor Houler.

All troÍlers ore covered by Bear Trqck,s S-yeor worronty

P.O. Box 39 . 21201 County Road g2 NW
Evansville, MN 56326

MADE IN USA

t -8OO-41 7 -OSO4 o www.beartrackproducts.com
0812014



 

Watershed District 

Red Lake 

Annual Report 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Small cover picture:  Erskine Memorial Park 

Large cover picture:  Pine Lake Outlet Structure  



1 

 

 

Board of Managers – 2017 .............................................................................................................................................. 3 
Staff -2017 ........................................................................................................................................................................ 4 
2017 Overall Advisory Committee ................................................................................................................................. 5 
History of the Red Lake Watershed District ................................................................................................................. 6 

2017 District Projects .......................................................................................................................................................... 7 

Four-Legged Lake Watershed (RLWD Projects #102 & #102A) ................................................................................ 7 
Pine Lake Watershed (RLWD Projects #26) ................................................................................................................ 8 
Petition to Establish RLWD Ditch #16 (RLWD Project #177) .................................................................................... 9 
Petition to Improve Polk County Ditch #39 (RLWD Project #179) ............................................................................ 9 
Erosion Control (RLWD Project #164) ......................................................................................................................... 9 

City of Erskine Veteran’s Memorial Park ..................................................................................................................... 9 

Blackduck Lake Dam Modifications (RLWD Project #50E) ..................................................................................... 11 
Polk County Ditch 63 Improvement (RLWD Project #134) ...................................................................................... 12 
Red Lake River 1W1P (RLWD Project #149) ............................................................................................................ 12 
Thief River 1W1P (RLWD Project #149A) ................................................................................................................. 13 
Black River Impoundment (RLWD Project #176) ..................................................................................................... 14 

Flood Control Impoundments .......................................................................................................................................... 15 

Euclid East Impoundment (RLWD Project #60C) ..................................................................................................... 17 
Brandt Impoundment (RLWD Project #60D) ............................................................................................................ 18 
Parnell Impoundment (RLWD Project #81) ............................................................................................................... 19 
Pine Lake (RLWD Project #35) ................................................................................................................................... 20 
Lost River Impoundment (RLWD Project #17) ......................................................................................................... 22 
Good Lake Impoundment (RLWD Project #67) ........................................................................................................ 23 
Moose River Impoundment (RLWD Project #13) ...................................................................................................... 25 
Schirrick Dam (RLWD Project #25) ........................................................................................................................... 27 
Louisville/Parnell Impoundment (RLWD Project #121) ........................................................................................... 28 

Water Quality Program .................................................................................................................................................... 29 

Long-Term Water Quality Monitoring Program ....................................................................................................... 31 
Dissolved Oxygen Logger Deployments ...................................................................................................................... 39 
Thief River Falls Stormwater Sampling ...................................................................................................................... 45 
Tindolph Beach Closing and Sampling ....................................................................................................................... 46 
Longitudinal Sampling.................................................................................................................................................. 47 
Watershed Restoration and Protection (WRAP) Projects ......................................................................................... 54 

Thief River Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy (WRAPS) ............................................................. 54 
Red Lake River Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy (WRAPS) ...................................................... 59 
Grand Marais Creek Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy (WRAPS) ............................................. 62 
Clearwater River Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy (WRAPS) ................................................... 63 
Upper/Lower Red Lakes Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy (WRAPS) ....................................... 69 

Public Education ........................................................................................................................................................... 70 
Water Quality Partnerships ......................................................................................................................................... 70 
2018 Plans ...................................................................................................................................................................... 71 
River Watch ................................................................................................................................................................... 72 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) ...................................................................................................................... 75 
PTMApp (Prioritize Target and Measure Application) ............................................................................................ 75 

Other Watershed Activities .............................................................................................................................................. 76 

Permits (RLWD Project #90) ....................................................................................................................................... 76 
Wild Rice Water Allocation (RWLD Project #45) ..................................................................................................... 78 
Stream Flow & Pool Elevation Monitoring (RLWD Project #21) ............................................................................ 79 
Snow Surveys ................................................................................................................................................................. 80 

Maintenance of Drainage Systems ................................................................................................................................... 81 
Acronyms............................................................................................................................................................................ 88 
Financial Report ................................................................................................................................................................ 89 



2 

 

Letter from the President                                                                         

           
Greetings to all the citizens of the Red Lake Watershed District and other interested parties.   

 

Another year has passed and those of us who deal in water resource issues never really know what to expect 

from one year to the next.  For those who enjoy winter activities, the winter of 2016 and 2017 is one that may 

have tested your patience.  It appeared with early snow and cool temperature in late October 2016 we would 

have an early winter.  But as northern Minnesota often does, it threw us a curve ball in that we never seen any 

considerable winter weather until late December.  January thru March were very uneventful in terms of snow 

fall or precipitation but changed slightly in April with total rain and snow fall totaling 1.31 inches.  May 

started out very mild which allowed farmers to plant their early crops in a relatively timely manner.  June 

started out very rocky in that we received 4.61 inches of rain over 12 rainfall events which delayed the 

soybean planting.  July and August, we witnessed below normal precipitation which caused some concerns in 

the farming community.  It seemed when we thought we should pray for rain, September came and proceeded 

to dump 5.35 inches of rain as we were completing our small grain harvest.  According to our rainfall records 

in the Red Lake Watershed District office, a total of 15.95 inches of rain fell April thru October which overall 

turned into a very favorable summer. 

 

I would like to start my next topic by saying that on behalf of the Red Lake Watershed District, we would like 

to welcome back Manager Leroy Ose, Marshall County representative, who was re-appointed to serve another 

three-year term.  The staff and remaining Board members look forward in continuing to assist Leroy in serving 

Marshall County.  I must also regretfully announce that Lee Coe, a resident of rural Tenstrike and 

representative of Beltrami County, chose not to seek reappointment after his term expired in January of 2017.  

Lee served on the citizens of Beltrami County admirably for 12 years and was a very strong member of the 

Red Lake Watershed District Board.  During his tenure as a RLWD Board member, he also served as the Chair 

of the Minnesota Association of Watershed Districts, as well as various committees within the RLWD Board 

structure.  In their replacement of Lee, the Beltrami County Board appointed a very familiar face to those in 

the water resource world by appointing Brian Dwight, Waskish, MN to our Board.  Brian brings more than 30 

years of experience in working with Watershed Districts and Soil Conservation Districts alike in project 

development and grant approvals.  Brian will be a great addition to the Red Lake Watershed District team. 

 

In closing, I would like to remind the citizens that the goals of a watershed district are to manage water in the 

areas of flood control, drainage, and water quality.  We continue to hold our meetings on the second and fourth 

Thursday of each month and welcome public interests and/or attendance at these meetings.  

 

The Watershed District office is located at 1000 Pennington Avenue South, Thief River Falls, MN.  Feel free 

to stop in and have a cup of coffee, but if you do not have time, please go to our website 

http://www.redlakewatershed.org and take a virtual tour of our facility, as well as get updates of projects 

throughout the year.    

 

Our 2017 Annual Audit is included in this report in an abbreviated form. A complete copy of the Annual Audit 

may be obtained at the District office at 1000 Pennington Avenue South, Thief River Falls, as well as on our 

website www.redlakewatershed.org . 

 

Once again, it was a pleasure to serve as President of the Board in 2017.   

 

Sincerely, 

       

      Dale M. Nelson, President 

       

http://www.redlakewatershed.org/


3 

 

Board of Managers – 2017         

Front Row (left to right): Terry Sorenson, Treasurer; Dale M. Nelson, President; and Gene Tiedemann, Vice 

President.  Second Row (left to right): Brian Dwight, Les Torgerson; LeRoy Ose, Secretary; and Allan Page.  

 

                   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Brian Dwight was appointed to the RLWD 

Board of Managers for a 3-year term.  

Brian will represent Beltrami County for 

the years 2017-2019. 

                    Lee Coe 
 

After serving on the RLWD Board representing 

Beltrami County for 12 years, Lee Coe did not 

seek re-appointment.  Lee represented the District 

on the Minnesota Association of Watershed 

District Board.  Lee and his wife, Dottie, currently 

reside rural Tenstrike. 
 

 LeRoy Ose was re-appointed to the 

RLWD Board of Managers to serve a 3-year 

term.  LeRoy will represent Marshall County for 

the years 2017-2019. 



4 

 

Staff -2017            

 

                          

 Office 

           Red Lake Watershed District 

        1000 Pennington Avenue South  

           Thief River Falls, MN 56701  

Office Hours: Mon.-Fri. 8:00 a.m.– 4:30 p.m.  

Phone:  218-681-5800  Fax: 218-681-5839  

         Website: redlakewatershed.org 

 E-Mail:  RLWD@redlakewatershed.org 

 

 

 

 

Front Row (left to right):  Tammy Audette-Office Manager; Marisa Newton-Summer Intern; Ashley Hitt-

Natural Resources Technician; Arlene Novak-Accounting Officer/Office & Admin. Spec. Prin.  

Back Row (left to right): Corey Hanson-Water Quality Coordinator; Nick Olson-Ditch Inspector/Technician II; 

Loren Sanderson-Engineering Specialist; and Myron Jesme-Administrator. 

 

 

Left to right: Brady Stanley-Ditch 

Inspector/Techncian II and 

Christina Slowinski-Ditch 

Inspector/Techncian II joined the 

District staff in 2017.    



5 

 

Meetings 

The Board of Managers held twenty-four regularly scheduled board meetings in 2017.  These regular 

meetings are normally held the 2nd and 4th Thursday of each month at the District office at 9:00 a.m. 

One additional meeting was held to allow the Board to participate in the Red Lake Watershed District 

Advisory Committee meeting. Notice of these meetings are mailed or e-mailed to the Advisory 

Committees, county auditors, county commissioners, and SWCD/NRCS offices and by request.  The 

agenda and minutes from Board meetings are available by visiting our website at 

www.redlakewatershed.org.  The 2017 General Fund budget was set at $164,600. The Board voted at 

the July 28, 2016 Board meeting, to not levy the counties in 2017, instead using the reserves in the 

General Fund.  The 2017 General Fund Budget hearing was held on August 25, 2016.  Notice for the 

General Fund Budget hearing was published in at least one newspaper in each of the 10 counties 

within the District.   

 

2017 Overall Advisory Committee         

John A. Nelson, Walker Brook Area   Steve Holte, Thief River Area 

Lloyd Wiseth, Marshall/Beltrami SWCD   Dan Schmitz, Black River Area 

Emmitt Weidenborner, Upper Red Lake Area  Roger Love, Grand Marais Area 

John Ungerecht, Upper Red Lake Area   Dave Rodahl, Thief River Area 

John Gunvalson, Clearwater River Area   Shane Bowe, Red Lake Band of Chippewa India 

 

2017 Subwatershed Advisory Committee Members 

 

Black River   Moose River     Upper Red Lake Area 

*Dan Schmitz, RLF  Wayne Larson, Middle River *Emmitt Weidneborner, Kelliher 

Curt Beyer, RLF  Elroy Aune, Gatzke  *John Ungerecht, Northome 

Greg Dyrdal, TRF      Wayne Skoe, Northome 
 

Thief River Area  Clearwater River Area              Lost River Area 

*Dave Rodahl, TRF  Steve Linder, Oklee  Gary Mathis, Gonvick 

Trent Stanley, Grygla  *John Gunvalson, Gonvick   

*Steve Holte, Grygla 

Jim Sparby, Grygla        Pine Lake Area            Red Lake River Area 

    Dave Dalager, Gonvick  Keith Driscoll, EGF 

 

Walker Brook Area   Grand Marais/Red Area Hill River Area 

*John A. Nelson, Clearbrook Jeep Mattson, EGF  Jake Martell, Oklee 

 

Poplar River Area   Clearwater Lake Area  Burnham Creek Area 

        Mary Ann Simmons, Crookston 
*Overall Advisory Committee Members 

 

Members of the Overall Advisory and the Subwatershed Advisory Committees met on March 20, 

2017.  Fourteen advisory members, along with District Board members and staff were in attendance.    

Staff members from the District gave presentations on projects within the District and answered 

questions from the advisory committee members.  

  

http://www.redlakewatershed.org/


6 

 

History of the Red Lake Watershed District 
 

The Red Lake Watershed District (District) covers an area of approximately 5,990 square miles in 

northwestern Minnesota and includes Red Lake County, most of Pennington County, and parts of 

Mahnomen, Polk, Itasca, Marshall, Clearwater, Beltrami, Roseau, and Koochiching Counties. 

 

A governmental unit known as the Red Lake Drainage and Conservancy District preceded the 

District, whose territory included approximately the same land. Under the Conservancy District, three 

major improvement projects were completed: dredging of the Clearwater, Red Lake, and Lost Rivers. 

 

The Board of Directors of the Red Lake Drainage and Conservancy District felt the District could 

better function under the Minnesota Watershed Act.  The Board petitioned the District Court for the 

right to operate under Chapter 112, the Minnesota Watershed Act.  A hearing was held in Thief River 

Falls on January 25, 1969, and the Conservancy District was authorized to operate under and exercise 

all the rights and authorities contained in the Minnesota Watershed Act. 

 

The Board petitioned the Minnesota Water Resources Board (now the Board of Water and Soil 

Resources) on July 24, 1969, amended January 20, 1970, for a change of name, review of boundary, 

and distribution of managers of the District.  A hearing on the matter was held at Thief River Falls on 

March 31, 1970, and at Kelliher on April 2, 1970.  In their Order, the Water Resources Board stated 

that the principle place of business shall be at Thief River Falls; that a description of the land within 

the District be written; specified that the Board of Managers be seven members, the procedure by 

which County boards shall appoint managers and terms of office for the Managers. 

 

On March 25, 1975, the District adopted the Rules and Regulations pursuant to Minnesota Statutes.  

They were amended on May 12, 1978; December 14, 1978; August 10, 1989; June 24, 1993, and 

again in 2015 to be entitled “Permit and Drainage Rules of the Red Lake Watershed District.” 

In 1977, the District signed a Joint Powers Agreement with other watershed districts in the Red River 

Basin to form the Lower Red River Watershed Management Board.  In 1991, the name was changed 

to the Red River Watershed Management Board. This organization currently consists of eight 

watershed districts in the Red River Basin and provides funding to member districts, primarily for 

floodwater detention structures, which benefit more than one-member district. The levy collected is 

used for funding the development, construction, and maintenance of projects of common benefit to 

the Red River Basin. 

The District currently is governed by Minnesota Statutes 103D, which provides a broader scope for a 

local unit of government to manage quantity and quality of water within the hydrological boundaries. 
 

  



7 

 

2017 District Projects          
   

Four-Legged Lake Watershed (RLWD Projects #102 & #102A) 

Four-Legged Lake is located in northwestern Minnesota within Clearwater County, near the town of Leonard. 

The chain of lakes is part of the RLWD Judicial Ditch #5 system which was established in 1921. Over the 

years, most recently in 1999, the downstream basin’s outlet culvert had been raised without permission or legal 

actions from the drainage authority.  The results of the raising of the culvert from its historical elevation has 

caused increased concerns of flooding to major county roadways and properties of upstream landowners. 

 

On January 4, 2011 a public informational meeting was held in Leonard, Minnesota, with Clearwater County 

commissioners and engineer, township officials, and local landowners to get a feel of how the public wanted to 

proceed to remedy this flooding situation. It was determined that most landowners were not opposed to the 

lake being re-established but that a proper elevation should be set on the lakes to assure future flooding would 

not occur to the public roadways and upstream landowners in the event of large runoff events. As a result of 

the meeting and the fact that the only available ditch records were an original viewers report and an old blue 

line set of plans from the early 1920’s, it was determined by the RLWD Board of Managers that updated 

information had to be developed to better identify the alternatives before proceeding. 

 

Informational landowner meetings were held on May 8, 2014 and May 14, 2015. It was determined that a 

petition for abandonment of the legal drainage system should be presented to the RLWD Board of Managers in 

conjunction with the Managers developing a Flood Damage Reduction Project (FDR) that would satisfy State, 

County, and local interests. 

 

On July 23, 2015 a public hearing was held for the abandonment of the legal drainage system. After 

considerable discussion and testimony, the Board of Managers elected to table the proceedings until at such 

time more information could be made available to the public. 

 

On February 10, 2016 the District entered into an agreement with the Natural Resource Conservation Service 

(NRCS) to complete a comprehensive watershed plan using the Regional Conservation Partnership Program 

(RCPP). This program encourages partners to join in efforts with producers to increase the restoration and 

sustainable use of soil, 

water, wildlife and related 

natural resources on 

regional or watershed 

scales.  The District 

proceeded with the RCPP 

process through 2017 and 

hope to complete the 

required steps of the 

process late spring/early 

summer 2018. It is the 

hope of the District that 

upon completion of the 

comprehensive plan, we 

will have a clearer vision 

as to what projects can be 

completed in this 

watershed to assure all our 

goals in the area are 

addressed. 

 

 



8 

 

 

Pine Lake Watershed (RLWD Projects #26) 
 

In 2013, at the request of the Property Owners of Pine Lake Association (POOPLA), the Board of Managers 

hired HDR Engineering, Inc. to investigate the Pine Lake Watershed. The consultant was hired to not only 

come up with solutions and alternatives that could assist in frequent flooding on Pine Lake, but also investigate 

the opportunities for distributed storage sites which may assist the District in our long-range plan to reduce 

flooding to the Red River of the North by implementing the Red Lake Watershed 20% Reduction Strategy. 

 

Various landowner meetings held in 2014 and 2015 revealed local interest in examining areas upstream of 

Pine Lake to determine if any Flood Damage Reduction (FDR) projects could be developed.  In response to 

this interest, the District successfully applied for a Natural Resource Conservation Service PL566 grant. The 

grant funded a 

comprehensive study to 

guide the development of 

projects that will reduce 

flood damages in the Pine 

Lake Watershed and 

downstream waters.  

 
On January 11, 2016 the 

District entered into an 

agreement with the NRCS to 

complete a comprehensive 

watershed plan using the 

RCPP. This program 

encourages partners to join 

in efforts with producers to 

increase the restoration and 

sustainable use of soil, 

water, wildlife and related 

natural resources on regional 

or watershed scales. The 

District proceeded with the 

RCPP process through 2017 

and hope to complete the 

required steps of the process 

late spring/early summer 

2018.  It is the hope of the 

District that upon 

completion of the 

comprehensive plan, we will 

have a clearer vision as to 

what projects can be 

completed in this watershed 

to assure all our goals in the 

report are addressed. 

 

            

 

 

 



9 

 

Petition to Establish RLWD Ditch #16 (RLWD Project #177) 
 

At the regularly scheduled Board meeting on July 27, 2017, a petition to establish a new drainage system 

project in Polk County was presented to the RLWD Board of Managers. Upon review of the petition and 

receipt of the bond, the RLWD Board of Managers (by order) appointed Pribula Engineering to make a 

preliminary survey. It is the hope of the District that the preliminary hearing will be held late spring/early 

summer 2018. 

Petition to Improve Polk County Ditch #39 (RLWD Project #179) 
 

On October 26, 2017 at our regularly scheduled Board meeting, a petition was presented to improve an 

established drainage system referred to as Polk County Ditch #39. Upon review of the petition and receipt of 

the bond, the RLWD Board of Managers (by order) appointed Pribula Engineering to make a preliminary 

survey.  It is the hope of the District that the preliminary hearing will be held late spring/early summer 2018. 

 

Erosion Control (RLWD Project #164) 

This project category was established in 2004 and is used on a yearly basis to fund various erosion control 

projects which are usually initiated by projects developed by local Soil and Water Conservation Districts 

(SWCD).  In 2017, there were various project funding requests by SWCDs, but this year we would like to 

highlight a project referred to as Memorial Park Erskine. 

 

City of Erskine Veteran’s Memorial Park 
 

The District cost shared with the East Polk SWCD, the City of Erskine, and the local American Legion Club to 

repair an existing levee located on the east side of Cameron Lake. The levee is approximately 500 feet in 

length, was constructed in 1977, and protects a public swimming area. In recent years, the levee top has been 

transformed into a veteran’s memorial walkway which includes flag poles, along with granite stones, and 

benches with the names of fallen soldiers.  

 

The ‘lake side’ of the levee has eroded over time and the rock rip rap had also ‘slumped’ from the original 

design. The repair mainly consisted of salvaging existing rip rap, adding clay fill to restore the eroded slope, 

and also placed additional quarry fractured rip rap on the slope. Special care had to be taken by the contractor 

to make sure the existing walkway area was not damaged.  Davidson Construction of Middle River, MN, was 

the contractor for the project with an estimated total construction cost of $78,500.00 

 

On June 8, 2017 at 9:30 am, final hearing was held for Davidson Construction of Middle River, MN in the 

amount of $17,310.00.  Hearing no objection from the public, the Board by unanimous decision ordered the 

final payment be made for the project.  Total construction cost for the project totaled $79,635.00 which 

included, $20,000 from City of Erskine, $12,500 dollars from East Polk Soil Conservation Service, $5,000 

from the Erskine American Legion and the remaining balance of $42,135 being paid by the Red Lake 

Watershed District. 



10 

 

Pre – construction Levee         Fall Construction 

 

Completed Project 

  

 

 



11 

 

Blackduck Lake Dam Modifications (RLWD Project #50E)  
 

Blackduck Lake Dam serves as the outlet of Blackduck Lake which is the headwater of the Blackduck River. 

The dam is in Hines Township, in Beltrami County, and through Legislative action in the 1970’s Hines 

Township acquired ownership. 

 

The Red Lake Watershed District entered into an agreement with Hines Township to help modify the 

deterorating original structure. Constructed in 1938, the concrete bridge had a stop-log structure on the 

upstream side which regulated the statute run-out elevation of the lake. Over time, the stop-log structure had 

been damaged by ice formation & flows causing seperation and allowing water to pass underneath the stop-

logs. The structure also acted as a barrier to aquatic species during most flows. 

 

The modification project replaced the stop-log structure with a sheet pile weir structure on the upstream side of 

the bridge at the run-out elevation that was required by statute rock-arch rapids structures were constructed on 

the downstream side of the bridge to facilitate fish passage up to and through the new weir.   

 

Houston Engineering of Thief river Falls, MN performed the design analysis and prepared the plans and 

specifications for the project.        

 

 

 

 

  

     

      

Rock - arch rapids looking 

upstream towards the lake 

Rock – arch rapids – Looking downstream 

 

        Final grading of approach to bridge. 

All disturbed areas were seeded and mulched 

New sheet pile weir structure on  

upstream (lake side) of bridge 



12 

 

Polk County Ditch 63 Improvement (RLWD Project #134) 
 

In 2015, during routine ditch inspection, District staff noticed head cutting occurring near the outlet of Polk 

County Ditch 63.  During discussion with the District Board of Managers, it was determined to seek Clean 

Water Funds to assist with the repair.  In 2016, the West Polk SWCD informed the District that funding was 

denied under the Clean Water Fund application but were there were other grant options that may work.   

 

In December of 2016, West Polk SWCD informed that District Board of Managers that they were approved for 

a Clean Water Legacy Fiscal Year 2017 Project and Practices Grant through the Board of Water and Soil 

Resources (BWSR) for repairs to the outlet of Polk County Ditch 63, RLWD Project No. 134. 

 

September 14, 2017 the District Board of Managers approved a 25% cost share of the grant and to proceed 

with the final engineer’s report.  On October 12, 2017, District Board of Managers approved the engineers 

report in the amount of $97,658 and ordered staff to proceed with the solicitation of quotes for the project.  On 

October 26, 2017, the District awarded the low quote from RJ Zavoral & Sons in the amount of $67,435.00.  

Construction was substantially completed and will be finalized in spring of 2018.   

 

Red Lake River 1W1P (RLWD Project #149) 
 

Minnesota has a long history of water management by local government. One Watershed, One Plan is rooted 

in this history and in work initiated by the Local Government Water Round Table (Association of Minnesota 

Counties, Minnesota Association of Watershed Districts, and Minnesota Association of Soil and Water 

Conservation Districts) in 2011 which recommended that the local governments charged with water 

management responsibility should organize and develop focused implementation plans on watershed 

boundaries. The recommendation was followed by legislation that permits BWSR to adopt methods to allow 

comprehensive plans, 

local water 

management plans, or 

watershed management 

plans to serve as 

substitutes for one 

another; or to be 

replaced with one 

comprehensive 

watershed management 

plan. This legislation, 

and the associated 

BWSR program, is 

referred to as One 

Watershed, One Plan. 

Further Legislation was 

passed in 2015, 

defining purposes and 

outlining additional 

structure for the 

program. 

 

Early 2014 the Red 

Lake Watershed 

District, Pennington, Red Lake and West Polk Soil Conservation Districts, along with their respective 

Counties, partnered to apply for a grant through the Board of Water Resource One Watershed One Plan Pilot 

Project, to establish a Comprehensive Water Management Plan for the Red Lake River Watershed.  The grant 

was one of five pilot projects that was approved for funding in December of 2014. 



13 

 

 

In 2015, the project partners started the planning process outlined by the BWSR which ultimately resulted in 

the approval of the plan in January 2017.  It is the hope of the District and its partners, that in early 2018 we 

will develop and get completed, a Work Plan which will allow us to start implementing projects throughout the 

Red Lake River Watershed. 

 

Thief River 1W1P (RLWD Project #149A) 
 

In June of 2016, the Red Lake Watershed District, Pennington, Marshall and Beltrami Soil Conservation 

Districts and their respective counties applied for and was approved to receive a One Watershed One Plan 

grant from the Board of Water and Soil Resources, to establish a Comprehensive Water Management Plan for 

the Thief River Watershed.  This plan will be developed through 2018.  

 

 

 

 

 

  



14 

 

Black River Impoundment (RLWD Project #176) 
 

November 10, 2016, the Board of Managers initiated the Black River Impoundment Project (RLWD #176).  

On January 12, 2017 the Board appointed two members of their Board to sit on a Project Work Team to assist 

in the development of a flood damage reduction project near the Black River.  To date the District has been 

progressing in the development and design of the Black River Impoundment as well as securing lands required 

for construction of the project.  On April 18, 2017 a Step I submittal was presented to the Red River 

Watershed Management Board with the Step II submittal for funding presented to their board October 17, 

2017. 

In 2018, the District will continue with the development of the project, as well as try to secure State funding 

for construction.  

 

  



15 

 

Flood Control Impoundments        
 

The 2017 spring melt and runoff was the 6th consecutive year with no significant flooding in the basin. By late 

February the landscape was nearly void of snow cover and many ditches and culverts were beginning to open 

and pass flows. The remainder of the year was relatively dry. Rainfall events were not large enough to 

generate significant runoff to require flood water storage.  

 

Impoundments operated by the District are quite diverse. Actual project operations are based on available 

flood storage, outlet structure facilities, and outlet channel capacity.  Each impoundment is designed, based on 

upstream drainage area, topography, and runoff conditions. Some of the flood storage facilities are operated 

with adjustable stop-logs, adjustable flood gates, and some are non-gated fixed crest weir structures.   

 

Non-gated – Fixed Crest Weir Type Structures 

 

“Fixed crest” structures store water to the specific elevation of a weir. When the water surface raises above the 

weir elevation, outflows occur automatically.  Most of the non-gated projects were constructed in the 1970’s 

and early 1980’s by the former Soil Conservation Service (SCS), known today as the Natural Resource 

Conservation Service (NRCS).  

 

Typical 2017 Low water levels – well below the crest, of the ‘normal pool level’ control weir(s)  

 

                        

 

 

 

 

  

     

  

  

 

      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Latendresse Dam located in Red Lake 

Falls Township, Red Lake County 

 

Odney / Flaat Dam located in Onstad 

Township, Polk County 



16 

 

Storage Volume & Operations 

 

Water storage is calculated in acre-feet, which is a volume measurement that is one acre in area by one foot 

deep.  Storage capacity in impoundments varies depending on the size in acres and depth of the storage area.  

One foot of water depth in an impoundment can be many thousands of acre feet of storage.   Some 

impoundments are considered “dry” which means that the pool is basically drained dry after stored flood 

waters are released.   Other impoundments are operated with a small permanent pool throughout the year.   

 

Operation and maintenance varies, depending on the specific project. Some are operated solely by the District, 

and others are cooperatively operated with the Red Lake Band of Chippewa Indians, Minnesota Department of 

Natural Resources, U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, Natural Resource Conservation Service, and/or local Soil 

and Water Conservation Districts.  

 

Routine inspections are performed, and the conditions of the embankment and control structures are evaluated. 

Typical maintenance includes flood damage repairs, debris removal, removal of beaver dams/debris, nuisance 

beaver, and vegetation control. 

The following pages describe some of the larger impoundment facilities that have gated and/or stop-log 

control flexibility.  

 

Gated / Stop-log Type Structures 

 

Projects with ‘adjustable flood gates and/or stop-logs’ have more flexibility for storing and for controlling 

outflows from flood events. During large runoff events, flood waters are stored within the impoundments and 

as downstream conditions allow, the stored water is released in a controlled manner. This is done by operating 

flood gates or by adjusting stop-logs, depending on the respective flood storage facility. Water levels are 

typically lowered during the fall season. This ‘fall drawdown’ is performed to create additional flood storage 

for the next spring’s runoff. 

 

  

 

Example of an 

Impoundment with 

a permanent pool 

Example of a “Dry” Impoundment. 

Stored flood water is released as soon as 

downstream channel conditions are 

acceptable to pass flows. 



17 

 

Euclid East Impoundment (RLWD Project #60C) 
 

GENERAL:  Construction of the Euclid East Impoundment began on June 15, 2006. Due to excellent 

working conditions, it was substantially completed by the middle of November. The project became functional 

for operation in the spring of 2007. This project is funded jointly between the State of Minnesota, Red River 

Watershed Management Board and the District. 
 

LOCATION:  The project is in Section 24, Euclid Township, and Section 19, Belgium Township, Polk 

County, approximately 12 miles north of Crookston. 
 

PURPOSE:  The project can store runoff and reduce flooding on downstream agricultural lands and urban 

areas by retaining up to approximately 2,443 acre-feet of floodwater. The storage of water in the reservoir can 

also reduce peak discharges on legal ditch systems: Branch C of County Ditch #66, County Ditch #66 (Main), 

and County Ditch #2.     

 

PROJECT COMPONENTS:  

The project has a drainage area of 17.1 square miles. The embankment and reservoir are constructed of 

approximately 3.6 miles of earthen clay embankment (332,681 cubic yards & approx. 12 feet at highest point), 

a grass lined emergency spillway, 2.4 miles of inlet channels and culvert works, 0.8 mile of outlet channel, and 

a gated concrete outlet structure. The operable component is a gated structure, which releases water from the 

impoundment into an outlet channel. This water then flows northwesterly through legal ditch systems and 

eventually to the Red River of the North.   
 

FUNCTIONAL DESIGN DATA 

 

 Elevation (ft.-msl) Storage 

Top of Dam (total Storage) 908.0 2,443 (2.68 in. runoff) 

Gated Storage (Secondary Spillway) 905.0 1,878 (2.06 in. runoff) 

Ungated Storage to Emergency Spillway 906.0 565 (0.62 in. runoff) 

*April 21, 2011 was recorded as the highest pool elevation at 903.10* 
 

OPERATIONAL: 2007 

 

District staff and a local gate tender performed 

occasional gate operation and short-term storage 

throughout 2017. This operation and storage was 

mainly as a precautionary measure in advance of 

predicted severe storms. 

  

 

  

Principal Outlet Structure 



18 

 

Brandt Impoundment (RLWD Project #60D) 
 

GENERAL:  Construction of the Brandt Impoundment began on July 31, 2006 and was substantially 

completed by the middle of November and functional for operation in the spring of 2008.  The District and 

HDR Engineering of Thief River Falls jointly performed construction surveying and inspection duties. The 

project is funded by the State of Minnesota, Red River Watershed Management Board, and the District. 

LOCATION:  Section 7, Belgium Township, Polk County, approximately 14 miles north of Crookston, or 1 

½ miles east and 1 mile north of Euclid.  

PURPOSE:  The project will store runoff and reduce flooding on downstream agricultural lands and urban 

areas by retaining up to approximately 3,912 acre-feet of floodwater. The storage of water in the reservoir will 

also reduce peak discharges on the downstream “Brandt Channel,” RLWD Ditch 15 and legal County Ditch #2 

system.  

PROJECT COMPONENTS:   

The project has a drainage area of 23.6 

square miles. The embankment and 

reservoir are constructed of 

approximately 3.5 miles of earthen 

clay embankment (492,579 cubic 

yards & approx. 19 feet at highest 

point), a grass lined emergency 

spillway, 2 – lines of 6 x 8 concrete 

box culverts and a gated concrete 

outlet structure.  

The operable component is the gated 

structure, which releases water from 

the impoundment into an outlet 

channel. This water then flows west - 

northwest through the “Brandt 

Channel” legal County Ditch #2 

system and eventually to the Red 

River of the North.    

 

FUNCTIONAL DESIGN DATA 

 

 Elevation (ft.-msl) Storage 

Top of Dam (total Storage) 918.0 3,912 (3.1 in. runoff) 

Gated Storage (Secondary Spillway) 914.5 3,126 (2.48 in. runoff) 

Ungated Storage to Emergency Spillway 916.0 786 (0.62 in. runoff) 

*July 4, 2010 was recorded as the highest pool elevation at 912.5* 
 

OPERATIONAL: 2008  

 

District staff & local gate tender performed occasional gate operation and short-term storage throughout 2017. 
This operation and storage was mainly as a precautionary measure in advance of predicted severe storms. 

 
 

Principal Outlet 

Structure 

Principal Outlet Structure 



19 

 

Parnell Impoundment (RLWD Project #81) 
 
GENERAL:  Construction of the Parnell Impoundment began in 1997 and was completed in 1999. In 2004, 

modifications were made to the original design by lowering the emergency spillway 1.5 feet, expanding the 

inter-pool connecting channel, and installing an operable screw gate on the weir structure in the JD #60 outlet. 

The impoundment is now better utilized to store floodwaters by operating control gates.  In 2009, excavation 

of an east pool interior channel, along with an inter-pool structure, consisting of 2-48” diameter culverts with 

operable gates was installed.  The channel will enhance flow conveyance to J.D. #60 and the inter-pool 

structure will be beneficial in managing west pool water levels and held reduce flooding in County Ditch #126. 

 

LOCATION:  Sections 3 and 4, Parnell Township, Polk County, approximately 12 miles northeast of 

Crookston.  

 

PURPOSE:  The project will reduce flooding on downstream agricultural lands and urban areas by retaining 

up to approximately 4,000 acre-feet of floodwater. The storage of water in the reservoir will also reduce peak 

discharges on four legal ditch systems, County Ditch #126, Judicial Ditch #60, County Ditch #66, and County 

Ditch #2.  

 

PROJECT COMPONENTS: The project has a drainage area of 23 square miles. The impoundment 

incorporates a 2 – pool design (no 

permanent pool), with two separate 

outlets, and an inter-pool connecting 

channel. The embankment and 

reservoir are constructed of 

approximately 5 miles of earthen 

embankment (approx. 18 feet at 

highest point), a concrete emergency 

spillway and two gated concrete outlet 

structures.  

 

The operable components are the two 

gated structures, which release water 

from the impoundment into two 

separate outlet channels. One of these 

channels is JD #60, which flows south 

to the Red Lake River and the other is 

CD #126, which flows west and 

eventually to the Red River of the 

North.    

 

FUNCTIONAL DESIGN DATA: 

 Elevation (ft.-msl) Storage 

Top of Dam (total Storage) 943.0 4,000 (3.2 in. runoff) 

Emergency Spillway 939.5 3,000 (2.4 in. runoff) 

*March 25, 2009 was recorded as the highest pool elevation at 939.75* 
 

OPERATIONAL: 1999 

 

District staff & local gate tender performed occasional gate operation and short-term storage throughout 2017. 

This operation and storage was mainly as a precautionary measure in advance of predicted severe storms. 

West Pool Outlet Structure 



20 

 

Pine Lake (RLWD Project #35)    
 

GENERAL:  In 1980, the Clearwater County Board of Commissioners petitioned the District for an 

improvement of the Pine Lake outlet. Constructed in 1981, a sheet pile dam with two adjustable stop log bays 

was built about 800 feet north of the lake on the Lost River.   

 

LOCATION:  The site is near the south center of section 21, Pine Lake Township, Clearwater County. 

 

PURPOSE:  This multi-purpose project designed to provide the public with flood control and wildlife 

benefits. The Gonvick Lions Club has donated hundreds of man-hours and, when necessary, members operate 

the aeration system and install/maintain signage.   

       

FUNCTIONAL DESIGN DATA: 

 Elevation (ft.-msl) 

2nd Stage-top of dam 1284.5 

1st Stage-top of dam 1284.0 

Typical summer-top 

of stop logs 

1283.5 

Typical winter 1282.5 
*April 11, 2009 was recorded as the highest pool elevation at 1286.0* 

 

The Pine Lake control structure is a sheet pile dam with 2–four-foot-wide adjustable stop-log bays.  The stop-

logs can be adjusted between elevations 1281.5 to 1283.5. There is also 26 feet of fixed crest weir at elevation 

1284.0, and 65 feet of fixed crest weir at elevation 1284.5. The project has a drainage area of 45 square miles. 

Based primarily on lake elevation, stop-logs may be removed from the dam to allow additional outflow until 

the lake recedes. Then, they are replaced to the typical summer or winter elevation. The dam is also designed 

with a small fixed crest weir at elevation 1282.5, 

which is one foot lower than the normal summer 

stop-log elevation. This was an innovative design in 

the early 1980’s and allows for minor outflows that 

provides stream flow maintenance. This is very 

important for keeping some flow in the Lost River 

especially during periods of low flow. Factors to 

consider when adjusting the stop-logs are:  

monitoring “inflows” to the lake, existing lake 

elevation, downstream conditions and predicted 

runoff. Staff personnel at the Sportsman’s Lodge are 

very helpful in reading the lake elevation gauge 

located inside the business and a local resident 

records rainfall data at the lake.  

 

2017    

 
The local Sportsman’s Club operated the aeration system from February 7th to March 24th. Lake “ice out” 

occurred on about April 3rd, and on April 6th stop-logs were installed to the typical summer elevation of 

1283.5. There was very little snow melt runoff or rainfall in the spring of 2017. Pine Lake crested at elevation 

1283.9 in early April and in late June. Due to relatively dry conditions throughout the year, no stop-log 

operation was required until the normal fall drawdown. In early October, one half of the stop-logs were 

removed to begin the drawdown, and the remaining stop-logs were removed on October 18th.  On November 

29th two stop-logs were installed in each of the two stop-log bays to elevation 1282.5. This installation must be 

done by December 1st of every year, as per The Minnesota Department of Natural Resources requirements.  

 

Typical fall drawdown with stop-logs 

removed 



21 

 

Elm Lake-Farmes Pool (RLWD Project #52) 

GENERAL:  Elm Lake was drained in about 1920 by the construction of Branch #200 of Judicial Ditch #11. 

The Elm Lake project is a cooperative effort of the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service, MN Department of Natural 

Resources, Red Lake Watershed District, and Ducks Unlimited. The majority of funding for the project was 

provided by Ducks Unlimited and at the time Elm Lake was created, it was the largest Ducks Unlimited 

project in the lower 48 states. 

 

LOCATION:  Marshall County, approximately 17 miles northeast of Thief River Falls. The drainage area of 

Ditch 200 above Elm Lake is 63 square miles. 

 

PURPOSE:  Multi-purpose – designed to meet three major objectives: Flood control, increase wildlife values, 

and upstream drainage improvement. 

 

PROJECT COMPONENTS:  Approximately 9 miles of earthen embankment, an outlet control structure, 

rock lined emergency spillway, and an enlargement of a portion of Ditch 200.  

 

FUNCTIONAL DESIGN DATA: 

 

 Elevation (ft.-msl) Storage (ac.ft.) 

Top of Dam 1145.0 19,700 

Emergency Spillway 1142.0 11,000 (8.9 in. runoff) 

Max Summer 1141.0 7,500 (6.11 in. runoff) 

Typical Summer 1140.0 5,500 (4.48 in. runoff) 

Typical Winter 1139.0 3,500 

*Project Drainage Area 63.0 sq.mi.* 

*Highest recorded pool elevation was 1143.30 on April 23, 1997 

 

OPERATIONAL: 1991 

 

In 2009, repairs were made to the principal outlet structure. Work consisted of repairing stop-log bays and 

channels, removal of corroded stop-logs, and installation of new handrails and safety grates.  Agassiz National 

Wildlife Refuge staff performs the actual operation of the outlet structure with cooperation from the District. 

 

2017 

 

The District cost shared to help with repairs to the apron portion of outlet pipe along with additional rock 

riprap. Relatively dry conditions prevailed throughout the year.  

 

 

 

 

   

 

Stop-log Outlet Structure with operable screw 

gate 

 

 



22 

 

Lost River Impoundment (RLWD Project #17) 
 

GENERAL:  Approximately in the mid-1970’s, the project was constructed by the Minnesota Department of 

Natural Resources to improve waterfowl habitat. On December 14, 1978, the District entered into a formal 

agreement with the Minnesota Department of Natural Resources to modify the original impoundment by 

raising the elevation of the dike and emergency spillway. Four (4) 48 in. diameter gated pipes and a spillway 

from Ditch 200 of JD #11 supply water to the impoundment which is an “off channel” reservoir.   

   

LOCATION:  Marshall County, Grand Plain 

Township, proximately 20 miles northeast of 

Thief River Falls. The drainage area above 

the impoundment is 53 square miles. 

 

PURPOSE:  Multi-purpose – designed to 

increase wildlife values and provide flood 

control. 

 

PROJECT COMPONENTS:  

Approximately 10 miles of earthen 

embankment, an outlet control structure, and 

an emergency spillway into Ditch 200.  

 

FUNCTIONAL DESIGN DATA: 

 

 Elevation (ft.msl) Storage 

Top of Dam 1150.2 14,600 

Emergency Spillway 1148.2 10,000 (4.7 in. runoff 

Typical Summer 1146.2 5,500 2.6 in. runoff) 

Typical Winter 1145.2 3700 

*Drainage Area 53.0 sq.mi.* 

*Highest recorded pool elevation (RLWD) was 1147.80 on April 14, 1999* 

 

 

OPERATIONAL: 1978 

In 2014, the MnDNR obtained funding to make repairs on 

the outlet end of the control structure. Most of the work 

consisted of sediment removal, re-shaping of the plunge 

pool and ditch banks, plus installing rock riprap. The 

Watershed District helped with the design, cost estimate, 

and partial funding. The work was completed late in the 

year.  

The Minnesota Department of Natural Resources 

(MnDNR) staff perform the actual operation of the outlet 

structure with cooperation from the District. Relatively dry 

conditions prevailed throughout the year.  

 

 



23 

 

Good Lake Impoundment (RLWD Project #67) 
    

GENERAL:  The Good Lake Project is a cooperative effort between the Red Lake Band of Chippewa Indians 

and the District. 

 

LOCATION:  The project area lies entirely within the Red Lake Indian Reservation. The impoundment is 

approximately 30 miles east of Thief River Falls, in Clearwater and Beltrami Counties.  The drainage area 

above the dam is 73 square miles. 

 

PURPOSE:  Multi-purpose project to provide wetland habitat, flood water retention, and potential irrigation 

water supply.  

 

Fish and Wildlife: Enhanced wetland habitat for waterfowl, furbearers, and other wetland species. The 

reservoir also has the potential for 

seasonal rearing of northern pike.  

 

Flood Control: The project will 

reduce flood peaks on both the Red 

Lake River and the Red River of the 

North. The dam will store runoff from 

the 73 square mile drainage area. 

Spring storage capacity is 11,300 

acre-feet and is equal to 2.6 inches of 

runoff from the drainage area. The 

project will also reduce flooding on 

approximately 4,000 acres of private 

land immediately west of the project, 

by intercepting overland flows.  

 

Water Supply: The reservoir may be used as a water source for irrigation of wild rice paddies. Paddies have 

not been built, but there is potential for paddy development in adjacent areas. 

 

PROJECT COMPONENTS:  Approximately 9 miles of earthen embankment, 7.5 miles of inlet channels, a 

reinforced concrete outlet structure, and 2 miles of outlet channel. Water released from the impoundment, 

enters the Red Lake River approximately 2.5 miles downstream (south easterly) from the outlet control 

structure. 

 

FUNCTIONAL DESIGN DATA: 

 
 Elevation (ft.-msl) Storage (ac.ft.) 

Top of Dam 1178.5 27,500 

Flood Pool (Emergency Spillway) 1176.1 13,100 (4.8 in. runoff) 

Normal Summer Pool 1173.0 3,250 (1.2 in. runoff) 

Normal Winter Pool 1172.0 1,800 

*Drainage Area – 73 sq.mi.* 

*Highest recorded pool elevation was 1176.80 on May 25, 1999* 

 

 

OPERATIONAL: 1996 

 

    

Gated Principal Outlet Structure 



24 

 

      

On April 12, 2011, the Red Lake Tribal Council approved a new 5-year Special Land Permit (Resolution No. 

61-11) granted to the District. The original permit had expired on January 12, 2010.  In part, the permit states 

“The purpose of this permit is to facilitate cooperative management of the Good Lake Impoundment, where the 

District and the Red Lake Band will cooperatively inspect, supervise and conduct necessary maintenance at the 

Good Lake Flood Control project site.  Activities will be coordinated with the Red Lake Department of Natural 

Resources.” Also, as part of the land use permit, the District is granted a right of access to the land described for 

a period of five years after the date the permit commenced. It was signed by the Tribal Chairman and Secretary 

on April 13, 2011 and expired on April 13, 2016. 

 

On July 12, 2016, two District Board Managers and two Staff members met before the Red Lake Tribal Council 

to discuss and ask for a renewal of the Special Land Permit. On August 24, 2016, the office received a new 2-

year Special Land Permit (Resolution No. 138-16) signed by the Tribal Chairman and Secretary and dated July 

12, 2016, which is set to expire on July 12, 2018. 

     

2017   

 

With relatively dry conditions throughout the year, no required stop-log or gate operation was necessary. 

District staff monitored water levels periodically throughout the year.    

        

            

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      

      

 

 

Automatic ‘outflow’ at elevation 1173.0 

April 21, 2009 – Pool elevation at 1175.9 



25 

 

 

Moose River Impoundment (RLWD Project #13) 
 

GENERAL:  The project, which is a two-pool design, is the largest impoundment operated by the District. It 

was a cooperative effort of the District, Red River Watershed Management Board, and the Minnesota 

Department of Natural Resources for flood control and wildlife management. Flood damages are reduced by 

impounding floodwaters in the upper reaches of the watershed. Wildlife and associated recreational benefits 

will be enhanced by water retained in the two pools. The project was constructed on lands managed by the 

Minnesota Department of Natural Resources. 

 

LOCATION:  The project is located at the headwaters of the Moose and Mud Rivers in northwestern 

Beltrami County, approximately 15 miles northeast of Grygla, MN.  

 

PURPOSE:  Multi-purpose – designed to provide flood control, streamflow maintenance, increase wildlife 

values, and benefit fire control. 

 

OPERATIONAL:  1988  

FUNCTIONAL DESIGN DATA: 

 
 North Pool South Pool Total 

Top of Dam Elevation (ft.msl.) 1218.0 1220.0  

Freeboard Flood Elevation (ft.-msl) 1217.2 1219.3  

Freeboard Flood Storage (ac.ft.) 16,250 38,250 54,500 

Emergency Spillway Elevation (ft.-msl) 1216.0 1218.0  

Emergency Spillway Storage (ac.ft.) 12,000 24,250 36,250 (5.4 in. 

runoff) 

Gated Pool Elevation (ft.-msl) 1215.3 1217.4  

Gated Pool Storage (ac.ft.) 9,750 19,750 29,500 (4.4 in. 

runoff) 

Typical Summer Elevation (ft.-msl) 1211.7 1213.6  

Typical Summer Storage (ac.ft.) 2,000 4,000 6,000 (2.1 in. runoff) 

Typical Winter Elevation (ft.-msl) 1210.5 1212.4  

Typical Winter Storage (ac.ft.) 800 1,800 2,600 

Max No-Flood Elevation (ft.-msl) 1212.5 1214.5  

Max No-Flood Storage (ac.ft.) 3,000 6,000 9,000 

Project Drainage Area (sq.mi.) 41.7 83.3 125.0 

*Highest Recorded Pool Elevation May 16, 1999 *1215.90 *1218.05  

 
 

This impoundment has a small permanent 

winter pool to allow for maximum 

storage capacity as indicated on the graph 

shown to the right.  

 

 

 

 

 
 



26 

 

Moose River Impoundment – North Pool 
 

 

The North Pool outlets into the Moose River (JD #21). The major components of the north pool are: 5 miles of 

diversion ditch, 4 miles of earthen dike with a top elevation of 1218.0, one gated outlet structure, one rock 

lined emergency spillway at an elevation of 1216.0. Approximately 1/3 (41.7 sq. mi.) of the total project 

drainage area (125.0 sq. mi.) drains to the Moose River.    

 

2017 Operation: Flood water storage and gate 

operations occurred during the spring melt. The 

maximum North Pool elevation for 2017 was 

1213.30 (4,772 ac/ft) which occurred on April 

12th. Due to dry conditions, no gate operation 

was performed (which is extremely rare) until 

the October Fall drawdown. 

 

The Minnesota Department of Natural 

Resources (MnDNR) performed spotted 

knapweed control at various locations of the 

project. The watershed performed other routine 

maintenance (dike mowing, stream gage repair, 

and debris removal).  

 

Normal ‘fall drawdown’ was performed in 

October.  

 

Moose River Impoundment – South Pool 
 

The South Pool outlets into the Mud River (JD #11). The major components of the south pool are: 3 miles of 

diversion ditch, 9 miles of earthen dike with a top elevation of 1220.0, 4 miles of earthen dike between the 

north and south pools, one gated outlet structure, two rock lined emergency spillways at an elevation of 

1218.0. Between the North and South pools is an inter-pool structure which may be used to pass water 

between the pools. Approximately 2/3 (83.3 sq. mi.) of the total project drainage area (125.0 sq. mi.) drains to 

the Mud River.    

 

 2017 Operation:  Flood water storage and gate 

operations occurred during the spring melt. The 

maximum South Pool elevation for 2017 was 

1215.35 (9,098 ac/ft) which occurred on April 

12th. Due to dry conditions, no gate operation 

was performed (which is extremely rare) until 

the October Fall drawdown. 

 

The Minnesota Department of Natural 

Resources performed spotted knapweed control 

at various locations of the project. The 

watershed performed other routine maintenance 

(dike mowing, stream gage repair, and debris 

removal).    

 

Normal ‘fall drawdown’ was performed in 

October.  

South Pool - Gated Principal Outlet Structure 

 

North Pool – Gated Principal Outlet Structure 



27 

 

Schirrick Dam (RLWD Project #25)      
 

GENERAL:  The Schirrick Dam was constructed on the 

Black River in 1984. The project was constructed on 

property owned by Don Schirrick.  
 

LOCATION:  Section 35, Wylie Township, Red Lake 

County, approximately 20 miles northeast of Crookston. 

The drainage area above the dam is 107.7 square miles. 

 

PURPOSE:  The primary purpose is to provide flood relief 

on the Red Lake River and the Red River of the North by 

controlling the flow contribution from the Black River. A 

small permanent pool is also provided. 
 

PROJECT COMPONENTS:   An earthen embankment 

(38 feet at highest point) and a gated concrete outlet 

structure. The reservoir has the capacity to detain up to 

4,800 acre-feet of water. The operable components are stop-

log bays that control the elevation of the permanent pool 

and hydraulic flood gates that control the flow contribution 

of the Black River during floods. The gates will normally be 

open and will only close in the event of severe mainstem 

flooding.   
 

FUNCTIONAL DESIGN DATA: 

 
 Elevation (ft.-msl) Storage (ac.ft.) 

Top of Dam 992.5 6,000 

Gated Storage 987.0 4,000 

Emergency Spillway 989.3 4,800 

Permanent Pool 962.0 70 

*Drainage Area 107.7 sq.mi.* 

*Highest recorded pool elevation was 988.75 on April 17, 1997* 

 

OPERATIONAL: 1985 

 

2017 Operation: Again, this year, the spring and summer runoff events, were not large enough to raise 

downstream river levels to the plan “trigger point” elevations, therefore no gate operation was required.   

 

In October, yearly routine 

maintenance was performed on the 

two hydraulic gates and lifting 

mechanism. The gates were also test 

operated (closed and opened) to 

make sure that they function 

properly. This is done to be prepared 

in the event of a severe 2018 spring 

flood which would require closure.  

 

This dam and the timing of closure 

are vitally important for the flood 

protection for city of Crookston.   

 

Aerial view of Schirrick 

Dam looking south 

Looking downstream from outlet structure 

Principal outlet structure hydraulic 

gate operation 



28 

 

Louisville/Parnell Impoundment (RLWD Project #121) 
 

GENERAL:  Construction of the Louisville/Parnell Impoundment began in mid-1998 and was substantially 

completed by the end of July 1998 and functional for operation in the fall of 1998. The District and HDR 

Engineering of Thief River Falls jointly performed construction surveying and inspection duties. The project 

was funded by the Red River Watershed Management Board, Department of Natural Resources, Department 

of Transportation and the District. 

LOCATION:  The project is located approximately 12 miles north east of Crookston, in Section 13 and 14 of 

Parnell Township in Polk County and Section 18 of Louisville Township in Red Lake County, Minnesota.  

PURPOSE:  The project stores runoff and reduce flooding on downstream agricultural lands and urban areas 

by retaining up to ten percent more storage (400 acre-ft) to the JD-60 Watershed. The storage of water can 

reduce peak discharges by .2 % in Crookston and .02% East Grand Forks. The project also created 37 acres of 

wetland banking.  

PROJECT COMPONENTS:  The 

drainage area above (upstream) the 

impoundment is 5.1 square miles. The 

project controls break-out flows from 

Lateral 2 of JD-60. It is designed to 

provide up to 25-yr flow control to the 

immediate drainage systems downstream 

of the project. The impoundment’s 2,900-

foot-long embankment was constructed 

along the west edge of the southeast 

quarter of Section 13. The project utilizes 

four gated outlet structures, which consist 

of one principle outlet (sta. 19+50) and 

three secondary outlets. Each control 

structure and storage site are designed to operate using passive detention. The Waterman Model C-20-C-Y 

sluice gates are 18-inches in diameter and operated through a gate wheel. As well as providing local and 

regional flood mitigation, this project provides wetland banking for the Minnesota Department of 

Transportation. The project consists of five pools each designed to provide specific functions and benefits.  

 

Storage Site Peak Elevation 

(ft-MSL) 

Total Storage at 

Peak (ac-ft) 

100-Year Bounce 

(ft) 

Gated Storage 

Available (ac-ft) 

A 965.19 89.9 2.8 15 

B 954.16 24.2 2.2 0 

D 952.21 47.6 1.7 47.6 

C/E 949.21 207 5.3 (C) 

1.3 (E) 

190 

 

FUNCTIONAL DESIGN DATA 
 

 Elevation (ft.-msl) 

Top of earthen embankment 951.0/952.0 

Top of Spillway 949.0 

 

Gate operation will be the responsibility of the District and coordinated with operation of the Black River 

Dam, RLWD Project #25. 

Principal Outlet 

Structure 



29 

 

Water Quality Program        
  

The District and other organizations are working to protect and restore water quality in rivers, streams and 

lakes in the five major watersheds within the District’s boundary. To protect water quality, it is important to 

have an understanding of current water quality conditions. District staff monitor water quality and flow 

conditions. Monitoring involves regular sample collection, investigative sampling, and event monitoring with 

autonomous sensors. The data is used to assess water quality conditions by comparing statistics to water 

quality standards that are established by the State of Minnesota. The results of data assessment and analysis are 

used to identify problem areas and trends. Sampling activities can also be conducted to find the locations of 

pollutant sources.  

 

Thanks to the Clean Water Land and Legacy Act, the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) has been 

able to provide the District with funding for four watershed restoration and protection strategy (WRAPS) 

projects (Thief River, Red Lake River, Grand Marais Creek, and Clearwater River watersheds). A fifth 

WRAPS project within the District is being conducted for the Upper/Lower Red Lakes watershed by the Red 

Lake Department of Natural Resources. In 2017, much time was spent by District staff on data analysis and 

technical writing for the Clearwater WRAPS project and revisions of Total Maximum Daily Load (TMDL) 

and WRAPS reports for the Red Lake River and Thief River watersheds. of. The District hired a summer 

Water Quality Assistant, Marisa Newton, for a second summer and she greatly helped with water quality 

monitoring in 2017. An intern, Bryanna Grefthen, also joined the staff for a portion of the summer to help with 

water quality monitoring. In addition to the District’s long-term monitoring program, data was collected to 

investigate water quality problems in the Clearwater River watershed and to monitor the Mud River in Grygla 

for potential blue-green algae problems.  

 

An important part of the District’s water quality program is public education. The information that the District 

collects needs to be interpreted and shared for it to be most beneficial. Therefore, the District generates regular 

(monthly and annual) water quality reports, hosts open house events, and participates in other educational 

events like water festivals. The creation of informative maps using GIS software is also used to attain a better 

understanding of water resources and watersheds. The District supports River Watch programs at schools that 

allow students to monitor water quality in streams within its boundaries. Reports and other information is 

shared on the Watershed’s websites (www.redlakewatershed.org and www.rlwdwatersheds.org).    

 

The knowledge that is gained through the District’s water quality program is 

also used for the planning of projects that will improve water quality 

conditions and overall watershed planning efforts (1W1P). The District has 

identified sources of pollutants that can be addressed through large and small 

projects. The Board of Managers provides financial support to projects and 

programs that will improve water quality. The success of those projects can 

also be monitored through the District’s water quality program.   

 

The District also looks for opportunities to help other organizations by 

offering financial or monitoring assistance. In 2017, A YSI Pro ODO 

dissolved oxygen meter was purchased for use by the Pine Lake Sportsman 

Club, assembled, calibrated, and delivered to the club. The club will use it to 

monitor dissolved oxygen levels under the ice throughout the winter. 

Also, in 2017, District staff assisted Red Lake County staff to investigate the 

source of the septic-smelling effluent that has been seeping into the Hill 

River (with high concentrations of sediment, nitrogen, phosphorus, and 

chloride) at the CR 119 crossing near Brooks. Red Lake County staff 

determined that the seepage was coming from the drain field of a nearby 

truck washing station.  

http://www.redlakewatershed.org/


30 

 

 

The District’s long-term district monitoring program has collected water quality data throughout the district 

since 1980. Water quality monitoring was conducted at 73 sites as part of the District’s regular monitoring 

program in 2017. Field measurements of dissolved oxygen, temperature, turbidity, specific conductivity, pH, 

and stage are collected during each site visit (if there is water/flow). Four rounds of samples are also collected 

and analyzed for total phosphorus, orthophosphorus, total suspended solids, total dissolved solids, total 

Kjeldahl nitrogen, ammonia nitrogen, nitrates + nitrites, and E. coli at seventy of the sites. 

Chemical/biochemical oxygen demand analysis is performed on samples from rivers and streams that are 

impaired by low dissolved oxygen levels. The four 2017 rounds of sampling began in April, June, August, and 

October.  

Monitoring site were selected so that data could be strategically collected from as many assessment units 

(reaches of rivers, streams, and ditches – delineated by the MPCA for assessment purposes) as possible. 

Generally, monitoring sites are located near the pour points (downstream ends) of rivers, streams, and ditches. 

The Minnesota Pollution Control Agency has split some reaches into multiple assessment units so that 

channelized reaches can be assessed separately from natural reaches (particularly for the assessments of 

aquatic biology). For example, the Clearwater River from Ruffy Brook to the Lost River used to be assessed as 

a single unit. Now, the channelized portion between Ruffy Brook and Judicial Ditch 1 is assessed separately 

from the natural portion of that reach between JD 1 and the Lost River. 

Some changes to the District’s long-term monitoring program in 2017. The Thief Lake outlet and the Badger-

Mitchell Lake Channel were cut from the list of sites. The MPCA did not assess the Badger-Mitchell Lake 

channel portion of the Poplar River Diversion project because the site is essentially characterizing the quality 

of lake water instead of stream water. The Thief River between Thief Lake and Agassiz National Wildlife 

Refuge will continue to be monitored at the downstream end of the reach. An assessment that emphasizes the 

quality of water at the downstream end of that reach will provide more protection for the Thief River and 

Agassiz Pool than an assessment that combines the pollutant concentrations at the upstream (where water is 

relatively clean) and downstream (where water can be less clean) ends of the reach. 

A site was added to monitor water quality within the channelized portion of Lower Badger Creek at 150th 

Ave. A biological impairment and low dissolved oxygen levels have been discovered at that location. The 

Heartsville Coulee monitoring location was changed from the 210th St. crossing that had been monitored 

upstream of the diversion structure to a site closer to the Red Lake River. The previously monitored location 

resembled a wetland more than it resembled a stream. Some flow to the new monitoring site will be 

intercepted by the diversion structure, but it can be assessed as a flowing stream using the MPCA’s water 

quality standards.  



31 

 

 

Long-Term Water Quality Monitoring Program 

 

  



32 

 

 

The District monitors concentrations of E. coli bacteria in streams, ditches, and rivers. High concentrations of 

E. coli bacteria indicate an increased risk of gastrointestinal illness from aquatic recreation activities 

(swimming) that involve contact with water. High E. coli concentrations (>126 MPN/100ml) occurred in 2017 

in the following waters (alphabetical order).   

1. Beau Gerlot Creek at CR 114  

2. Blackduck River 

3. Browns Creek at County Road 101  

4. Burnham Creek at CR 48  

5. Burnham Creek at 180th Ave  

6. Chief’s Coulee at Dewey Avenue in Thief River Falls  

7. Clear Brook  

• Hwy 92   

• CSAH 5 (longitudinal sampling) 

• Main Street (longitudinal sampling) 

• Railroad Ave NE (longitudinal sampling) 

8. Clearwater River  

• CSAH 10 

• CSAH 2 

9. Cyr Creek at CR 110 

10. Darrigan’s Creek 

11. Gentilly River at CSAH 11  

12. Grand Marais Creek  

• 130th St. NW 

• 110th St. NW 

13. Heartsville Coulee at 210th St. SW 

14. Hill River  

• CR 119, north of Brooks  

• CR 130 (longitudinal sampling) 

• CR 129 (longitudinal sampling) 

• 250th Ave SE (longitudinal sampling) 

• 290th Ave SE  

• 290th St. SE 

• CSAH 35  

• West crossing of 340th St. SE 

• 335th Ave SE  

• 345th Ave SE (longitudinal sampling) 

• 350th St. SE (longitudinal sampling) 

  



33 

 

 

 
15. Judicial Ditch 30 at 140th Ave NE, north of Thief River Falls 

16. Kripple Creek 

• 180th Ave  

• 140th Ave SW 

17. Lost River  

• In Oklee 

• CR 139 (north crossing, longitudinal sampling) 

• Lost River at 520th St. (longitudinal sampling) 

• CR 139 (south crossing, longitudinal sampling) 

• In Gonvick (longitudinal sampling) 

• CSAH 92 (longitudinal sampling) 

• CSAH 8 

• South crossing of CSAH 7, south of Gonvick (longitudinal sampling) 

• 490th St., downstream of Pine Lake 

• 486th St, near the Pine Lake outlet (longitudinal sampling) 

• Pine Lake inlet (longitudinal sampling) 

• 109th Ave, upstream of Pine Lake  

• Lindberg Lake Rd. (longitudinal sampling) 

• CSAH 20 (longitudinal sampling) 

18. Lower Badger Creek at 150th Ave SE 

19. Marshall County Ditch 20 

20. Moose River at CSAH 54 

21. Mud River 

• Highway 89 

• Grygla City Park  

• CSAH 54 (longitudinal sampling) 

• Dylan Rd. NW (longitudinal sampling) 

• Flintlock Rd. NW (longitudinal sampling) 

22. Nassett Brook 

23. North Cormorant River at CSAH 36  

24. O’ Briens Creek at Harvest Rd. NE 

25. Pennington County Ditch 21 at 135th Ave NE 

26. Pennington County Ditch 70 outlet (stormwater sampling) 

27. Polk County Ditch 1 

28. Polk County Ditch 2 

• County Road 62  

• CSAH 20 

29. Polk County Ditch 14 near the Maple Lake outlet 

30. Poplar River at CSAH 49 

31. Red Lake River  

• Louis Murray Bridge in East Grand Forks  

• At Fisher  

• CSAH 13 near Red Lake Falls 

• Greenwood Street in Thief River Falls 

32. Ruffy Brook at CSAH 11 

33. Silver Creek 

  



34 

 

 

 

• 500th St. (longitudinal sampling) 

• 159th Ave, west of Clearbrook  

• CR 74 (longitudinal sampling) 

• 161st Ave (longitudinal sampling) 

• CSAH 18 (longitudinal sampling) 

34. South Cormorant River at CSAH 37 

35. Terrebonne Creek at Hwy 92  

36. Thief River  

a. CSAH 6 

b. 380th St NE 

c. CSAH 7 

d. 140th Ave NE, north of Thief River Falls  

The highest 2017 E. coli concentration for the District’s long-term monitoring effort was 15,531 MPN/100ml 

(extremely high). It was discovered at the Dewey Avenue crossing of Chief’s Coulee. The lowest 2017 E. coli 

concentration was <1 MPN/100ml (less than to the laboratory’s minimum reporting limit) was found in: 

• Clearwater River at CSAH 25 near Bagley (April) 

• Maple Lake outlet (April) 

• Polk County Ditch 2 at CSAH 20 (April) 

• Red Lake River at Fisher (April) 

• Hill River at CSAH 35 (April) 

• Lower Badger Creek at CR 114 (August) 

 

E. coli samples were collected from Kripple Creek where it nears 140th Ave SW and from where it crosses 

Highway 2. There are multiple cattle operations between those two sites. Cattle were spotted walking in the 

Kripple Creek channel near a gravel pit. The cattle are causing increases in E. coli concentrations along 

Kripple Creek. E. coli concentrations increased from just 31.5 MPN/100ml at Highway 2 to >2,419.6 

MPN/100ml where the river reaches 140th Ave SW. This information and samples results were shared with 

Red Lake County and Polk County staff.  

 

                         
  

Kripple Creek near 140th Ave SW.  



35 

 

 

The amount of sediment that is carried by a stream is measured by collected and analyzing samples for total 

suspended solids. Fish and aquatic macroinvertebrates (bugs, worms, crustaceans, etc.) are harmed by high 

concentrations of total suspended solids. Relatively few instances of high total suspended solids concentrations 

(>65 mg/l, >30 mg/l, or >15 mg/l, depending on the site’s location) were found during 2017 sampling efforts 

for the District’s long-term monitoring program: 

  

• >65 mg/L – Violated applicable South (65 mg/L), Central, and North River Nutrient Region standards 

in 2017 

o Grand Marais Creek at 130th St. NW (239 mg/L) 

o Red Lake River at Fisher (102 mg/L) 

o Red Lake River at the Murray Bridge in East Grand Forks 

• >30 mg/L – Violated applicable Central (30 mg/L) and North River Nutrient Region standards 

o Burnham Creek at 180th Ave SW 

o Moose River at CSAH 54 

o Thief River at CSAH 7 

o Thief River at 140th Ave NE Thief River Falls 

• >15 mg/L – Violated the North (15 mg/L) River Nutrient Region standard, where applicable 

o Mud River at Hwy 89 (local goal of meeting the 15 mg/L standard) 

The highest total suspended solids concentration that was found during 2017 District long-term monitoring 

was 78 mg/L, at the 130th St NW crossing of Grand Marais Creek. The lowest possible total suspended solids 

(cleanest water) is a censored value of <1 mg/l (less than the laboratory’s minimum reporting limit) and was 

found at these sites in 2017: 

o Beau Gerlot Creek at CR 114 

o Clear Brook at Railroad Ave NE (longitudinal sampling) 

o Clearwater River at CSAH 11 

o Clearwater River at CSAH 14 

o Clearwater River at CSAH 25, upstream of Bagley 

o Clearwater River in Red Lake Falls 

o Hill River at CSAH 35 

o Judicial Ditch 30 at 140th Ave NE, north of Thief River Falls 

o Judicial Ditch 73 

▪ 343rd St. SE 

▪ CSAH 10 (Maple Lake inlet) 

o Kripple Creek at US Hwy 2 

o Little Black River at CR 102 

o Lost River at CSAH 28 

o Lost River at 109th Ave, upstream of Pine Lake 

o Lower Badger Creek at CR 114 

o Marshall County Ditch 20 

o O’ Briens Creek 

o Pennington County Ditch 21 at 135th Ave NE 

o Poplar River at CR 118, near the Lost River confluence northwest of Brooks  

o Red Lake County Ditch 23 

o Silver Creek at CR 111 

o South Cormorant River 

o Terrebonne Creek 

o Thief River at CSAH 7 



36 

 

 

Fish and aquatic macroinvertebrates rely on dissolved oxygen in water for survival. Dissolved oxygen can 

enter the water through mechanical means (splashing over rocks, wave action) 

or through the photosynthesis process of aquatic vegetation. Low dissolved 

oxygen levels (<5 mg/l) were found in the following rivers and streams during 

2017 monitoring for the District’s long-term monitoring program (alphabetical 

order). 

1. Branch 200 of Judicial Ditch 11 

2. Burnham Creek at CSAH 48  

3. Chiefs Coulee at Dewey Ave in Thief River Falls 

4. Clear Brook at CSAH 92  

5. Clear Brook at CSAH 49 

6. Clearwater River at CSAH 10 

7. Grand Marais Creek at 110th St. NW  

8. Hill River  

• 290th Ave SE*  

• 310th Ave SE (longitudinal sampling) 

• 320th St. SE (longitudinal sampling) 

• CSAH 35  

• Hill River Lake outlet (longitudinal sampling) 

• 345th Ave SE (longitudinal sampling)  

• CSAH 6 (longitudinal sampling)  

• 365th Ave SE (longitudinal sampling) 

• 380th Ave SE (longitudinal sampling)  

• 340th St. SE (east crossing, longitudinal sampling)  

• 350th St. SE (longitudinal sampling) 

• 355th St. SE (longitudinal sampling)  

• CSAH 3 (longitudinal sampling) 

• CSAH 29 (longitudinal sampling) 

9. Judicial Ditch 73 (Poplar River Diversion ditch) at the Badger Lake Inlet  

10. Little Black River at CR 102 

11. Lost River  

a. CSAH 28  

b. CR 139 

c. 530th St. 

d. Pine Lake inlet  

e. 109th Ave, upstream of Pine Lake  

f. Lindberg Lake Rd. 

g. CSAH 20 

12. Lower Badger Creek at CR 114  

13. O’ Briens Creek  

14. Moose River at Hwy. 89  

15. Polk County Ditch 14 near the Maple Lake outlet 

16. Red Lake County Ditch 23  

17. Silver Creek 

• CR 139 (Anderson Lake inlet, longitudinal sampling)  

• 161st Ave (longitudinal sampling) 

• CSAH 18 (longitudinal sampling)   

  



37 

 

 

18. Thief River at 380th St NE  

19. Walker Brook at CSAH 19  

 

The highest (best) dissolved oxygen concentration recorded for the District’s long-term monitoring program in 

2017 was 18.36 mg/L at the 150th Ave SE crossing of Lower Badger Creek. That may have been a case of 

supersaturation in stagnant water.  

 

The lowest (worst) dissolved oxygen concentration found at a District long-term monitoring site was 0.01 

mg/L in the Hill River at 380th Ave SE and JD 73 at the Badger Lake inlet.  

 

The state’s water quality standard for total phosphorous varies by river nutrient region. Rivers and tributaries 

in the western part of the District have to meet a 0.150 mg/l standard in the South River Nutrient Region. 

Rivers and tributaries assigned to the Central River Nutrient region have to meet a 0.100 mg/l standard. Rivers 

and tributaries in the eastern part of the District have to meet a more protective standard of 0.050 mg/l in the 

North River Nutrient Region. High total phosphorus concentrations relative to the State of Minnesota’s new 

regionalized river eutrophication nutrient criteria were recorded in samples collected at the following sites.  

1. North River Nutrient Region (>0.05 mg/L), where applicable:  

• Blackduck River at Deer Trail Rd.  

• Clear Brook at Hwy 92 in Clearbrook  

• Clearwater River at CSAH 24, upstream of Clearwater Lake 

• Clearwater River at CSAH 2 

• Darrigan’s Creek at CSAH 23  

• North Cormorant River at CSAH 36  

• O’ Briens Creek at Harvest Rd.  

• Ruffy Brook at CSAH 11 

• Silver Creek at CR 111  

• South Cormorant River at CSAH 37  

 

2. Central River Nutrient Region (>0.1 mg/L), where applicable: 

• Chiefs Coulee at Dewey Ave in Thief River Falls 

• Clearwater River at CSAH 10 

• Clearwater River, north of Plummer 

• Clearwater River at the CSAH 12 crossing near Terrebonne  

• Hill River at CR 119, north of Brooks  

• Judicial Ditch 30, north of Thief River Falls 

• Judicial Ditch 73 near Rydell National Wildlife Refuge  

• Lost River at 109th Ave, upstream of Pine Lake  

• Mud River at the city park in Grygla   

• Pennington County Ditch 21 at 135th Ave NE 

• Pennington County Ditch 70 outlet (1.9 mg/L) 

• Poplar River at CSAH 30 near Fosston  

• Poplar River at CR 118 

 

3.  South River Nutrient Region (>0.15 mg/L), where applicable:   

• Brown’s Creek at County Road 101* 

• Burnham Creek at 320th Ave SW* 

• Chief’s Coulee at Dewey Ave. in Thief River Falls * 

• Clear Brook at CSAH 49* 

  



38 

 

 

 

• Clearwater River at CSAH 10* 

• Cyr Creek * 

• Grand Marais Creek at 130th St. NW* 

• Grand Marais Creek at 110th St. NW * 

• Heartsville Coulee at 13th Street, in East Grand Forks*  

• Hill River at CSAH 35* 

• Hill River at 335th Ave SE* 

• Lost River at the Pine Lake inlet * 

• Lost River at 109th Ave, upstream of Pine Lake * 

• North Cormorant River * 

• Pennington County Ditch 21 * 

• Pennington County Ditch 70 outlet * 

• Polk County Ditch 2 at CSAH 20* 

• Polk County Ditch 2 at CR 62 * 

• Poplar River at CR 118 * 

• Poplar River at 310th St SE * 

• Red Lake County Ditch 23* 

• Red Lake River at Fisher* 

• Silver Creek at CR 111* 

• Thief River at 380th St. NE* 

 

The highest 2017 concentration of total phosphorus, 6.74 mg/L, was found in the Poplar River at CSAH 30 

near Fosston while Fosston lagoons were (unlawfully) discharging into the river.  

 

The lowest 2017 concentration of total phosphorus, 0.012 mg/L, was found in the Clearwater River at CSAH 

2.    

 

High biochemical oxygen demand (BOD) concentrations (>3.5 in the South or >2.0 in the Central River 

Nutrient Region) were found in the following streams. Most of these streams were also on the 2016 list.  

• Clearwater River at CSAH 10* 

• Heartsville Coulee at 13th St. SE in East Grand Forks (7.48 mg/L)* 

• Poplar River 

o CR 118* 

o 310th St. SE 

o CSAH 30, north of Fosston* 

• Mud River   

o Hwy 89* 

o Grygla * 

• Red Lake River at CSAH 219 (Highlanding)* 

• Thief River at 140th Ave NE  

 

Data from 2017 water quality monitoring was entered into the District’s database, transferred to an EQuIS 

submittal template, reviewed for accuracy, then submitted to the MPCA for storage in the EQuIS database. A 

total of 714 records were submitted to the MPCA. More than 265 of those records involved the collection of 

water quality samples. Data collected by the East Polk SWCD staff on the Mud River in Grygla and sites 

within East Polk County were entered into the MPCA data submittal template, reviewed and submitted to the 

MPCA. 

 
   



39 

 

 

Dissolved Oxygen Logger Deployments 

A dissolved oxygen logger was deployed in the Mud River near Grygla throughout the months of August and 

September 2017. Regular samples were collected from the Mud River at the Grygla city park. Water was also 

tested for blue-green algae. No positive test results for blue-green algae were discovered. Dissolved oxygen 

levels dropped below 5 mg/L more frequently in 2017 than they did in 2016, mostly due to periods of low 

flow.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



40 

 

 

Dissolved oxygen loggers were installed in Polk County Ditch 2 and Grand Marais Creek during the summer 

of 2017 while there was flow in those channels. Polk County Ditch 2 went dry relatively quickly, so the data 

from that location was limited. The discrete and continuous DO data from Grand Marais Creek showed that 

the dissolved oxygen levels were very poor at that location during the summer of 2017. The maximum 

dissolved oxygen levels failed to reach 5 mg/L on some days.  

 

 

 



41 

 

 

A dissolved oxygen logger was deployed in Cyr Creek in 2017. The District worked with the Minnesota 

Pollution Control Agency (MPCA) to conduct a special study on Cyr Creek and get a better understanding of 

what was causing low dissolved oxygen levels in the stream. Dissolved oxygen levels were frequently low 

while there was flow and the creek went dry by the end of June. Flow resumed in early July after a rainfall 

event, but the creek was dry, again, by mid-July.   

    

A dissolved oxygen logger was deployed in Burnham Creek at 180th Ave SW, which is the crossing 

downstream of the Spring Gravel Dam stream restoration project. Dissolved oxygen levels were good while 

there was measurable flow at the site. Dissolved oxygen began dropping below 5 mg/L as flow decreased and 

ceased in late July and early August. The average amount of daily dissolved oxygen fluctuation (2.95 mg/L) 

met MPCA river eutrophication standards.  

    



42 

 

 

Dissolved oxygen loggers were also deployed at 5 sites in the Clearwater River Watershed. These sites were 

monitored to provide a better understanding of conditions in streams that are impaired by low dissolved 

oxygen.  

• Red Lake County Ditch 23 at CSAH 1 

• Clearwater River at CSAH 10 

• Hill River at 290th Ave SE 

• Nassett Creek 

• Lost River at CSAH 2 

 

The dissolved oxygen logger deployments in Red Lake County Ditch 23 confirmed that low dissolved oxygen 

levels are a limiting factor (stressor) for aquatic life in the ditch. A lack of flow appears to be negatively 

affecting dissolved oxygen.  

Dissolved oxygen levels in the channelized portion of the Clearwater River are still being negatively affected 

by late summer discharge from wild rice paddies. Dissolved oxygen levels at the CSAH 10 crossing were low 

for an extended period from mid-July through August. This site was monitored in response to a 2016 

complaint about late-summer fish kills and swimmer’s itch in the river.  

Continuous dissolved oxygen monitoring had been conducted near the downstream end of the Hill River at CR 

119 and near Hill River Lake at CSAH 35. The dissolved oxygen levels at those two sites were completely 

opposite. Dissolved oxygen levels were nearly always adequate at CR 119, but almost always dropped below 

the standard at CSAH 35. Downstream of where the Hill River flows out of Hill River Lake, the river flows 

north through an area with a relatively low gradient. Portions of the river resemble wetlands along this reach. 

After flowing north, the river turns west and the gradient increases. The Hill River was monitored at a location 

near the upper end of the westward-flowing portion of the river to test the hypothesis that dissolve oxygen 

levels improve as the river begins flowing west and to determine the extent of the dissolved oxygen problem. 

The dissolved oxygen levels at 290th Ave SE were much better than the levels that were found at CSAH 35, 

though not as good as the conditions at CR 119. Dissolved oxygen levels were good at 290th Ave SE until 

flows decreased and the channel began to fill with vegetation in the latter part of the summer.  

Nassett Creek is a designated trout stream and is required to meet a higher standard for dissolved oxygen (7 

mg/L). The MPCA determined that the creek was impaired by low dissolved oxygen during the 2016 water 

quality assessment. The 2017 dissolved oxygen logger deployment indicated that the creek is meeting the 

dissolved oxygen standard at the furthest downstream road crossing. An examination of discrete monitoring 

data from the site found that the next crossing upstream has had more problems with low dissolved oxygen 

levels, partially due to the influence of beaver dams.  

Although the Lost River at CSAH 2 is a free-flowing stream with relatively clean water, the river frequently 

failed to meet the dissolved oxygen standard throughout 2017 dissolved oxygen logger deployments.  

 

 



43 

 

 

 

 

 



44 

 

 

 

 

 



45 

 

 

 

 

Thief River Falls Stormwater Sampling 
 

The District conducted stormwater sampling in 2017 to help with the Thief River Falls Stormwater 

Assessment that is being conducted by the City of Thief River Falls, Pennington County Soil and Water 

Conservation District, and a consultant. District and city staff met to identify the locations of priority 

stormwater outlets. High concentrations of sediment, E. coli bacteria, and phosphorus were found at multiple 

stormwater outlets. The city and the SWCD have worked with a consultant to produce a final report for their 

stormwater study. The study identified fifteen potential stormwater projects throughout the city.  

   

 



46 

 

 

Tindolph Beach Closing and Sampling 
 

 
 

The beach in LaFave Park in Thief River Falls (Tindolph 

Beach) was closed due to poor water quality in August of 2017. 

District staff collected water samples that were analyzed for E. 

coli bacteria and the presence of algal toxins. The water 

appeared green with algae and duckweed. The ground was 

covered with goose droppings. A representative of the KTRF 

radio station spoke with District staff while they were at the 

beach collecting samples and asked if the results could be 

shared. Test results were shared with local media and city staff. 

No algal toxins were found in the samples. E. coli 

concentrations, however, were very high. E. coli samples were 

collected from the west side, east side, and center of the beach 

area. The samples were collected at an approximate depth of 2 

feet (knee-deep). Concentrations ranged from 1,413.6 

MPN/100ml to 2,419.6 MPN/100ml and emphatically validated 

the city’s decision to close the beach. The Minnesota Pollution 

Control Agency’s acute standard for E. coli bacteria is 1,260 

MPN/100ml and the chronic (monthly geometric mean) 

standard is 126 MPN/100ml. The situation was featured in most 

local news outlets in both video and print.  

 

To answer a question about water quality in the open-water 

portion of the Thief River Falls Reservoir, E. coli samples were 

collected from the 1st Street Bridge. The results of those 

samples were relatively low and did not exceed any water quality standards. So, the E. coli problem at 

Tindolph Beach does not seem to be causing a problem downstream or within the open-water portion of the 

reservoir, most likely due to dilution. 

  



47 

 

 

Longitudinal Sampling 
 
Longitudinal E. coli samples were collected along the E. coli-impaired reach of the Lost River between Pine 

Lake and Anderson Lake. E. coli concentrations were high throughout the entire reach.  

 

 

Longitudinal dissolved oxygen measurements along the Lost River revealed portions of the stream where 

dissolved oxygen levels are depressed. Some of the lower concentrations were found near areas where water is 

ponded (Anderson Lake and the CSAH 28 crossing).  

 



48 

 

 

Dissolved oxygen measurements and E. coli samples were collected at all crossings of Clear Brook (a tributary 

of Silver Creek that flows through the town of Clearbrook to learn more about what might be causing water 

quality problems in that stream.  

  

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 



49 

 

 

Longitudinal E. coli sampling along Silver Creek and its tributary Clear Brook showed that efforts to reduce 

bacterial contamination should focus on Clear Brook and the confluence of the two streams (where there is a 

livestock operation).  

 

 
 

 
 



50 

 

 

Longitudinal dissolved oxygen measurements were collected along the Hill River. Dissolved oxygen levels are 

reduced in the river as it flows from Cross Lake to the Olga area, but then begin to recover as it flows toward 

Hill River Lake. Dissolved oxygen levels are low in the portion of the Hill River that leaves Hill River Lake 

and flows north. Concentrations improve as the river flows west toward Brooks.  

 

 
 

 



51 

 

 

 
 
Longitudinal E. coli samples were collected along the Mud River. The concentration at the South Pool outlet 

of the Moose River Impoundment was low. Concentrations began exceeding the standard at Flintlock Road 

and peaked at Dylan Road. Fecal DNA analysis of samples collected in the Mud River (at the city park) found 

ruminant (livestock) and human fecal DNA markers.  

 

 
 



52 

 

 

Longitudinal E. coli samples and dissolved oxygen measurements were collected along the Lost River and 

Nassett Creek upstream of Pine Lake. There were multiple locations where E. coli concentrations increased to 

levels that exceeded the 126 MPN/100ml standard.  

 

 
 



53 

 

 

Dissolved oxygen levels within Nassett Creek improved from upstream to downstream and met the 7 mg/L 

standard at the two Nesset Creek Drive crossings. Dissolved oxygen levels in this portion of the Lost River 

were extremely low.  

 

 
 



54 

 

 

Watershed Restoration and Protection (WRAP) Projects 
 
The Federal Clean Water Act (1972) requires each State to develop plans for the identification and restoration 

of waterbodies that are deemed impaired by state regulations. A TMDL is required by the U.S. Environmental 

Protection Agency (USEPA) as a stipulation of the Clean Water Act. A TMDL identifies the pollutant sources 

causing the impairment. It is a calculation of the maximum amount of pollutant that can enter a waterbody 

without causing the concentration of the pollutant within the waterbody to exceed water quality standards.  

 

The State of Minnesota has adopted a “watershed approach” to address the state’s 80 major watersheds 

(denoted by 8-digit hydrologic unit code or HUC). This watershed approach incorporates water quality 

assessment, watershed analysis, civic engagement, planning, implementation, and measurement of results into 

a 10-year cycle that addresses both restoration and protection. The watershed-based strategy recognizes the 

connectivity of the watershed better than the reach-by-reach system. An impairment may extend over multiple 

assessment units. Impairments for different parameters may be linked by common stressors and/or pollutants. 

The stakeholder process will also be helped through this strategy. Not only is there an increased emphasis on 

civic engagement, but the process also avoids the redundancy that could occur when addressing TMDLs with a 

reach-by-reach strategy. The watershed-based, comprehensive implementation plan will be more useful and 

effective because it will address pollutant sources and stressors throughout the watershed. It will also reduce 

the complexity of incorporating TMDL implementation plans into watershed management plans.  

 

Thief River Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy (WRAPS) 

 

The District completed the Thief River WRAPS project in 2016. Draft Thief River Watershed TMDL and 

WRAPS Documents were completed in 2016 after multiple rounds of reviews and edits. In 2017, the District 

entered into a contract to add a TMDL for a Mud River E. coli impairment and to revise the Thief River 

documents before and after the public comment period. The documents were revised in late 2017 using 

feedback from the MPCA and the EPA. A lot of time was spent on editing and improving the nonpoint 

sediment sources section of the WRAPS in response to original and new comments from USFWS staff. Both 

reports will proceed through the public comment period in 2018.  

 

The number of Thief River Watershed impairments on the 2014 USEPA’s 303(d) list of impaired waters has 

been reduced to four after multiple reaches were recommended for delisting during the 2013 assessment. The 

Moose River and the Mud River remain impaired by low dissolved oxygen (DO). The Thief River downstream 

of Agassiz Pool is listed as impaired by high turbidity. The state’s new 30 mg/l Central Nutrient Region total 

suspended solids (TSS) standard was used to develop a TMDL to address the turbidity impairment. E. coli 

levels have improved at the downstream end of the Mud River. The river meets the MPCA’s standards when 

data from the whole 09020304-507 assessment unity is combined for an assessment. A delisting was 

anticipated. The Mud River is still listed as impaired by high E. coli because sites near Grygla still exceeded 

standards. A TMDL will be established for that impairment.  

 

Following completion, the TMDL Report, the WRAPS report, and other technical reports referenced in this 

document will be publicly available on the MPCA website for the Thief River watershed:  

https://www.pca.state.mn.us/water/watersheds/thief-river. These and other documents can also be found on 

watershed-based web pages created for the Thief River:  http://www.rlwdwatersheds.org/wraps-info. 

https://www.pca.state.mn.us/water/watersheds/thief-river
http://www.rlwdwatersheds.org/wraps-info


55 

 

 

 



56 

 

 

 



57 

 

 



58 

 

 



59 

 

 

Red Lake River Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy (WRAPS) 

 
The District completed the Red Lake River WRAPS project in 2016. The District entered into a contract in 

2017 to revise the documents before and after the public comment period. The TMDL and WRAPS reports 

were revised using feedback from the MPCA and should progress through the public comment period in 2018.  

 

The Red Lake River Watershed TMDL addresses 31 impairments of aquatic life and/or recreation that have 

been found within 19 reaches of the Red Lake River and its tributaries. Turbidity and/or total suspended solids 

(TSS) impairments were found in five reaches of the Red Lake River between the Pennington County Ditch 96 

confluence and the Red River of the North. Impairments due to chronically high concentrations of E. coli 

bacteria have been found along six reaches of Red Lake River tributaries. Impairments due to low dissolved 

oxygen (DO) levels have been identified in three reaches along tributaries of the Red Lake River. Low index 

of biotic integrity (IBI) scores have resulted in macroinvertebrate IBI (M-IBI) impairments for seven reaches 

and fish IBI (F-IBI) impairments for ten reaches along tributaries of the Red Lake River. 

 

The TMDL and WRAPS reports recommend strategies for reducing nonpoint contributions of TSS using 

various erosion control strategies. Sources of pollution have been identified and described along with 

strategies for addressing those sources. Recommendations are also given for the improvement of DO levels 

and the quality of aquatic life. Insufficient base flow is the most common and impactful stressor for aquatic 

biology and DO within impaired Red Lake River tributaries. F-IBI scores are also limited by fish passage 

barriers in some reaches. No pollutant-based causes of DO or biological impairments are needed. The reports 

also include information about future monitoring plans, cost estimation, and civic engagement strategies. 

Restoration and protection strategies were compiled for application to the watershed, as a whole, and for each 

HUC 10 subwatershed. 

 

The results of an updated HSPF modeling process were provided to the District by RESPEC. Maps and charts 

were updated with the new information. Some maps were improved. The Heartsville Coulee dissolved oxygen 

impairment was removed from the list of impaired waters by the MPCA (it was recategorized) because it is 

being caused by non-pollutant factors. Stressor and nonpoint pollutant source summary tables were added to 

the WRAPS.  

 

District staff reviewed a draft version of the MPCA’s Red Lake River Watershed Monitoring and Assessment 

Report and submitted comments to MPCA staff. Links to the monitoring and assessment report and other Red 

Lake River documents were added to the www.rlwdwatersheds.org website. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

http://www.rlwdwatersheds.org/


60 

 

 

 



61 

 

 

 

 



62 

 

 

Grand Marais Creek Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy (WRAPS) 

 
Emmons and Olivier Resources, Inc. (EOR) staff and District staff worked to create a draft Grand Marais 

Creek Watershed TMDL report and a draft Grand Marais Creek WRAPS report that were completed in June 

2017.  District staff completed Mann-Kendall trend analysis for long-term monitoring sites in the Grand 

Marais Creek watershed. The reports will be revised by the District before and after the public comment period 

in 2018.  

 

The TMDL report addresses E. coli impairments in three streams located in the Grand Marais Creek 

Watershed that are on Minnesota’s Draft 2016 303(d) list of impaired waters. Following completion of the 

WRAPS process, the Grand Marais Creek WRAPS Report will be publicly available on the MPCA Grand 

Marais Creek Watershed website: https://www.pca.state.mn.us/water/watersheds/red-river-north-grand-marais-

creek. Additional supporting information and reports can be found on the Red Lake Watershed District’s 

watershed-based website:  http://www.rlwdwatersheds.org. 

 

                     

https://www.pca.state.mn.us/water/watersheds/red-river-north-grand-marais-creek
https://www.pca.state.mn.us/water/watersheds/red-river-north-grand-marais-creek


63 

 

 

Clearwater River Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy (WRAPS) 

 
The District worked on writing the Clearwater River TMDL and WRAPS reports in 2017. TMDLs were 

calculated. Assessment statistics were updated by using more recent data that was collected from 2007 through 

2016. Assessment statistics were ranked to prioritize the reaches of impaired streams and rivers that are closest 

to meeting water quality standards and the reaches of unimpaired waters that are closest to becoming impaired. 

The District assisted the MPCA with the stressor identification process and summarized the results of that 

process with the TMDL. The MPCA’s completed watershed monitoring and assessment and stressor 

identification documents can be found on the MPCA website:  

https://www.pca.state.mn.us/water/watersheds/clearwater-river. Draft TMDL and WRAPS reports will be 

completed in 2018. Sections and features of the reports that were created in 2017 included: 

• Trend analysis  

• Project Overview 

• Applicable standards 

• Wasteload allocations 

• Load duration curves 

• Total maximum daily loads 

• Recommended load reductions 

• Description of wild rice production in the 

Clearwater River watershed. 

• Loading capacity and load allocation 

methods 

• Reserve capacity and margin of safety 

sections 

• PTMApp description  

• Longitudinal total suspended solids 

assessment for the Clearwater River. 

• Revised Clearwater River HSPF sediment 

source pie chart 

• Descriptions of biological stressors  

• Permitted sources of total suspended solids 

• Permitted and non-permitted E. coli 

sources 

• Table of direct drainage areas for impaired 

streams and lakes 

• Protection considerations 

• Maps 

o Water quality impairments 

o HUC10 subwatersheds 

o Index of biotic integrity scores 

o Land Use 

o Pfankuch stream stability ratings 

 

The Minnesota Pollution Control Agency sent a notice that they officially delisted dissolved oxygen 

impairments on two reaches of the Clearwater River (09020305-647 – Ruffy Brook to JD1 and 09020305-648 

– JD1 to Lost River). The MPCA also officially removed the E. coli impairment on Branch A of JD 21 

(09020304-555) from the Draft 2018 303(d) List of Impaired Waters. The recategorization of the dissolved 

oxygen impairment of Walker Brook (09020305-509 - Walker Brook Lake to Clearwater River), has also been 

officially reviewed and approved.  

 

District staff met with lake associations to share information about the project and discuss potential projects. A 

newsletter was created and mailed to advertise a September public open house event that was held in Red Lake 

Falls. Short presentations were prepared for the event and were given on each 30-minute mark during the 

event. There was opportunity for small group or one-on-one discussion at informational booths.  “Water 

Minute” scripts were created for the Clearwater River WRAPS, dissolved oxygen, E. coli bacteria, and 

turbidity/total suspended solids. The scripts were read and recorded by Joel Heitkamp and played as public 

service announcements on local radio stations. District staff wrote an article about the Clearwater River for the 

Polk County Newsletter. 

https://www.pca.state.mn.us/water/watersheds/clearwater-river


64 

 

 

 
 

 



65 

 

 

 



66 

 

 



67 

 

 

 



68 

 

 



69 

 

 

Upper/Lower Red Lakes Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy (WRAPS) 

 

The effort to complete a WRAPS project for the Upper and Lower Red Lakes major watershed is being led by 

the Red Lake Department of Natural Resources. They have been collecting flow data, sampling data, and 

continuous dissolved oxygen data. The Red Lake DNR conducted investigative E. coli sampling. They 

collected microbial source tracking samples to identify sources of E. coli bacteria pollution at 14 locations. 

Fecal DNA markers for ruminants (livestock, 4 sites), beaver (6 sites), humans (1 site), and birds (3 sites) were 

detected.   

 

Improvements were made to Upper/Lower Red lakes web pages on the www.rlwdwatersheds.org website. 

• http://www.rlwdwatersheds.org/2297560-general-info 

• http://www.rlwdwatersheds.org/2297608-wrap-info 

The MPCA has completed a watershed monitoring assessment report and a stressor identification report for the 

watershed. Local staff provided input for the stressor identification report.  

• https://www.pca.state.mn.us/water/watersheds/upperlower-red-lake 

 

  

http://www.rlwdwatersheds.org/
http://www.rlwdwatersheds.org/2297560-general-info
http://www.rlwdwatersheds.org/2297608-wrap-info
https://www.pca.state.mn.us/water/watersheds/upperlower-red-lake


70 

 

 

Public Education 

• District staff helped judge the Franklin Middle School Science Fair.  

• District staff presented on water quality parameters at the 14th Annual Red River Basin Water Quality 

Monitoring Training Session.  

• The District continued to support the River Watch program, which is described in more detail in its 

own section of this report.  

• District staff participated in the Pennington County Outdoor Education Day. 

• District staff participated in the Northwest Minnesota Water Festival (Warren and Fertile). 

• Monthly water quality reports are available online at http://www.redlakewatershed.org/monthwq.html. 

• The District participated in the Thief River Falls Community Expo 

• An open house event was held for the Clearwater River WRAPS project in September 2017. 

• Information about the Red Lake Watershed District, programs, and contacts is available at the 

www.redlakewatershed.org. 

• Watershed-based information (reports, photos, projects, contacts) for the Red Lake River, 

Upper/Lower Red Lakes, Clearwater River, Thief River, and Grand Marais Creek major watersheds 

can be found online at:  www.rlwdwatersheds.org.  

• The District maintains a Facebook page:  https://www.facebook.com/Red-Lake-Watershed-District-

266521753412008/. 

• The Board approved a donation of $300 to the Area I Envirothon to promote education and awareness 

of water quality issues. 

 

Water Quality Partnerships 

The District provides support to other organizations that are working on projects that will improve water 

quality and habitat within the District’s boundaries. That support can come in the form of technical 

advice/information, financial support, and project administration support. The District considers collaborations 

to be very important and encourage local governmental units to continue their request for assistance from the 

District wherever possible. 

• The District continued to support the River Watch program.  

• District staff participate in Water Resource Advisory Committee (SWCD planning) meetings.  

• The Red Lake River Corridor Enhancement Joint Powers Group has been revived. The group 

successfully applied to get the Red Lake River corridor recognized as a trail of regional or statewide 

significance and to receive funding for projects.  

• The Beltrami SWCD, Clearwater SWCD, Clearwater Area Lake Association and the District formed a 

partnership to successfully apply for an Enbridge Energy Ecofootprint Grant to restore and protect 

shoreline areas of Clearwater Lake from further erosion.  

• District and RRWMB staff worked together to submit comments on the proposed amendments to state 

water quality standards, which will establish a Tiered Aquatic Life Uses (TALU) framework and 

modify Class 2 beneficial use designations. 

• District staff met with a graduate student who is examining alternative strategies for restoring a 

portion of the Mud River upstream of Agassiz Pool.  

• The West Polk SWCD received grants to do an inventory of the Burnham Creek subwatershed and to 

stabilize the outlet of a tributary to Burnham Creek (Project 134). 

• The District paid for the repair of a YSI sonde that is used by the East Polk SWCD for the collection 

of water quality data.  

• The District is working with partners on the Red Lake River 1W1P planning work group and Houston 

Engineering on a project that will update the Red Lake River PTMApp model.  

• The Board approved a partnership with the USFWS and submittal of a grant application for potential 

wetland restoration in the Thief River Watershed and other various locations.   

http://www.redlakewatershed.org/monthwq.html
http://www.redlakewatershed.org/
http://www.rlwdwatersheds.org/
https://www.facebook.com/Red-Lake-Watershed-District-266521753412008/
https://www.facebook.com/Red-Lake-Watershed-District-266521753412008/


71 

 

 

• District staff participate in the Polk County AIS Task Force that meets several times each year to 

discuss appropriation of AIS funds.  

• The West Polk SWCD is planning to host a 1000 square foot traveling exhibit called We Are Water. 

The exhibit features state wide and local information about Minnesota’s water story, bringing together 

personal narratives, historical materials and scientific information. District staff have participated in 

planning meetings. A 1000 ft2 exhibit will be displayed in Crookston from January 20, 2019 through 

March 4, 2019, likely at Kiehle Hall on the University of Minnesota, Crookston campus.  

• District staff and managers participated in the Governor Dayton’s 25 by ’25 Town Hall event at the 

University of Minnesota, Crookston.  

• The Board approved a Clean Water Fund Assistance Contract with the West Polk SWCD for 

stabilization of the outlet of Polk County Ditch 63, Project No. 134.  

• The Board approved the reimbursement of analysis expenses for water quality samples that were 

collected in Maple Lake by the Maple Lake Improvement District.  

 

2018 Plans 
 

• Thief River Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy public review process 

o Assist MPCA staff with responses to public comments and prepare TMDL/WRAPS reports 

for final approval. 

• Red Lake River Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy public review process 

o Assist MPCA with responses to public comments on draft TMDL/WRAPS reports. 

Incorporate appropriate public comments into the TMDL and WRAPS reports and prepare 

documents for final state and USEPA approval.   

• Clearwater River Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy 

o Complete a draft Clearwater River Watershed Total Maximum Daily Load Report 

o Complete a draft Clearwater River Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy 

o Edit draft WRAPS/TMDL reports using comments from state and local agencies 

o Clearwater River Open House Event  

o Assist MPCA with responses to public comments on draft TMDL/WRAPS reports. 

• Sampling for the District’s long-term monitoring program in May, June, July, and September  

• Continuous dissolved oxygen monitoring at several locations.  

• Stage and flow monitoring 

• Contribute to the Thief River 1W1P process. 

• Public education 

• River Watch  

• River of Dreams 

• Assist SWCDs with grant-writing  

• The District will reimburse the sample analysis expenses for 9 lakes in the Clearwater River watershed 

that will be sampled by the East Polk SWCD in 2018, 2019, and 2020.  

  



72 

 

 

River Watch 
 

In 2017, eight schools located within Red Lake Watershed District’s boundaries participated in River Watch. 

Four of which received direct support from RLWD staff, they included: Win-E-Mac, Red Lake County 

Central, Red Lake Falls and Clearbrook-Gonvick.  International Water Institute (IWI) and University of MN 

Crookston led the remaining school groups in the watershed which included: Fisher, Red Lake, Crookston, and 

Sacred Heart of East Grand Forks, MN.  River Watch water quality monitoring began late April and ended late 

October.  Approximately 50 different sites were sampled 3 or more times in 2017 by River Watch schools 

within RLWD boundaries.  

 

River Watch water quality data is part of a data set used by the Minnesota Pollution Control Agency to 

conduct use assessment. There are some areas within the watershed where River Watch data is the only data 

collected, making River Watch a very beneficial program for collecting water quality data within the 

watershed district. 

 

         

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               

October 2016, IWI held one of three River Watch 2017 Kick Offs at the RLWD office in Thief River Falls, 

MN.  Schools received a poster and video assignment to be presented at the spring 2017 River Watch Forum.  

This year’s assignment was “Our Place in the Basin: Understanding our Subwatersheds”.  River Watch teams 

were given a worksheet to fill out about the subwatershed they sample.  They were to use the information from 

the worksheet to create a 30-60 minute lesson plan for 4th graders in their school. Kickoff attendees were also 

treated to a paddle on the Thief and Red Lake Rivers, in large 10-person voyager canoes.    

          

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



73 

 

 

 

River Watch Forum  

March 12-18, 2017 was proclaimed as River Watch Week by Minnesota Governor Mark Dayton. 

                 

The annual River Watch forum was held on March 15, 2017 at the University of MN Crookston campus, 

where schools from North Dakota and Minnesota were represented. The theme for the 2017 forum was “Water 

– Any career Any Day”.  Keynote speaker Mike Jacobs, former editor and publisher of the Grand Forks 

Herald, talked about how water in the Red River of the North affected his career at the Herald and threw the 

newspaper into the spotlight during the devastating 1997 floods. The Grand Forks Herald won a Pulitzer Prize 

for Public Service in 1998 for its coverage of the 1997 flood. The breakout session was divided into different 

careers tracks with speakers from many career genres speaking about how water plays a role in their careers. 

Some of the career tracks included: education, advocacy, public health, nursing, emergency response, 

agriculture and landowners. A lively round of River Watch Jeopardy was played with Clearbrook-Gonvick 

taking home 3rd place. Clearbrook-Gonvick was also awarded the 10 Year Milestone award to being active in 

River Watch for a total of 10 years. 

 
 

     



74 

 

 

River Explores Kayak Trip – River Watch   

Red Lake County Central participated in a River Explorers kayak trip in June. The trip was led by the guidance 

of International Water Institute (IWI) staff.  Students observed river characteristics, local flora and fauna, and 

overcame challenges such as kayaking over a rock riffle rapid. Students were encouraged to take photos using 

water proof geotagging cameras, that log the exact location a picture is taken.  

 
On June 20th, RLCC started their paddle on the Clearwater River at Red Lake Co Road 1 bridge, Southwest of 

Plummer, MN ending where the Clearwater River passes under Red Lake Co Road 20 (4.2 river miles). Proper 

paddling techniques and safety measures were discussed before launching the kayaks. Students were given a 

handout printed on waterproof paper for them to take notes during the paddle, they were to write down their 

observations about habitat, wildlife, land use, areas of concern, etc. At the end of the trip the group discussed 

their observations. This program provides a great opportunity for students to experience kayaking around their 

communities. For one student, this was their first kayaking experience. 

Macro Invertebrate Sampling – River Watch 

The Red Lake County River Watch Team sampled for macro invertebrates in the Hill River, half a mile 

northwest of Brooks, MN in September. Students learned how to follow invertebrate sampling protocol, 

identify different habitat types to sample, proper use of equipment for collecting inverts, and sorting and 

identify invertebrates using a key. Students also learned which invertebrates are indicators of good and bad 

water quality. 

   



75 

 

 

 

Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
 

Mapping: Maps are created as needed to accommodate requests by District staff. It should be noted that 

RLWD created maps are not to be used as legal survey maps, and they are for reference use only. 

In 2017, a live working ArcGIS map was created for tracking parcel splits for the Thief River Falls Water 

Management District, RLWD Project 171A. 

GIS Data Storage: July 2017 RLWD installed a new server that would store all GIS data. GIS data had 

currently been stored on a desktop hard drive, which occasionally caused difficulties for other staff members 

that tried to access and save edits correctly. Having all GIS data now saved in a central location, unattached 

from a specific desktop hard drive allows other staff members to easily gain access to the many gigabytes 

worth of GIS data the District has. There are currently 640 gigabytes of data being stored on the new GIS 

drive.  

PTMApp (Prioritize Target and Measure Application)  
 

PTMApp is a GIS based application that uses LiDAR data and terrain analysis methods to prioritize field scale 

locations for conservation and best management practices. Generating data to prioritize resources/issues, target 

specific fields to place CPs and BMPs, and measure water quality improvement by tracking expected nutrient 

and sediment load reduction to priority resources. 

The tool enables users to build prioritized and targeted implementation scenarios, measure the cost-

effectiveness of the scenario for improving water quality, and report the results to pursue funds for project 

implementation.  

RLWD, in partnership with Pennington County SWCD was awarded an Accelerated Implantation Grant in 

2017 to help with the creation of data for PTMApp, run PTMApp, and evaluate the results in a written report 

to be presented to the Thief River 1W1P advisory board.  Much of the time spent for this project in 2017 was 

preparing required input data needed to run PTMApp.   

 

  



76 

 

 

Other Watershed Activities         
 

Permits (RLWD Project #90) 
 

In 2017 a total of 176 permit applications were received, of those, 28 were for subsurface tile projects.  This 

year was the second full year of the District’s subsurface drain tile permitting policy. 

The numbers listed below indicate the permits and how they are categorized within our rules for permitting:  

• 1 utility 

• 10 re-grade 

• 116 culvert/bridge    

• 15 drainage                                                                                       

• 28 drain tile 

• 1 wetlands 

• 1 land development 

• 1 water control basin 

• 3 channel stabilizations 

 

Applicants included state and county highway departments, railroads, townships, cities, utility & pipeline 

companies, State & Federal agencies, landowners, and private individuals.   

 

Examples of permitted work consisted of road and bridge projects, wetland restorations, erosion control 

projects, culvert installations, and ditch cleaning. Work associated with permit review may involve, watershed 

delineations, detailed surveys, drainage area and culvert sizing recommendations, and meetings.   

 

Permit applications are available on the District web site:www.redlakewatershed.org 

 

 

 
 

 

 

http://www.redlakewatershed.org/


77 

 

 

 

The District also dealt with permit violations relating to unpermitted/unauthorized work. In those cases, 

written warnings are sent explaining that if there is a second offense, the responsible person or entity could 

possibly be subject to an administrative fee, re-storing the work to the original condition, and paying for any 

engineering and attorney’s fees incurred by the District. 

 

To prevent violations, the District may perform surveys and establish proposed grades/elevations when 

necessary. Final approval for the work will be discussed with the proper public road authorities, whether it is 

the state, county or township.  

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

     
 

 

Red Lake County, Gervais Township – township road right-of-way 



78 

 

 

Wild Rice Water Allocation (RWLD Project #45) 
 

As a domesticated agricultural grain crop, wild rice is 

grown in paddies that are flooded with water to an 

average depth of about 1 foot. 

 

Wild rice production along the Clearwater River began in 

1968, and the water allocation project was petitioned by 

the growers in 1984. This involves the appropriation of 

water from the Clearwater River for the production of 

wild rice on approximately 12,000 acres of paddies.   

 

Spring flood storage capacity in the paddies is substantial, 

and amounts to about 23,000 acre-feet, which is 

equivalent to 1.1 inches of runoff. This storage helps to 

reduce downstream flood flows/peaks. 

 

When there is substantial flow in the river, no water 

allocation is necessary and the grower’s may pump as 

needed.   

 

However, during periods of low flow, the District 

allocates water to the growers. The allocation program 

ensures that each grower receives their appropriate share 

of available flow and that the protected flow of 36 cubic 

feet per second (cfs) is maintained in the Clearwater 

River.  

 

Paddies are typically drained during July and August to facilitate harvest.  

 

Some growers partially flood paddies in the fall season through freeze up. By doing this, it helps to reduce the 

need of pumping activity in the spring, at which time, water supplies may not be sufficient to meet all of their 

needs.  

 

2017 

 

During most of 2017, flows in the Clearwater 

River were above the minimum that would 

initiate allocation. Allocation was necessary for 

only about 1 week (March) in the spring and 1 

month (mid-October to mid-November) in the 

fall. Normal duties include correspondence 

with growers and recording river levels at 

various sites. The growers also provide 

valuable information on river conditions and 

stream gage data. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Typical pumping station  

Harvesting wild rice 

 

Wild rice paddy 



79 

 

 

Stream Flow & Pool Elevation Monitoring (RLWD Project #21) 
 

Stream flow monitoring is a vital on-going activity.  The District has an active stream gauging program and 

local volunteers assist us in recording gauge readings and monitoring river conditions during runoff events.  

Approximately 160 gauges of various types (staff, wire weight, 

automated) are located throughout the District. Many 

automated river level gauges within the district can be accessed 

via the internet and are extremely valuable to obtain “real time” 

data.  

 

The District deploys autonomous water level loggers in 

tributary streams and other important locations that are not 

gauged by state or federal flow monitoring stations. HOBO 

water level loggers were deployed at 24 sites in 2017. Flow 

monitoring results can be viewed within monthly water quality 

reports.  

 

District staff perform flow measurements and continue to develop stage (gauge height) and discharge (flow in 

cubic feet per second) curves at many locations.  This data, in conjunction with records and cooperative efforts 

from other agencies such as the U. S. Geological Survey (USGS), National Weather Service, and the MnDNR 

will help everyone better understand drainage and runoff characteristics within the District.   

 

The data that has been collected is valuable to assist in the operation and maintenance of existing projects and 

for the development of potential projects.   

 

   
 

   

Measuring flow Clearwater 

River at Plummer 

    Wire weight gauge on bridge 

Automated river gauge–Clearwater  R. 

at Red Lake Falls 

Typical 

staff gage 

at structure 

High-water staff gauge – Moose R.at  

Marshall Co.Hwy. #54 

 



80 

 

 

Snow Surveys 
 

Each year, the District performs snow surveys which usually begin in about the middle-to-late February and 

continues through the spring melt on an as needed basis if snow conditions change. Eight sampling sites are 

monitored throughout the District.  The locations of these sites are near impoundment facilities which are 

designed and operated for floodwater retention. 

 

In 2017, due to the existing weather and snowpack conditions, only one snow survey was obtained. On 

February 6th, the average depth of the snow at our sampling sites was 14.3 inches and the water equivalent 

(moisture content) was 2.77 inches.  

 

This was the 6th consecutive year that the spring melt and runoff was basically “non-eventful” in the basin. 

During the last half of February, there was a significant warming trend, some rain, much melting and ditches 

and culverts began “opening”. The landscape was mostly void of snow cover and the surface water runoff was 

nearly gone. The Red Lake River at Crookston and The Red River of the North at east Grand Forks did not 

even reach flood stage this spring.     

 

Measuring Procedure 

 

The depth of the snowpack is measured and a ‘core sample’ is obtained. The tube and snow core are weighed, 

and the “water content” of the snow is calculated. Five samples are taken at each site and averaged, for the 

data.  

 

    
          Establish base weight of   Obtaining snow depth              Establishing weight of snow 

            empty sampling tube                    and core sample           sample to calculate water content 
 

This information is forwarded to the National Weather Service, the North Central River Forecast Center and 

local officials. This helps them to estimate the amount of runoff and make flood forecasting predictions.  

 

The relationship between snowpack and the amount of snowmelt runoff is complex and depends on many 

factors.  

 

Some of the criteria used to determine flood potential of spring snowmelt are: 

• Depth of existing snow cover and snow moisture content 

• Existing soil moisture (was it wet or dry the previous fall?) 

• Depth of frost - or, is there any frost? 

• River ice and ice jams 

 

Fast and slow thaws: 

• Gradual or intermittent thawing may reduce the potential for serious flooding, especially in areas 

with minimal frost depths 

• Flood potential usually increases with late season melting, when a rapid melt is more likely; and if 

additional precipitation occurs during the runoff event. 



81 

 

 

Maintenance of Drainage Systems      
   

One of the many tasks of the District staff is to inspect the 279.01 miles of legal drainage ditch systems that 

are under the jurisdiction of the District. Semi-annual or annual inspections are conducted on these legal 

drainage systems to determine what type of repairs or any maintenance work that may be needed to keep these 

ditches functioning in good working order. Some of the many things that the District is looking for are, erosion 

around culverts, runoff event water damage to slopes or scouring of the ditch bottom, violation to the right of 

ways or buffer strips, and cattails or other weeds that may need to be sprayed.   

Larson Helicopters from Perham, Minnesota was again contracted this year to spray the Districts ditches. A 

helicopter is used because of our ditches are not accessible to a ground sprayer due to fences, wet ground, or 

ditches going cross country with no right of way to drive on. Being such a dry summer for rain, limited cattail 

control was needed on the District ditches and other projects this year. There was only a total of 43.11 miles of 

ditch that needed to be sprayed for cattails out of the 279.01 miles of ditch that are under the jurisdiction of the 

Red Lake Watershed District.   

Most of the District’s ditches have a permanent buffer strip, on one or both sides; by state law the buffer strip 

is required to be a minimum of 16 ½ feet wide but is wider on some ditches. The District is required to inspect 

these buffer strips and maintain them. Maintenance of these buffer strips will consist of mowing the ditch and 

its right-of-way at least once a year, starting on or about July 1st, spraying for any noxious weeds as needed, 

and trying to keep them from being encroached on by farming practices. Four to five contractors are hired each 

year to mow the many watershed projects and the approximately 161 miles of ditches that have ditch right-of-

way. 

Clearwater River (RLWD Project #3) 

This system did not require any spraying or moving this year. It had two large log jams about a mile apart 

approximately 5 miles NE of Plummer, MN. They were removed by Triple D Construction of Plummer, MN 

in late August, early September.  

   

          Before             After 

 

 



82 

 

 

   

          Before             After 

 

Lost River (RLWD Project #4) 

Our office received notice of blockage on the Lost River, and after an inspection two beaver dams were found 

in Sec 5 of Gully Twp. We contacted a local trapper and he successfully removed the nuisance beavers. Triple 

D Construction of Plummer, MN was notified to mechanically remove the dam and restore any damage to the 

banks caused by the removal.  

   

 

Ditch 3, (RLWD Project #7) 

This system was mowed and had 2.88 miles of spot spraying for thistle and other noxious weeds where 

needed. While inspecting the system there were two damaged flap gates, along with one missing flap gate that 

belong to the side water inlets pipes. The District replaced two of the gates and repaired the other.  



83 

 

 

State Ditch 83, Marshall County (RLWD Project #14) 

During the spring of 2017, Lunke Construction Inc. continued to spot-clean State Ditch 83. Some areas have 

had very large amounts of sediment built up over the years which have been and will continue to be excavated 

from the channel. There was close to 2 miles of bank stabilization done between 280th St NE and CR 7 due to 

erosion and sloughing of the river banks. Side water inlets with flap gates were replaced during the cleaning 

and stabilization process. Mowing was completed in August along most of the established access trails and 

other areas of this ditch system that the District has been maintaining during the past 12 years. The District 

staff again inspected the channel of State Ditch 83 by four-wheeler and pickup truck where it was possible. 

  

 

The table below depicts the year, number of sites and costs the District spot-cleaned since 2003 on State Ditch 

83.       

 
Year Sites Completed Construction Cost 

   
2003 5 $ 17,924.00 

2004 High water levels $          0.00 

2005 7 $ 39,033.00 

2006 11 $ 36,004.00 

2007 16 $ 42,144.00 

2008 11 $ 34,450.00 

2009 7 $ 41,574.00 

2010 High water levels                 $           0.00 

2011 6 $  41,400.00 

2012 11 $  80,480.00 

2013 5 $  30,096.00 

2014 High water levels                 $           0.00 

2015 4                 $  16,040.00 

2016 1                 $    2,615.00 

2017 12 $55,330.11 

Total 84  $437,090.11 

 



84 

 

 

Judicial Ditch 72 (RLWD Project #41) 

The District teamed with Triple D Construction of Plummer, MN to remove an old worn-out culvert and 

driveway in Sec.18 of Winsor Township. A new 60” by 60’ culvert was put in its place to ensure a wider and 

safer driveway crossing. Larson Helicopters, LLC of Perham, MN sprayed approximately 9.16 miles of thistle 

and noxious weeds, where needed, along this system. A field survey was conducted in September 2017 to 

determine/verify the systems right of way boundaries. 

   

                                          



85 

 

 

Judicial Ditch 2 Branch A (RLWD Project #48)  

The District received a call about a beaver dam in a roadside ditch that was causing water to back up into the 

field, roughly 4 miles north of Clearbrook, MN. After a field inspection was performed, the District hired a 

local trapper to remove nuisance beavers before bringing in Dyrdahl Construction of Bagley, MN to remove 

two dams and residual debris. This system was mowed but did not require any spraying this year. 

   

 

Grand Marais Creek (RLWD Project #60F)  

The District maintains the channel of the Grand Marais Creek in Polk county, and performs an annual 

inspection. This past summer a good portion of the north bank and Section 23, Esther Township, Polk County 

was mowed to control thistle that was spreading towards ag fields. The mowing was done by Olson 

Construction of Thief River Falls, MN. 

  



86 

 

 

The tables below list the mowing and spraying completed in 2017 on legal ditch system and projects under the 

jurisdiction of the District. 

Mowing 2017 

Project # System Contractor 

20 Ditch 7 Olson Construction 

5 Ditch 1 Olson Construction 

36 Ditch 8 Olson Construction 

113 Ditch 113 Olson Construction 

48 JD 2 Branch A Olson Construction 

49 JD2 Main Olson Construction 

170A TRF FDR Olson Construction 

122 Challenger Ditch Olson Construction 

109 Arveson Ditch Olson Construction 

7 Ditch 3 Olson Construction 

171 Ditch 14 Olson Construction 

161 Ditch 10 Olson Construction 

43B Burnham Creek Garry Gravel 

123 Baatz Petition Garry Gravel 

117 Johnson Petition Garry Gravel 

119 Polk County Ditch Improvement Garry Gravel 

60F RIM Land Garry Gravel 

60FF RIM Land Garry Gravel 

134 Polk County Ditch 63 Garry Gravel 

166 Ditch 11 Garry Gravel 

53 Krostue Petition Garry Gravel 

169 Ditch 12 Garry Gravel 

135 Polk County Ditch 33 Garry Gravel 

175 Ditch 15 Garry Gravel 

171 Ditch 14 Les Cota 

39 Ditch 9 Todd Stanley 

14 State Ditch 83 Lunke Construction 
 

 

Spraying 2017 

Project # System Miles Contractor 

122 Challenger Ditch 0.26 Larson Helicopters, LLC 

171, 171A Ditch 14 5.11 Larson Helicopters, LLC 

175 Ditch 15 9.91 Larson Helicopters, LLC 

41 JD 72 9.16 Larson Helicopters, LLC 

109 Clifford Arveson Ditch 1.28 Larson Helicopters, LLC 

170A Penn. County Ditch 75 2.2 Larson Helicopters, LLC 

134 Polk County Ditch 63 Imp. 2.34 Larson Helicopters, LLC 

7 Ditch 3 2.88 Larson Helicopters, LLC 

43B Burnham Creek Channel 4.43 Larson Helicopters, LLC 

119 Polk County 104,61,47,94 5.54 Larson Helicopters, LLC 
 



87 

 

 

                  

 

  



88 

 

 

Acronyms            
 

The following is a list of common acronyms used by the Red Lake Watershed District. 

 

State, Regional, and Local Government 

BWSR Board of Water and Soil Resources 

DNR Department of Natural Resources 

JPB Joint Powers Board 

LCMR Legislative Commission on Minnesota Rivers 

LGU Local Governmental Unit 

MnDOT Minnesota Department of Transportation 

MPCA Minnesota Pollution Control Agency 

MSTRWD Middle Snake Tamarac Watershed District 

RLWD Red Lake Watershed District 

SWCD Soil and Water Conservation District 

TAC Technical Advisory Committee 

Federal Agencies 

Corps U.S. Army Corps of Engineers 

EPA U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 

FEMA Federal Emergency Management Agency 

FSA Farm Services Administration 

NRCS Natural Resources Conservation Service 

USF&WS U.S. Fish & Wildlife Service 

USGS U.S. Geological Survey 

Organizations 

MAWD Minnesota Association of Watershed Districts 

Programs 

CLWP Comprehensive Local Water Planning 

CRP Conservation Reserve Program 

EQIP Environmental Quality Incentive Program 

FDR Flood Damage Reduction  

RIM Reinvest in Minnesota Program 

WCA Wetland Conservation Act 

SWAG Surface Water Assessment Grant 

WRAP Watershed Restoration and Protection 

WRAPS Watershed Restoration and Protection Strategy 

Terms 

CP Conservation Practice 

BMP Best Management Practice 

GIS Geographic Information System 

GPS Geographic Positioning System 

LIDAR Laser Imaging Detection and Ranging 

NPS Nonpoint Source Pollution 

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load 

PTMApp Prioritize Target Measure Application 

 

  



89 

 

 

Financial Report           
  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

               

 

 



(-TRTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOL]NTANTS
AND C,ONS[JLTANI S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Managers
Red Lake Watershed District
Thief River Falls, Minnesota

Report on the Financial Sfaúemenfs

We have audited the accompanying modified cash basis financial statements of the
governmental activities, each major fund, and the remaining fund information of the Red Lake

Watershed District as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial statements as

listed in the table of contents.

Managemenf's Respo nsibility for the Financial SÚafemenfs

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial

statements in accordance with the modified cash basis of accounting described in Note 1; this

includes determining that the modified cash basis of accounting is an acceptable basis for the
preparation of the financial statements in the circumstances. Management is also responsible

for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation

and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

A uditor's Respo nsi b i I ity

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We

conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United

States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards

require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor

considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes

www.bradymaftz.com

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
90

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text



evaluat¡ng the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the respective modified cash basis financial position of the governmental activities, each major
fund, and the remaining fund information of the Red Lake Watershed District, as of December
31, 2017 , and the respective changes in modified cash basis financial position for the year then
ended in conformity with the basis of accounting described in Note 1.

Basis of Accounting

We draw attention to Note 1 of the financial statements, which describes the basis of
accounting. The financial statements are prepared on the modified cash basis of accounting,
which is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America. Our opinions are not modified with respect to the matter.

Other Matters

Other lnformation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Red Lake Watershed District's basic financial statements. The official
directory, management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison schedule, statement of
receipts and disbursements and changes in fund balance, statement of direct expenditures by

classification, and statement of receipts and disbursements and changes in amounts due to
other governmental units as shown in the table of contents are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The budgetary comparison schedule, statement of receipts and disbursements and changes in
fund balance, statement of direct expenditures by classification, and statement of receipts and

disbursements and changes in amounts due to other governmental units are the responsibility
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and

other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and
certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to
the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. ln our opinion, the
budgetary comparison schedule and the supplementary statements are fairly stated in all

material respects in relation to the fìnancial statements as described in the basis of accounting
described in Note 1.

The official directory and the management's discussion and analysis section have not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements, and

accordingly, we do not express an optnton or provide any assurance on them.

BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIAIES. F,C.

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
91

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text



Other Reporting Required by Government Auditíng Standards

ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 30,2018 on our consideration of the Red Lake Watershed District's internal control over
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on

compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Sfandards in considering Red Lake Watershed District's internal control
over financial reporting and compliance.

fur//nrr?
BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P.C
THIEF RIVER FALLS, MINNESOTA

March 30,2018

BRADY, MARTZ & ASSOCIATES, P,C.

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
92



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31,2017

Our discussion and analysis of the Red Lake Watershed District's financial performance
provides an overview of the District's financial activities for the fiscal year ended December 31,

2017, within the limitations of the District's modified cash basis of accounting. Please read it in
conjunction with the District's financialstatements that begin on page 15.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

- The District's governmental funds total expenditures exceeded total revenues, on the modified
cash basis of accounting, by $875,746 for the year ended December 31,2017.

- The general fund showed a decrease on the modified cash basis fund balance in the amount
of $141,528.

- The District's General Fund ended the year with a fund balance of $327,501.
- The District's combined fund balance at the close of the current year was $4,612,076.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This annual report is presented in a format consistent with the presentation requirements of the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34, as applicable to the
District's modified cash basis of accounting.

Report Components

This annual report consists of five parts as follows:

Government-Wide Financial Statements: The Statement of Net Cash Position and the
Statement of ActivitiesArising from Cash Transactions on pages 15 and 16 provide information
about the activities of the District government-wide (or "as a whole") and present a longer-term
view of the District's finances.

Fund Financial Statements: Fund financial statements (starting on page 17) focus on the
individual parts of the District government. Fund financial statements also report the District's
operations in more detail than the governmental-wide statements by providing information about
the District's most significant ("major") funds. For governmental activities, these statements tell
how these services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for future spending.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements: The notes to the basic financial statements are an

integral part of the government-wide and fund financial statements and provide expanded
explanation and detail regarding the information reported in the statements.

Other Supplementary Information: This Management's Discussion and Analysis and the
General Fund Budgetary Comparison Schedule (starting on page 33) represent other financial
information. Such information provides users of this report with additional data that supplements
the government-wide statements, fund financial statements, and notes (referred to as "the basic
financial statements").

Other Supplementary Statements: This part of the annual report (starting on page 35)

includes other supplemental financial information which is provided to address certain specific
needs of various users of the District's annual report. These statements and schedules include
individual Fund Statements for Governmental units.

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
93



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31,2017

Basis of Accountinq

The District has elected to present its financial statements on a modified cash basis of accounting.

This modified cash basis of accounting is a basis of accounting other than accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America. Basis of accounting is a reference to when

financial events are recorded, such as the timing for recognizing revenues, expenses, and their
related assets and liabilities. Under the District's modified cash basis of accounting, revenues and

expenses and related assets and liabilities are recorded when they result from cash transactions,

except for the recording of depreciation expense on the capital assets in the government-wide

financial statements.

As a result of the use of this cash basis of accounting, certain assets and their related revenues
(such as accounts receivable and revenue for billed or provided services not yet collected) and

ceftain liabilities and their related expenses (such as accounts payable and expenses for goods or

services received but not yet paid, and accrued expenses and liabilities) are not recorded in the

basic financial statements. Therefore, when reviewing the financial information and discussion

within this annual report, the reader should keep in mind the limitations resulting from the use of

the modified cash basis of accounting.

Reoortino the District as a Whole

The District's Reporting Entity Presentation

This annual report includes all activities for which the Red Lake Watershed District Board of

Managers is fiscally responsible. These activities, defined as the District's reporting entity, are

operated within separate legal entities that make up the primary government. The District has no

reportable component units.

The Government-Wide Statement of Net Gash Position and the Statement of Activities
Arising from Gash Transactions

Our financial analysis of the District as a whole begins on page 7. The government-wide financial

statements are presented on pages 15 and 16. One of the most important questions asked about

the District's finances is, "ls the District as a whole better off or worse otf as a result of the year's

activities?" The Statement of Net Cash Position and the Statement of Activities Arising from Cash

Transactions report information about the District as a whole and about its activities in a way that

helps answer this question. These statements include all of the District's assets and liabilities

resulting from the use of the modified cash basis of accounting.

These two statements report the District's net cash position and changes in them. Keeping in mind

the limitations of the modified cash basis of accounting, you can think of the District's net cash
position-the difference between assets and liabilities-as one way to measure the District's

iinancial health or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in the District's net cash
position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. You will need

io consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes in the District's property tax base

and the condition of the District's infrastructure, to assess the overall health of the District.

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
94



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER3l,2017

ln the Statement of Net Cash Position and the Statement of Activities Arising from Cash
Transactions, the District has one type of activity:

Government Activities - The District's basic services are reported here, including the general

administration and capital projects. Property taxes, state aids, and state and federal grants finance
most of these activities.

The Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements begin on page 17 and provide detailed information about the most
significant funds. Some funds are required to be established by state law and by bond covenants.

However, the Board of Managers establishes certain other funds to help it control and manage
money for particular purposes or to show that it is meeting legal responsibilities for using certain
taxes, grants, and other money. The District's two kinds of funds-governmental and fiduciary-
use different accounting approaches.

Governmental funds- Most of the District's basic services are reported as governmental funds,
which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at year-end that
are available for spending. These funds report the acquisition of capital assets and payments for
debt principal as a detailed shoft-term view of the District's general government operations and the
basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you to determine (through a
review of changes to fund balance) whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can
be spent in the near future to finance the District's programs.

The District considers the General Fund, the Special Revenue Fund, and the Capital Project Fund

as significant or major governmental funds. There are no other funds.

Fiduciary funds- These fund types are often used to account for assets that are held in a trustee
or fiduciary capacity such as pension plan assets, assets held per trust agreements, and similar
arrangements.

A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT AS A WHOLE

Net Gash Position

The District's combined government-wide Net Position, resulting from modified cash basis
transactions increased by $0+0,617 between fiscal years 2017 and 2016. As noted earlier, net
position - modified cash basis may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government's financial
position. ln the case of Red Lake Watershed District, assets exceeded liabilities by $19,183,122 at

December 31,2017, which is an increase of $646,617 over the year ended December 31,2016;
which is more than a 3.49o/o increase over the prior year.

A portion of Red Lake Watershed District's net position ($14,571,046 or 75.960/o) reflects its

investment in capital assets. Red Lake Watershed District uses these capital assets to provide

services to citizens; consequently, these are not available for future spending.

A portion of Red Lake Watershed District's net position ($95,703) reflects a portion of net position

that is restricted for ditch maintenance.

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
95



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS . CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31,2017

Gowrnmental

Activities

2017 2016

Change

16-17

ASSETS

Total Current Assets

Net CapitalAssets

Total Assets

Operating Grants

Capital Grants
General Rercnues

Property Taxes

lntergolernmental
lnterest

Total Revenues

Expenses

General and Administration
Ongoing Projects and Studies
Capital Projects
Allocated lnterest

Total Expenses

$ 19,183,122 $ 18,536,505 $ 646,617

$ 4,612,076

14,571,046

ç 5,487,822

13,048,683

$ (875,746)

1,522,363

Net Position ç 19,183,122 $ 18,536,505 $ 646,617

Ghanqes in Net Cash Position

For the years ended December 31,2017 and 2016, Net Position of the primary government
(resulting from modified cash basis transaction) changed as follows:

Gowmmental

Activities Change

2017 2016 16-17

Revenues

Program Rercnues

Special Assessments and Charges

for Services $

1,468,953
1,805

65,441

1,496,117
903

31,049

235,043 $

1 6,060
950,015

187,479 $

20,720

653,358

47,564

(4,660)

296,657

(27,164)
902

34,392

$ 13,663
122,979
(56,8e3)

12,288

$ 2,737,317 $ 2,389,626 $ 347,691

$ 148,788 $
268,581

I ,655,164
1 8,167

1 35,1 25

145,602
1,712,057

5,879

$ 2,090,700 $ 1,998,663 $ 92,037

$ 617 $lncrease in Net Position 646 390,963

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
96



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

Below are specific graphs which provide comparisons of the governmental activities revenues and

expenditures for the year ended December 31,2017.

Governmental Activities - Revenues
I nterest 2% Speci a I

Æsessments and
Charges for

Services 10%

I ntergovernmenta I

0%

Operati ng Gra nts
L%

CapitalGrants 34%
Property Taxes

53%

Governmental Activities - Expenditures
lnterest 0% General and

Admi nistration 7%

Ongoi ng Projects
and Studies 13%

Capital Projec
80%

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
97



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONT¡NUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31,2Ol7

Governmental Activities

To aid in the understanding of the Statement of Activities Arising from Cash Transactions on page

16, some additional explanation is given. Of particular interest is the format that is significantly
different from a typical Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Balance. You will

notice that expenses are listed in the first column, with revenues from that particular program

reported to the right. The result is a Net (Expense)/Revenue. This type of format highlights the

relative financial burden of each of the functions on the District's taxpayers. lt also identifies how

much each function draws from the general revenues or if it is self-financing through fees and

grants or contributions. All other governmental revenues are reported as general. lt is important to

note that all taxes are classified as general revenue, even if restricted for a specific purpose.

A FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

General Fund Budqetarv Hishliqhts

For the year ended December 31, 2017, General Fund expenditures were $12,476 under final

budget. The budget was not amended during the year.

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRAT¡ON

Gapital Assets-Modified Cash Basis

At December 31, 2017, the District had approximately $14,571,046 (net of accumulated
depreciation) invested in capital assets. This investment in capital assets consists of building,

equipment, and infrastructure assets necessary for the District to carryout watershed and

conservation management within its service area.

2017 2016

Cost

Accumulated
Depreciation

Cost - Less
Accumulated
Depreciation

Cost - Less
Accumulated
Depreciation

Building and lmprowments
lnfastructure lm provements

Engineering Equipment
Ofice Equipment
Land and Permanent Easements
Construction in Progress

$

$ 18,222,433 $ 3,651,387 $ 14,571,046 $ 13,048,683

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

As noted below, construction will begin on several projects as well as work on several water quality

grants, flow through-grants, cooperative projects with other agencies, and investigation into a flood

control project.

775,594
12,601,966

426,170
169,323

3,018,474
1,230,906

$ 296,804
2,861,855

358,878
133,850

$ 478,790
9,740,111

67,292
35,473

3,O18,474
1,230,906

$ 501,421

10,240,256
58,589
12,793

1,906,922
328,702

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
98



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS . CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER3l,2017

OTHER ITEMS OF INTEREST

Water Quality grants from the State of Minnesota, Minnesota Pollution Control Agency, for Surface

Water Assessment Grants, Watershed Assessment Projects (watershed based TMDL), are

ongoing for Clearwater River, Red Lake River, Thief River, and Grand Marais Creek. Expenses

ovèr and above the grants are expended from the Capital Projects Fund'

The Red River Watershed Management Board (RRWMB) was awarded funding for farmstead ring

dike construction in the Red River Valley in 2015, by a grant provided by the Minnesota

Department of Natural Resources, through an appropriation by the Minnesota State Legislature.

Since the Red Lake Watershed District (RLWD) is a part of the RRWMB, funding for up to 3 ring

dikes was appropriated. During the summer of 2016, a ring dike was constructed at a farmstead in
polk County as part of this funding. The grant was cost shared at 50% by the Minnesota

Department of Natural Resources, 25o/o by the RRWMB, 12.5o/o landowner, and 12'5o/o RLWD.

The cost share of the RLWD is paid from the Capital Project Funding. This project was closed out

in 2017 when the Red Lake Watershed District received cost share funding from the Red River

Watershed Management Board.

ln 2013, the Red Lake Watershed District, in partnership with the United States Geological Survey,

applied for and was approved for a $400,000 flow through grant from the Legislative-Citizen

iommission on Minnesota Resources (LCGMR) for a project referred to in this report as Glacial

Ridge Water Quality Study, Project 152B.. The project's goals are intended to measure and

chaiacterize water fiows through all parts of the water cycle in 4 surface (SW) and groundwater

(GW) basins covering 28,754 acres as well as measure and characterize water quality in four
groundwater and surfãce-water basins for comparison with pre-restoration water quality. Although

t-f'e lCCfr¡n grant was intended to cover all costs of the project, the overrun of staff time of Red

Lake Watersñed District was paid from the Capital Project Fund. Due to various grant extensions,

this project was completed in June 2017.

ln August of 2014, the Red Lake Watershed District, in partnership with the United States

Geololical Survey, was approved for a $168,000 flow through grant from the Legislative-Citizen

Commìssion on M¡nnesota Resources (LCCMR) for a project referred to in this report as Glacial

Ridge Water Quality Study, Project 152C. The project's goals are intended work in conjunction

with the existing $4OO,OOO grant mentioned above which is to measure and characterize water

flows through ali parts of the water cycle in 4 surface (SW) and groundwater (GW) basins covering

28,754 acres as well as measure and characterize water quality in four groundwater and surface-

water basins for comparison with pre-restoration water quality. Although the LCCMR grant was

intended to cover all costs of the project, the overrun of Red Lake Watershed District staff time was

paid from the Capital Project Funding. Due to various grant extensions, this project was completed

in June 2017.

State of Minnesota flow-through grant with Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) for

flood plan analysis along on the Red Lake River in Polk, Red Lake, and Pennington Counties was

extenàed to April 30,2015. This extension was intended to allow time for FEMA to determine how

past modeling within the Cities of Crookston and East Grand Forks will match present datum.

Þublic meetings were held in 2016 and presently the District is waiting for final approval from

FEMA to implément the findings of the study. lt is our understanding that in 2017 the hydraulic

model went ihrough QA/QC, but there is a potential change in the discharge frequencies that are

being analyzed wñ¡cfr will delay the end results. lt is the hope of FEMA, Minnesota Department of

Natuial Resources, and the Red Lake Watershed District that the modeling issues will be resolved

in 2018.

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
99



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31,2017

January of 2016, the Board approved contributing $35,000 to the Beltrami County Environmental

Servicés to assist in the Aquatic lnvasive Species (AlS) program in the Red Lake watershed area

of Beltrami County. The funds will be used to assist in mileage reimbursement for volunteer

inspectors for the Upper Red Lake access, increase inspection hours, fund inspection on several

smaller lakes, installation of additional car counters, and to assist in obtaining a decontamination

unit. An update on this project was presented to the Board of Managers on Janu ary 26, 2017 . Al
this point, there is no additionalfunding going toward this project.

On September 8, 2016, the Red Lake Watershed District Board of Managers approved a motion to

proceed with the completion of plans and specification for the Gity of Erskine Memorial Park,

þ¡WO project #164, in conjunction with a partnership with the City of Erskine and the East Polk

Soil Water Conservation District. The project was to repair sloughs on Cameron Lake near the

public swimming pool. Engineering was completed with construction starting late fall of 2016. The

project was subètantially completed with construction being halted due to winter. On June 8,2017
at é:30 am, final hearing was held for Davidson Construction of Middle River, MN in the amount of
g17,310.00. Hearing nô objection from the public, the Board by unanimous decision ordered the

final payment be mãOe for the project. Total construction cost for the project totaled $79,635.00
which included, $2O,OOO from City of Erskine, $12,500 dollars from East Polk Soil Conservation

Service, $S,OOO from the Erskine American Legion and the remaining balance of $42,135 being

paid by the Red Lake Watershed District from the Capital Projects Fund.

Red Lake Watershed District entered into a grant agreement with the Natural Resource

Conservation Service for the study of projects which qualify for the Regional Conservation
partnership Programs (RCPP). The grant for the Pine Lake Watershed will fund 70 percent, not to

exceed $SbO,OO-9, which will include a study for the completion of a Watershed Protection Plan. lt

is the hopes of the District to have this program completed by mid-2018.

Red Lake Watershed District entered into a second grant agreement with the Natural Resource

Conservation Service for the study of projects which qualify for the Regional Conservation
partnership Programs (RCPP). The grant for the Four-Legged Lake Watershed will fund 70

percent, not to exceed $265,088, which will include a study for the completion of a Watershed

Þrotection Plan. lt is the hopes of the District to have this program completed by mid-2018'

Blackduck Lake Dam serves as the outlet of Blackduck Lake which is the headwater of the

Blackduck River. The dam is located in Hines Township, in Beltrami County, and was given to
Hines Township through legislative action in 1970's. The Red Lake Watershed District received a

request by Hines Township to assist with the repair of the structure/dam. On October 16,2Q16,

the Red Lake Watershed District entered into an agreement with Hines Township for maintenance

of the structure and hired Houston Engineering to analyze the dam and bring their

recommendation to the Board. The Red Lake Watershed District, on behalf of Hines Township,

applied for and was accepted for a $50,000 Conservation Partership Legacy Grant from the

MnDNR to assist in reparing the dam. On June 27, 2017, Houston Engineering presented the

plans and specifications to the Board of Managers which in turn lead to the advertising of bids. On

July 27,2017 bids were opened and low bid the amount of $87,968.00 was awarded to Gerit

Hañson Contracting, lnc. Final hearing in the amount of $93,081.25 was held on December 17,

2017. lt is anticipaled that in the spring of 2018, staff will inpect the project to determine if there

are any minor repairs needed to the project due to winter conditions.

Red Lake Watershed District and local partners entered into a grant agreement with the Board of

Soil Resources (BWSR) to complete a Pilot Project referred to the public as "Red Lake River One

Watershed One Plan". The grant, administered by Pennington Soil and Water Conservation

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
100



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYS]S - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

District in the amount of $127,266, was for the development of a comprehensive ten-year plan for

the Red Lake River Watershed. The planning and writing of the grant was completed in 2016 with

final approval by the BWSR Board in July of 2017. lt is expected that in 2018, funding through the
BWSR Clean Water Fund will be awarded with various projects being completed.

Red Lake Watershed District and local partners entered into a grant agreement with the Board of

Soil Resources (BWSR) to complete a Pilot Project referred to the public as "Thief River One

Watershed One Plan". The planning process was started in late 2017, will continue through 2018

and expected to be completed in early 2019.

As part of a $38,700 grant agreement applied for and approved by the Board of Soil and Water
Resource, the Red Lake Watershed District will develop a Drainage Database which will better

record maintenance which can be used for development of future lnspection Plans and Reports. lt

is the hopes of the District that this project will be completed by December 31, 2018.

Red Lake Watershed District approved by motion to proceed with the investigation of developing a

flood damage reduction project referred to as the Black River lmpoundment. ln late 2016, the
RLWD has entered into agreements with three landowners and preliminary engineering was

ordered. ln June of 2017, options with landowners were exercised with land purchases and

easements completed. lt is the hope of the District that Minnesota State bonding dollars can be

obtained and construction on this project occurring early 2019.

Red Leke Watershed District was petitioned by the City of Thief River Falls and Pennington County

to investigate the drainage issues along the westside of the City. Engineering analysis was being

completed for the "Thief River Falls Westside Flood Damage Reduction Project" in 2017 with the

hopes of having alternatives to the Board in early 2018'

It should also be noted that in 2017 lhe District received two legal drainage petitions, one for a new

ditch and one for an improvement of an existing public drainage system. Both petitioned projects

are in Polk County Minnesota. lt is the hope of the District that these two projects will go through

the hearing process in late summer of 2018.

More details of the 2017 construction, maintenance, and ongoing water quality programs of Red

Lake Watershed District are included in the 2017 Annual Report or by contacting the Red Lake

Watershed District.

CONTACTING THE DISTRICT'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of Red Lake Watershed District's

finances for all those with an interest in the government's finances. Questions concerning any of

the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information should be

addressed to the Red Lake Watershed District, 1000 Pennington Avenue South, Thief River Falls,

Minnesota 56701.

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
101



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET CASH POSITION

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017

Assets
Cunent Assets:

Petty Cash
Pooled Cash and lnræstments

Total Current Assets

Capital Assets:

Property and Equipment
Less: Accumulated Depreciation

Net CapitalAssets

Total Assets

Net Position
lnræstment in Capital Assets
Restricted for Ditch Maintenance
Unrestricted

Total Net Position

Total

$ 100

4,611,976
4,612,076

18,222,433
(3,651,384
14,571,U6

19,183,122

14,571,M6
95,703

4,516,373

$ 19,183,122

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
102



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31,2017

É<penses Program Receipts and Sources

Special

AssessnEnts
and Charges

For ServicesTotal

Operating
Grants and

Contributions

I'Gt Cash Sources
(Llses) and Changes

in l'.let Cash Fosition

Governnental
Activities

(147,356)

(89,s86)

(634,073)
(18,167)

(889,582)

1,468,953

1,805

65.441

1.536.193

646,617

18,536,505

$ 19,183,122

Functions/Prograns

Governnental Activities:
General and Adnfnistrative

Ongoing Èojects and Studies

Capital Projects

Allocated lnterest

Total GovernrÞntal ActÛities $ (2,0e0,700) $ -

General Receipts:

Tax Levies
lntergovernrnental (not restricted to specific prograns)

State fi/M, Dsparity Reduction Credits, and PERA Aid

Allocated lnterest

Total General ReceiPts

Change in l',let Fosition

¡,let Fosit¡on - Beginning

l"let Position - Erìding

$ (2,0s0,700) $

Capital

Grants and

Contributions

't,432 $

162,535

71,076

$ $

16,060
950,015

235,043 $ 16,060 $ 950,015 $

$

Drect

$ (766,827)

(204,7271

(1 ,100,979)
(18,167)

Allocated

Salaries and

Overhead

$ 618,039
(63,854)

(554,185)

$ (148,788) $

(268,581)

(1,655,164)
(18,167)

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
103



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF BALANCES ARISING FROM CASH TRANSACTIONS - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

AS OF DECEMBER31,2017

General

Fund

Special Revenue

Fund

Capital Project

Fund

Total Governnental
FundsASSETS

Ètty Cash

Fooled Cash and lnvestrents

Total Assets

FUND BALANICES

Restricted for Dtch ltlaintenance

Cormútted for Capital Projects

Unassigned

Total Fund Balances

Total Fund Balances

$

$

$

100 $

327,401

327,501 $

$

327,501

327,50'l

327,501 $

$ 100

4,611 ,97695,703 4,188,872

95,703$4,188,872$4,612,076

$

$95,703 $
4,188,872

95,703 4,188,872

95,703 $ 4,188,872 $

4,612,O76

4,6't2,076

$ 4,612,O76

't8,222,433
(3,651,387)

$ 19,183,122

95,703
4,188,872

327,501

$

Annunts reported f rom governnental activities in the Staterent of lGt Cash Fosition are different

because:

Total Fund Balance per StatenEnt of Balances Arising from Cash Transactions, from above

When capital assets (land, building, equipnent and infrastructure) that are to be

used in governnental activities are purchased or constructed, the cost of those assets

are reported as expenditures in governnentalfunds. However, the statenent of net

cash position includes those capital assets affþng the assets of the Dshict as a whole.

Cost of Capital Assets
Accum.rlated Depreciation

Total I'let Fosition

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
104



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CASH RECEIPTS, DISBURSEMENTS, AND CHANGES IN CASH FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER3l,2Ol7

General
Fund

Special
Revenue

Fund

162,535

60
16,000

Capital
Project
Fund

$ 1,468,953 $

372,336
412,860
164,819

Total GovernÍEntal
Funds

1,468,953
162,535

372,396
430,665

164,819

72,508
65,441

2,737,317

'148,788

268,581

3,177,527
18,167

3,613,063

(e75,746)

140
(140)

(875,746)

5,487,822

$ 4,6',12,076

RECBPTS

Property Taxes

Special Assessnnnts
lntergovernÍEntal:

Federal

State

Local

Other:
Mscellaneous
Allocated firterest

Total Receipts

DISBURSEI\ÆMS
General and Administrative

Ongoing Projects and Studies

Capital Projects

Allocated lnterest

Total Disbursenents

Ð(CESS OF RECBPTS OVER (UNDER) DISBURSEMEMS

OTHER FlliANlclllc SOIUBçES (USES)

Transfers ln

Transfers Out

lr,,let Other Sources (uses)

l'.let Change in Fund Balances

FUND BALAN¡CEJANUARY 1

FUND BA LANCE DECEIúBER 31

$$

1,805

1,432
7,359

10,596

148,788

3,336

152,124

(141,528)

2j38
7'l,076
55,944

't 80,733 2,s45,988

268,581
3,177,527

14,258

269 154 3,191,785

(88,421) (645,797)

(140)

(140)

(645,937)

573

140

(141,528) (88,281)

183,984

$ 95,703

140

4,834,809

$ 4,188,872

469,029

$ 327,501

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
105



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
RECONCILIATION OF CHANGES IN FUND BA¡.ANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31,2017

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Go\emmental Funds $ (875,746)

Go\emmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures, while gorernmental activities

report depreciation expense allocating those expenditures o\er the life of the asset:

Capital Additions
Depreciation Expense

Change in Net Pos¡t¡on - Gowmmental Activities

2,074,878
(5s2, s1 5)

$ æ6,617

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
106



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET CASH POSITION _ FIDUCIARY FUNDS

AS OF DECEMBER31,2017

Agency
FundsASSETS

Cash

TotalAssets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANrcES

Due To Red River Watershed fVhnagement Board

Total Liabilities

$

$

$

$

See Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
107



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 31,2017

NOTE I SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Red Lake Watershed District, (the "District"), was established under the Minnesota

Watershed Act as an agency of the State of Minnesota. The purpose of the District is to carry

out conservation of the ñatural resources of the State of Minnesota through land utilization, flood

control, and other needs, upon sound scientific principles for the protection of the public health

and welfare and the provident use of natural resources. The District serves an area in
Northwestern Minnesoia and includes all of Red Lake County and parts of the following

counties: Beltrami, Clearwater, ltasca, Koochiching, Mahnomen, Marshall, Pennington, Polk,

and Roseau. The District is governed by the Board of Managers, which is composed of seven

members appointed by the county boards in accordance with Minnesota Statutes'

As discussed further in Note 1C, these financial statements are presented on a modified cash

basis of accounting. This basis of accounting differs from accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). Generally accepted accounting principles

include all relevant GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.

A. FINANCIAL REPORTING ENTITY

The financial statements of the District include all organizations, funds and account groups over

which the District's Board exercises significant influence over and, or is financially accountable

for organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the District is

such that exclusion would cause the Red Lake Watershed District's financial statements to be

misleading. ln addition, there are no component units as defined in Governmental Accounting

StandardJ Board Statement 61 which are included in the District's reporting entity.

B. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

GOVERNMENT-WI DE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Statement of Net Cash Position and Statement of Activities Arising from Cash Transactions

display information about the reporting government as a whole. They include all funds of the

rejortíng entity except for fiduciary funds. The statements distinguish between governmental

and buslness-iype activities. The District has only governmental activities which are generally

financed through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange revenues;

because of this, all of the District's activities are reported as governmental activities.

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fund financial statements of the reporting entity are organized into funds, each of which is

considered to be a separate accounting entity. Each fund is accounted for by providing a

separate set of self-balancing accounts that constitutes its assets, liabilities, fund equity,

,evenues, and expenditures/expenses. Funds are typically organized into three major

categories: governmental, fiduciary and proprietary. The District currently has no proprietary

funds.

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
108



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

AS OF DECEMBER 31,2017

An emphasis is placed on major funds within the governmental categories. A fund is considered

major if it is the primary operating fund of the District or meets the following criteria:

a. Total assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual

governmental or enterprise fund are at least 10% of the corresponding total for all funds

of that category or tYPe, AND
b. Total assets,- liabiiities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses of the individual

governmental fund or enterprise fund are at least 5% of the corresponding total for all

governmental and enterprise funds combined.

The funds of the financial reporting entity are described below and are all considered major

programs for financial statement purposes.

Governmental Funds

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund of the District and always classified as a major

fund. lt is used to account for aLl activities except those legally or administratively required to be

accounted for in other funds.

Special Revenue Fund

The special revenue fund is used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other

than iapital projects) where the expenditures are legally restricted for purposes specified in the

grant oi project-agreements. The reporting entity includes the special revenue fund as a major

fund.

Capital Proiects Fund

The Capital Projects Fund is used to account for resources committed for the acquisition,

construction and maintenance of specific capital projects or items. The reporting entity includes

the capital projects fund as a major fund.

Fiduciarv Funds

Aqencv Funds

Agency funds account for assets held by the District in a purely custodial capacity. The

relortiñg entity includes one agency fund. Since agency funds are custodial in nature (i.e.,

assets ãqual iiabitities¡, they do not involve the measurement of results of operations. The

agency fund is as follows:

Fund
Red River Water Management Board

Brief Description
Property Taxes are levied bY the
District and submitted to the
Management Board.

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
109



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

AS OF DECEMBER31,2017

C. MEASUREMENT FOCUS AND BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

Measurement focus is a term used to describe "how" transactions are recorded within the

various financial statements. Basis of accounting refers to "when" transactions are recorded

regardless of the measurement focus applied'

MEASUREMENT FOCUS

ln the government-wide Statement of Net Cash Position and Statement of Activities Arising from

Cash Íransactions, governmental activities are presented using the economics resources

measurement focus, *itf'¡n the limitations of the modified cash basis of accounting as defined

below.

ln the fund financial statements, the "current financial resources" measurement focus or the
,,economic resources" measurement focus, as applied to the modified cash basis of accounting,

is used as approPriate.

All governmental funds utilize a "current financial resources" measurement focus. Only current

finañcial assets and liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets. Their operating

statements present sources and uses of available spendable financial resources during a given

period. Thêse funds use fund balance as their measure of available spendable financial

resources at the end of the Period.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

ln the government-wide Statement of Net Cash Position and Statement of Activities Arising from

Cash Íransactions and the fund financial statements, governmental activities are presented

using a modified cash basis of accounting. This basis recognized assets, liabilities, net

posiìÍon/fund equity, revenues, and expenditures/expenses when they result from cash

transactions with t'he provisions for capital assets, deferred inflows of resources, deferred

outflows of resources, and debt and depreciation in the government wide statements. This

basis is a comprehensive basis of accounting other than accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America.

lf the District utilized the basis of accounting recognized as generally accepted, the fund

financial statements for governmental funds would use the accrual basis of accounting' All

government-wide financials would be presented on the accrual basis of accounting.

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
110

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
 

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

AS OF DECEMBER31,2017

D. ASSETS, LIABILITIES, AND EQUITY

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of financial reporting, "cash and cash equivalents" includes all demand and

savings accounts and certificates of deposit or short-term investments with an original maturity

of oné year or less. Cash balances from all funds are pooled and invested to the extent

availablè in authorized investments authorized by Minnesota statutes. Earnings from such

investments are allocated to the respective funds on the basis of average cash balance

participation by each fund. Funds with deficit averages are charged with the investment

earnings lost in financing the deficits.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The District's modified cash basis of accounting reports capital assets resulting from cash

transacti ons and reports depreciation where appropriate.

All capital assets are valued at historical cost, or if donated, recorded at its estimated fair value.

lnfrastructure assets acquired prior to January 1,2004 are not capitalized, but subsequent

acquisitions are recorded at cost. Costs associated with infrastructure on property not owned by

the District are immediately expensed.

ln the government-wide financial statements, capital assets arising from cash transactions are

accounted for as an expense in the Statement of Net Cash Position, with accumulated

depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Cash Position. Depreciation is provided over the

assets' estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. Capitalization

thresholds of $500 for equipment and building improvements of $5,000 for infrastructure are

used to report capital assets. Estimated useful lives being used are summarized below:

Building and lmprovements 19-40 years

Equipment, Furniture
and Fixtures 3-15 Years

ln governmental fund financial statements, capital assets arising from cash transactions

acq-uired for use in governmental fund operations are accounted for as capital outlay

expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition.

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

ln addition to assets, the statement of net cash position will sometimes report a separate section

for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows

of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so

will not be recognized as an outflow of resource (expense/expenditure) until then. ln addition to

liabilities, the statement of net cash position will sometimes report a separate section for_

deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of
resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future_period(s) and so will

notbe recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) untilthat time. The District does not have

any items that qualify for reporting in these categortes.

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
111



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRIGT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017

LONG-TERM DEBT

All long-term debt arising from cash transactions to be repaid from governmental fund resources

is reported as a liability only in the government-wide statements.

Long-term debt arising from cash basis transactions of governmental funds is not reported as

liabiities in the fund flnancial statements. The debt proceeds are reported as other financing

sources and the payment of principal and interest are reported as expenditures.

Currently the District does not have long-term debt.

COMPENSATED ABSENCES

Full-time employees starting on the date of employment will accrue 80 hours per year of

vacation for the first five years of employment. During the next five years of employment, an

employee accrues 120 hours per year, after ten years of employment but less than twenty, an

employee accrues 160 hours per year of vacation, and after 20 years of employment an

employee accrues 200. Qualifying part{ime employees are entitled to vacation based on the
percentage of hours worked per pay period. The maximum accumulation of vacation leave is

200 hours. Unused vacation leave is paid only upon termination of employment.

Full-time employees employed with the District accrue eight hours of sick leave per month. Part-

time employees who have worked 60% of the time for a period of nine months shall be entitled

to sick leave based on the percentage of hours worked per pay period. The maximum

accumulation of sick leave is 400 hours and does not vest upon termination of employment. As

of January 1, 2014, half of the employee's remaining sick leave will be paid at the employee's

current hóurly rate to the employee upon retirement. lf the employee quits or is terminated for

any reason, no payment shall be made to the employee. District Office shall maintain leave

records by posting leave earned and taken, and calculating a current balance for each

employee. There will be no payment in lieu of sick leave, except when retirement of employment

occurs. No vested or accumulated liability has been recorded for accumulated compensated

absences.

PENSIONS

plan contributions are recognized as of employer payroll paid dates and benefit payments and

refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

lnvestments are reported at fair value.

EQUITY

Government-Wide Statements

Equity is classified as Net Position and displayed in three components:

Restricted Net Position - Consists of Net Position with constraints placed on the use

e{ther by (1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and

regulations of other governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling

legislation.
Uñrestricted Net Position - All other Net Position that does not meet the definition of
"restricted" or "invested in capital assets, net of related debt."

a

b.

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
112



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

AS OF DECEMBER31,2017

c. lnvestment in Capital Assets - Consists of capital assets including restricted capital
assets, net of accumulated depreciation.

It is the District's policy to first use restricted Net Position prior to the use of unrestricted Net
Position when an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
Net Position are available.

EQUITY CLASSIFICATION

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance.

E. REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND EXPENSES

PROGRAM REVENUES

ln the Statement of Activities Arising from Cash Transactions, modified cash basis revenues
that are derived directly from each activity or from parties outside the District's taxpayers are
reported as program revenues. The District has the following program revenues: direct project

cost reimbursements and project special assessments, rental income and operating and capital
grants specific to projects. All other governmental revenues are reported as general revenue.
Alltaxes are classified as general revenue even if restricted for a specific purpose.

F. USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the other comprehensive basis of
accounting (OCBOA) used by the District required management to make estimates and

assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results
could differ from those estimates.

G. FUND BALANCE CLASSIFICATIONS

ln the fund financial statements, governmental funds report fund balance in classifications that
disclose constraints for which amounts in those funds can be spent. These classifications are as

follows:

Nonspendab/e - consists of amounts that are not in spendable form, such as inventory
and prepaid items.

Restricted - consists of amounts related to externally imposed constraints established
by creditors, grantors or contributors; or constraints imposed by state statutory
provisions.

Committed consists of internally imposed constraints. These constraints are
established by the Board of Managers.

Assigned - consists of internally imposed constraints. These constraints reflect specific
purpose for which it is the District's intended use. These constraints are established by

the Board of Managers and/or management

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
113



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

AS OF DECEMBER31,2017

tJnassigned - is the residual classifìcation for the general fund and also reflects negative

residual amounts in other funds.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy to

first use restricted resources, and then use unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Vúhen committed, assigned or unassigned resources are available for use, it is the District's
policy to use resources in the following order; 1) committed, 2) assigned and 3) unassigned.

INTERFUND BALANCES

ln the process of aggregating the fund information for the government-wide Statement of Net

Cash Position and Statement of Activities Arising from Cash Transactions, some amounts

reported as interfund activity and balances in the fund financial statements have been

eliminated or reclassified

H. NET POSITION

Net position represents the difference between (a) assets and deferred outflows of resources

and (b) liabilities and deferred inflows of resources in the District's financial statements. Net

invesiment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced

by the outstanding balances of any long-term debt attributable to the acquisition, construction,

oi improuement of those assets. Restricted net position consists of restricted assets reduced by

liabiliiies and deferred inflows of resources related to those assets. Unrestricted net position is

the net amount of assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of

resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital assets or the

restricted component of net position.

NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

By its nature as a local government unit, the District is subject to various federal, state, and local

laws and contractual regulations. There are no instances of noncompliance that are considered

material to the financial statements.

NOTE 3 DETAIL NOTES.TRANSACTION CLASSES'ACCOUNTS

The District maintains a cash account at its depository bank. lnvestments are carried at fair

value. The District considers Certificates of Deposit to be cash.

lnterest Rate Risk

The District does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a
means of managing its exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Credit Risk

The District may invest idle funds as authorized in Minnesota Statutes, as follows:

a. Direct obligations or obligations guaranteed by the United States or its agencies.

b. Shares oflnvestment companies registered under the Federal lnvestment Company Act of

1g40 and whose only investments are in securities described in (a) above.

c. General obligations of the State of Minnesota or any of its municipalities.

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
114



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

AS OF DECEMBER31,2017

d. Bankers Acceptance of United States banks eligible for purchases by the Federal Reserve

System.
e. Commercial paper issued by United States corporations or their Canadian subsidiaries, of

the highest quality, and maturing in 270 days or less.

f. Repurchale or reverse repurchase agreements with banks that are members of the Federal

Reserve System with capitalization exceeding $10,000,000, a primary reporting dealer in
U.S. government securities to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or certain

Minnesota securities broker-dealers.
g. Futures contracts sold under authority of Minnesota Statutes 471.56, Subd. 5.

The District has no investment policy that would further limit its investment choices.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District places no limit on the amount the District may invest in any one issuer

Gustodial Credit Risk - DePosits

ln accordance with Minnesota Statutes, the District maintains deposits at those depository

banks authorized by the District's Board, all of which are members of the Federal Reserve

System.

Minnesota Statutes require that all District deposits be protected by insurance, surety bond, or

collateral. The market value of collateral pledged must equal 11Oo/o of the deposits not covered

by insurance or bonds.

At December 31, 2017, the carrying amount of the District's deposits was $4,612,076 and the

bank balance was $5,410,081. The bank balance was covered by Federal Depository

lnsurance and by collateral held by the District's agent in the District's name at December 31,

2017.

NOTE4 PROPERTYTAXES

The District levies property taxes on property owners within the District, which becomes an

enforceable lien as of January 1. Taxes are levied in September and are payable to counties on

May 15 and October 15 (November 15 for farm property) of the following year. The District

levies the tax, while the respective counties collect and remit the tax collections to the District.

Property taxes are recognized when received from the counties under the modified cash basis

of accounting.

The District also levies special assessments through the counties against property owners who

obtain direct benefits from projects or property owners who request, through the petition

process, to have a project undertaken. The special assessment collections are recorded in a
manner similar to that for property taxes.

NOTE 5 DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

pERA provides retirement, disability, and death benefits. Benefit provisions are established by

state statute and can only be modified by the state legislature. Benefit increases are provided

to benefit recipients each January. lncreases are related to the funding ratio of the plan.

Members in pians that are at least 90% funded for two consecutive years are given 2.5%

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
115



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

AS OF DECEMBER31,2Ol7

increases. Members in plans that have not exceeded 90% funded, or have fallen below 80%,

are given 1% increases. The benefit provisions stated in the following paragraphs of this

section are current provisions and apply to active plan participants. Vested, terminated

employees who are entitled to benefits but are not receiving them yet are bound by the
provisions in effect at the time they last terminated their public service.

1. General Employees Plan Benefits
General Employees Plan benefits are based on a member's highest average salary for any five

successive years of allowable service, age, and years of credit at termination of service. Two

methods are used to compute benefits for PERA's Coordinated and Basic Plan members. The

retiring member receives the higher of a step-rate benefit accrual formula (Method 1) or a level

accruãl formula (Method 2). Under Method 1, the annuity accrual rate for a Basic Plan member is

2.2o/o of average salary for each of the first ten years of service and 2.7o/o for each remaining year.

The annuity accrual rate for a Coordinated Plan member is 1 .2o/o of average salary for each of the

first ten years and I .7o/o for each remaining year. Under Method 2, the annuity accrual rate is

2.7o/o of average salary for Basic Plan members and 1.7o/o for Coordinated Plan members for

each year of service. For members hired prior to July 1, 1989, a full annuity is available when age

plus years of service equal 90 and normal retirement age is 65. For members hired on or after

July i, 1989, normal retirement age is the age for unreduced Social Security benefits capped at

66.

Contributions

Basic Plan members and Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 9.1o/o and

O.SO%, respectively, of their annual covered salary in calendar year 2017. The District was

required to contribule 11.78o/o of pay for Basic Plan members and 7.SQo/o for Coordinated Plan

members in calendar year 2017.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about each defined benefit pension plan's fiduciary net position is available

in a separately issued PERA financial report. That report may be obtained on the lnternet at

www.mnpera.org.

Funding Policy

Minnesota Statutes Chapter 353 sets the rates for employer and employee contributions. These

statutes are established and amended by the state legislature. The District makes annual

contributions to the pension plans equal to the amount required by state statutes. Basic Plan

members and Coordinated Plan members were required to contribute 9.1o/o ând 6.50%,

respectively, of their annual covered salary in calendar year 2017. The Red Lake Watershed

Disirict is required to contribute the following percentages of annual covered payroll: 11.78o/o for
Basic Plan members,7.5o/o for Coordinated Plan members. The District's contributions to the

Public Employees Retirement Fund for the year ended December 31,2017 was $30,223.

Related-Partv lnvestments

As of December 31,2017, the District held no related-party investments.

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
116



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2017

NOTE 6 RISK MANAGEMENT

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, or destruction

of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; employees' health and life; and natural

disasters. The District manages these various risks of loss with the purchase of insurance

through commercial insurance providers. The District carries commercial insurance coverage on

its cJmmercial property and for liability, personal and advertising injury, non-owned auto and a

miscellaneous floater.

Management believes such coverage is sufficient to preclude any significant uninsured losses to

the Oistrict. Setfled claims have not exceeded this insurance coverage in any of the past three

fiscal years.

NOTE 7 INTERFUND TRANSFERS

The following reconciles interfund transfers during the fiscal year ended December 31,2017 '

Transfers ln Transfers Out
$ 140Capital Projects Fund

Special Rerenues Fund
$

140

Total $ 140 $ 140

The transfer made between funds is to recognize a previous board action to close a project.

NOTE 8 CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets activity resulting from modified cash basis transactions for the year ended

December 31,2017 was as follows:

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions

Ending
Balance

Capital Assets
Building and lmproæments
lnfastructure lmProlements
Engineering Equipment
Offce Equipment
Land and Permanent Easements

Construction in Progress
Total

Accumulated Deoreciation

Building and lmprorcments
lnfrastructure lmprorcments
Engineering Equipment

Offce Equipment
Total

$ 16,147,555 $ 2,074,878 $

$ 775,594
12,601,966

395,732
138,639

1,906,922
328,702

$$ $ 775,594
12,601,966

426,170
169,323

3,018,474
1,230,906

30,438
30,684

1,111,552
902,204

$ 18,222,433

Beginning
Balance Additions Deletions

Ending
Balance

$ 274,173
2,361,710

337,143
125,846

22,631
500,145
21,735

8,004

$ 296,804
2,861,855

358,878
1 33,850

$ $

3,098,872 552,51 5

$ 13,048,683 $ 1,522,363 $ $ 14,571,046

Depreciation expense of gss2,s1S for the year ended December 31, 2017 is included in general

and administrative program costs.

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
117



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - CONTINUED

AS OF DECEMBER31,2017

NOTE 9 OVERHEAD COST ALLOCATION

Overhead costs are allocated to all projects at 15Oo/o of direct salaries to projects. Overhead

costs represent those costs incurred by the District for administration, employee benefits,

engineering, and related operating expenditures, which are not charged directly to the project.

The total overhead costs charged to projects in 2017 was $618,039.

NOTE 1O CONTINGENCIES

Grants

The District participates in state and federal grant programs, which are governed by various
rules and regulations of the grantor agencies. Costs charged to the respective grant programs

are subject to audit and adjustment by the grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the
District has not complied with the rules and regulations governing the grants, refunds of money

received may be required and the collectability of any related receivable at December 31, 2017,

may be impaired. The District is not aware of any significant contingent liabilities relating to

compliance with the rules and regulations governing the respective grants.

Glaims and Litigation

The District is not presently involved in any legal actions relating to projects undertaken or

attempted to be undertaken.

NOTE II SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No significant events occurred subsequent to the District's year end. Subsequent events have

been evaluated through March 30, 2018, which is the date these financial statements were

available to be issued.

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
118



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31,2017

Original and Final

Budget

$-

Actual

2017 VarianceREVENUES

Tax Levies

lntergolemmental
State

Miscellaneous
Allocated lnterest

Total Rercnues

EXPENDruRES
General and Administratiw
lnterest

Total Expenditures

Expenditures Exceed Rercnues

FUND BALANCE JANUARY 1

FUND BALANCE DECEMBER 31

$ $

1,805
1,432
7,359

1,805
1,432
7,359

10,596 10,596

164,600 148,788
3,336

164,600 152,124

(164,600) (14'1,528)

469,029 469,029

$ 304,429 $ 327,501

(15,812)
3,336

(12,476)

23 072

See Note to the Budgetary Comparison Schedule

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
119



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
NOTE TO THE BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31,2017

NOTE 1 - BUDGETARY COMPARISON

The budget is prepared using the same method of accounting as the financial statements. The

annual aãopted budget is not legally binding on the District, with the exception of the budget for
the general fund, which is limited by state statute at $250,000 and set by the Board for 2017 at

$0. All appropriations lapse at year-end.

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
120



GENERAL FUND

RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -ALL FUNDS -
MODIFIED CASH BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER3l,2017

ReEnues Expenses TEnsfer

Fund Assessments Operat¡ng/ Fund

Balance and Other Capìtd Orants Allocated Allocated Allocated Balance

(Detcit) Charges for and lnterest lnterest Salary and ln (Defic¡t)

Jànuary't Seúces Contribution Eamed Taxes D¡rect Charged O\,erhead (Out) December 31

$ 469,029 g 1,4s2 $ 1,805 $ 7,359 $ - $ 76ô,827 $ 3,336 $ (ô18,039) $ - $ 327'50',1

SPECIAL REVENUE FUND JOBS:

Red Lake R¡\êr Proiect

Clearwater Ri\Ær P roject

Lost R¡Er Project
RLWD Ditch #1

RLWD Ditch #3

State D¡tch #83
RLWD Dilch #7

Pine Lake Maintenance
RLWD D¡tch #8

RLWD Ditch #9
J.D. Ditch #72
Clearwater/W¡ld Rice Ri€r
Blanch A & 1, J.D. #2

Main J.D. #2 and Branch B&C

Main J.D. 2C. Eck
Krostue Pet¡tion
Cleaffiter County Jo¡nt Ditch #1

Clearwater County Joint Ditch l¡4

CleaMater County Jo¡nt Ditch #5

Clearwater County Ditch #1

Cl¡fiord Aneson Ditch

W¡nsor/Hangaarcl/Clearwater County Petition

Equality RLWD Ditch #1, lat C

K. Johnson Petition
Polk County D¡tch #s 104, 61, 47,94
TRF Dra¡nage Ditch (Challenger Ditch)

Scott Baatz Petition
Polk County D¡tch #63 lmProEment

Polk County Ditch #33 lmPro\Ement

RLWD Ditch #10
RLWD Ditch #11

RLWD D¡ICh #'I2
RLWD Ditch #14
RLWD Ditch #15
Bumham Creek Channel

RLWD Ditch #'13

Thief R¡\Ær Falls Flood Damage Reduction Project

RLWD Ditch #16
lmprov to Polk co. #39

TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE

820
3,878
2,'t81

258
869

4,567
902

5,317
1,621

1't4
2t,335

2,631

881

388
227
247

168

745

't20
565

484
'164

't,o21
294

ø2

405
332
545
126
908

1,554
2,181
1,231

302
5,132
1,259

54,360
(8,872)
6,273
3,848
6,577

13,475

2,95'l
42

3,479
1,190

(31 1)

(5,652)

1,443
(1,22O\

(2,324)

1 ,'101
(137)

589
(1 05)

290

4,285
1,118

2,O73

3,737
(2,236)
1,509

1,630

7,133
1,578

(1,7e0)

27,730
(4,134)
(2,61e)
92,979

(14,280)

3,005
(14,731)

37,532
1,606

1,529
1,069

18,354
4,589
2,991

900

3,884
9,002
1,474
2,962

145
86

990
248
501

2,065
7,766

70'l
'131

7,241

75

148

2,670
2,A72

323
15,E62

4,029
672

30,1 18

16,060

50ô

52
44
63
bb
44

31
a

't7

10

5
39
38

21

29

't2
't3

5
2',1

256

833

24

1,415

56,863
300

76

350
13,041

1,010

11,547

900

300

5,100

54,046
13,197
4,850
5,163
5,425

(1 3,475)
6,382

(2,373)
2,789

735
(30,898)

697
1,043
1,353

(2,730)
(4,1s6)

't,421
(7es)

796
5,783
8,357
2,311
2,77s

(2,364)

1,128
1,136

(62,&4\
3,187

20
26,933

5,029
(3,371)
84j62

5,780
1,891

(23,378)
(1,280)

38

'.-

95

22

'l

24
36

3

1

1&

196

48ô

955
ô,32ô

99
500

69,285
750
510

1,250
5,775
3,185
8,1 41

8,758
836

3,334
1E

3,421----tu1n

22

7

lô
42

69

18;
3

(3,421)
------¡å70-f----------ll ------h,-&54 

-140

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
121



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE _ ALL FUNDS -
MODIFIED CASH BASIS - CONTINUED

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31,2017

ReEnues ExDenses TEnsfer

Fund
Balance
(Defcit)

January 1

(1 65,882)

1 09,779

(17,942)

(4,026)

400

273

(37,986)

5,'t29,2ø4

Assessments OPerating/ Fund

and other capital Grants Allocated Allocated Allocated Belance

Charges for and lnterest lnterest Salary and ln (Defc¡t)

Seùces Contribution Eamed Taxes D¡rect Charged Oì,erhead (Out) December 31

CAPITAL PROJECT FUND JOBS:

Moose Ri\€r Proiect
Lost Riwr lmpoundment

Stream Gauging
Cuhêrt Siz¡ng
Schirick Dam

Pine Lake PWT
Hydrologic Analys¡s
Emergency Malntenance
RRWMB - Techn¡cal Com

Water Qual¡ty
Maintenance Dams

Odney Flaat Dam

Latundresse Dam

Miller Dam
Seeger Dam
Blackduck Lake Structure

Elm Lake
Red Lake Res./Good Lake

Pamell lmpoundment
Perm¡ts
Project De\,elopment
Louisìill€/Pamell Prcject

Ring Dike Program - General

Ross R¡ng Dike
Strandell Ring D¡ke

G.t.s.
Wetland Banking
Ten Year Oì,elall Plan

Th¡ef RiEr lWlP
PTMAPP GENI
North Pamell Storage Site

Clearwater Ri\êr - TMDL

Red RiEr Conidor
Erosion Control Projects

WS D¡tch System ln\êntory & MaPPing

FEMA tlF¡rm Grant
Black RiEr lmpoundment
Web Page De\êlopmenl
Adm¡nistrati\,e Construction
Bumham CEek - BR6

Euclid East lmpoundment
Blandt lmpoundmenl

$ $ $ $ $ $13,380

1'l ,381

426,83t

725
42,'141

2,454

1 38,996
't,254
1,800

't72
5,473

38,720
313

3,476
2,826

302
46,586
15,026

227
96,302

6,275

341,'122
2,400

25

3,078
b

80$
2

113

41

I
2,454

45

ô88

I
2

20

1

606
14

14

17

514
335

$ 20,245 $
427

33,580
9,009
1,525

8,528

(336,147)

't'to,812

(50,000)

50,293

(e,567)

(3ô5,266)
(1,438)

6,053,092

6,785
425

22,086
8,9ô8
1,516

13,381

8,483
272,401

725

46

(¡
(D

3,210

1't,847

2,993

104,152
1,647

408
365
222
230

4,721

1,857

690
5,4ø2

1 16,041

31,935
1,597
1,1 05

12'l
466

19,605

666
6,206

30,817
14,823

77

3,'t92
498

6,366
3,497
3,448

20,478
845

1 46,906
1,655

41'l
2,840

26ø
23'l

1't2,225
3,125
2,504
2,461

'122,O28

70,990
(e,e8ô)
1,107

(25,284',)

1,381

23,199
3,101

5,990

25,208
3,'t28

541

127,340
30,280

36,240
1,085

67,546

17

118

I
23

11

743
68
I

'1,920

I

2

17

5

75

40

1,033

49

197

356
171

2

602

30 000

77
3,203

728
73,411

3,456

73'l
(666,590)

1,597
913
935102

53,899 1,468,953
1,570

811
'I,026

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
122



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - ALL FUNDS-

MODIFIED CASH BASIS - CONTINUED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31,2017

ReEnues Expenses TransÞr

Fund

Balance
(Defcit)

January 'l

Assessmenls
and Other

Charges for

Services

$
51,828

(125,s53)

(33,317)
(6,821)

(1 3,3s8)

4,834,809 71,076

Capital Grants

and

Conlribution

143,939

68,283

44,961

1,095

2'l,652
11,443

40,260

23,888

950,015

Allocaled
lnleresl
Eamed Taxes

Fund

Allocated Allocated Balance
lnteresl Salary and ln (Deficit)

Charged Orærhead (Out) December 31

Brandt Channel Restorat¡on

Grand Marais - Restoration

Grand Marais Cut Channel Stabilization

Clearwaler Public Education (Riwr Watch)

Red Rir,er Basin Long Term Flood Control

Four Legged Lake PWT
BWSR Flood Storage Pilol Project

Glacial Ridge/LCCMR/400k

Glacial Ridge/LCCMFY168k

Thief Riler TMDL

Red Lake Rirær Watershed Assessment
Grând Marais WRAP
Clearwater Rirer WRAP
TRF Westside FDR

Total Capital Projects

Total All Funds

$ $ $ $ $

Direct

1,190 $
1,779

313

5,082

1,1 19,51 1

141,669

$ 1,198
(43,278]

314
'19,694

14,649

193

8ô4

919

6,948

21,'lÆ
7,O7',1

13,22'l

(1,1 13,620)
(146,316)

(330)

(1s3)

(3,050)

4,188,872

$I

1

95

239

4,436

1,241
'l

58

40
11

215
ô8

161

5

7,010

14,863

4,957
21,792

'192

806

879
8,032

7,793
3,833

35,906
1,514

346

635

68,283

44,9ô1

't,797

7,792
4,205

25,419
2,623,34255,944 1,468,953 14,258 554,185 (140)

g5,487,822 $ 235,043 $ 967,880 $ 65,441 $ 1,468,953 $ 3,594,896 $ 1E,167 $ - $ - $ 4,612,076

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
123

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF DIRECT EXPENDITURES BY CLASSIFICATION -

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS - MODIFIED CASH BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER31,2017

DIRECT E)(PENDIruRES
Salaries -

lnspection
Suney - Preliminary
Suney - Construction
Drafting
Engineering
Project Administration
Field Work - Water Programs

Other
Compensated Absences

Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Manageds Expense
Trarel, Mileage, Meetings and Per Diems

Audit
Legal
Appraisal and Viewers
Other Professional Fees

Ofüce Supplies
Ofüce Equipment
Dues and Subscriptions
lnsurance and Bonds
Repairs and Maintenance
Utilities
Telephone
Adrertising and Publications
Truck Expense
Land Acquisition and Easements
Construction
Engineering Costs and Fees

Engineering Fees
Engineering Equipment
Glacial Ridge

Total Expenditures $ 3,594,896

$ 8,16s
4,975

175
6,448

63,031
245,105

42,967
32,595
38,661

119,619
24,853

5,917
9,000

23,613
650

91,717
12,922
30,684

6,146
19,781
'10,699

8,9s6
9,128
7,303

12,635
1,111,552

419,322
5,393

1,079,203
30,437

113,244

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
124



RED LAKE WATERSHED DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF RECEIPTS AND DISBURSEMENTS AND CHANGES IN AMOUNTS

DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS -
TRUST AND AGENCY FUND - MODIFIED CASH BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2017

RECEIPTS

Propertv Taxes
Beltrami County
Clearwater County
Itasca County
Koochiching County
Mahnomen County
Marshall County
Pennington County
Polk County
Red Lake County
Roseau County
State - MV

TOTAL RECEIPTS

DISBURSEMENTS

Red Rirer Watershed Management Board

EXCESS OF RECEIPTS OVER (UNDER) DISBURSEMENTS

AMOUNT DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS, JANUARY 1

AMOUNT DUE TO OTHER GOVERNMENTAL UNITS, DECEMBER 31 $

$ 90,979
195,117

979
8,073
1,979

62,087
269,949
712,237
127,421

131

67,546

1,536,498

1,536,498

tammy.audette
Typewritten Text
125



 

 

Sound Water Management 



Red Lake Watershed District - Administrators Report  

    May 24, 2018 

 
 

Red River Watershed Management Board – Leroy, Terry and I attended the RRWMB meeting held at 

the Sandhill Watershed District office, at 9:30 am, May 15, 2018.  Most of the discussion for this topic 

has already been addressed. 

 

Impoundment update – Euclid East and Brandt Impoundment are completely drained.  Parnell is still 

in drawdown but close and we will start releasing water on Moose River late this week early next week.  

Grand Marais Outlet Restoration – I was scheduled to meet Brad Dokken, Outdoor Writer for Grand 

Forks Herald, out at the Grand Marais Outlet Restoration Project Tuesday but weather canceled that 

tour.  We reschedule the tour for Thursday, May 17th but had to cancel that date as well because of rain. 

On Monday May 21st Brad, Jeff Langan, Houston Summer Intern Erica Beito and I toured the entire 

Grand Marais Outlet Restoration.  The project looks very good and appears to be holding up rather well.  

I was told the article will be featured in mid to late June and will keep you posted. 

BWSR Clean Water Specialist – Tuesday, May 22nd, Corey and I met with various Clean Waters 

Specialist folks from the Board of Soil and Water Resource.  Discussion focused on how the grant 

process through BWSR is going, how the 1W1P process is going and ideas to make it better, and what 

the future holds for projects funded by the Clean Water Council? 

River of Dreams – I have included in your packet a newspaper article from the Grygla Eagle featuring 

Ashley and the Grygla 4th and 5th graders.  This was a part of the River of Dreams Educational event that 

Ashley participated in the week of May 14th. 

Legislative Update – I have included in your packet the legislative update from Lisa Frenette, Red 

Board lobbyist.   

North Dakota Water Education Foundation – I have included in your packet the brochure advertising 

the brochure featuring the 2018 Summer Water Tours.  If there is a tour that jumps out to you, let 

Tammy know and she will book it for you. 

 

Conservation Partnership Legacy Grant – We held a meeting at 2:00 pm, May 10th with Craig 

Mowery and Jordan Young, Agassiz Wildlife Refuge staff. This meeting was set up to discuss the 

logistics of the grant and roles of each partner.  It appears all contractual quotes will run through our 

office and Agassiz staff will inspect the construction of the various components of the grant.  I have 

included in your packet the work flow for the projects listed in the grant. 



Tammy Audette

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subiect:
Attachments:

Pancoast, Teri <teri-pancoast@fws.gov>

Monday, May 2L,2018 3:09 PM

Myron Jesme; Arlene Novak; Tammy Audette
Craig Mowry; James Graham

CPL Grant - Agassiz NWR - Scope of Work Revised - 5.2L.2078
Scope of Work (1).docx

Hello Everyone,
I am attaching a revision to the Scope of Work statement for the Thief Bay Water Control Structure Repair (Fall

2018) that was sent out May 17. The changes are located in the first paragraph, first sentence of this
statement......instead of "double-walled,42" x approximately 35' culverts...." it now reads "double-walled, 42" x

40'....."

ln addition - we wanted you to be aware that there will be a bill coming separately from Agassiz Drain Tile for the two
plastic adaptors that are mentioned at the end of the first paragraph of this same SOW statement.

Hoping this makes sense!!! Please let me know if you have any questions.

Thank you.

Teri Pancoast
Administrative Support
Agassiz National Wildlife Refuge
(2781 449-4115 Ext. 211

1



Wetland Habitat Quality and Management Enhancement
Scope of Work

Cattail Spravine (Aueust 2018)

Contractor shall furnish all equipment and manpower needed to accomplish this work. The applicator

must have a current Minnesota Pesticide Applicator License with an aquatic endorsement. The work will

involve mixing an imazapyr herbicide and aquatic surfactant to certain specifications (32o2/acre) and

applying the mixture aerially via helicopter. The sites to be treated include five management units at

Agassiz National Wildlife Refuge, about 1-0 miles from Middle River, MN.

The job will consist of 1,666 acres to be treated in August 2018. This timing will ensure the plants absorb

the systematic herbicide and successfully kill the roots and tubers.

All quotes are to be submitted on a "per acre" unite-price basis. Note that payment will be made only

for actual acres treated. Only approved acres shall be payable under this contract, and must reasonably

correlate with progress and accomplishment of the work ordered to be done.

Work will commence only after contractor receives notification to proceed. For project technical

information, or to arrange a site visit, please contact Wildlife Refuge Specialist, Jim Graham, at218-449-

4115, ext. 205.

Thief Bav Water Control Structure Repair (Fall 2018)

Project will consist of rehabbing a double tube water control structure - removing and disposing two

42"x36' corrugated metal culverts and replacing them with two plastic, double-walled,42"x 40' culverts

with flared end sections. Contractor will attach the new culverts to plastic adapters that mount the
plastic culvert to an existing cement box water control structure. Two plastic adapters will be provided.

Once old culverts are removed, contractor shall prepare bed using sand and compacting. Plastic

adapters will be attached to cement box structure using stainless steel anchor bolts and glue suitable to

bond plastic to cement. Bands must be installed to join 42" culvert sections and flared end sections.

Contractor must use caulk that will form a water proof seal between the new culvert adapter and the

cement structure on both the upstream and downstream side.

Contractor shall backfill and compact culvert with 70 yd3 of dirt and place 20 yd3 of MnDOT class lll,

100% fractured granite riprap around metal flared end section and in plunge pool. Finish grade shall be

smooth and match existing slopes.

The water control structure is located 7 miles northwest of the Agassiz Refuge headquarters on Thief

River Road, Mud Lake TWP., Marshall Co., MN. Twp. 157N, R.42W, Sec. 36.

Work will commence only after contractor receives notification to proceed. For project technical

information, or to arrange a site visit, please contact Wildlife Refuge Specialist, Jim Graham, aT2t8-449-

4l-15, ext. 205.



The Mouse River begins in
Saskatchewan, winds its way
into north-central North
Dakota, then turns north
and returns to Canada. ln
Canada, the river is known as
the Souris, the French word
for mouse; however, a 1961
North Dakota law states the
river, while in North Dakota, is to be called the Mouse River.This
tour will focus on sites around Minot and the surrounding region,
including the WaterTreatment Plant/HMGP Floodwall, Mouse River
Enhanced Flood Protection Project - Burlington Phase, Highway
83 Bypass, and the Mouse River Enhanced Flood Protection
Project Phases 1,2and 3 through Minot, which are currently under
construction.This half-day tour begins and ends in Minot.

@ fvf rnag¡ng the"Mighty" Mouse - June 13

ø

North Dakota Water Education Foundation

20lBEwWslßrTowt
Nesson Valley lrrigation Tour - July 12

lrrigation in North Dakota
is a significant asset to the
agricultural industry, and
many industries are thriving
because of irrigated agriculture.
On this tour, you will learn
about disease identifi cation,
soil moisture monitoring,
herbicides and the effects
on crop production, and look at extending growing seasons

through the use of high tunnels in North Dakota. This half-day
tour will begin and end at the Nesson Valley lrrigation facility.

The North Dakota Water Education Foundation 2018 water tours offer a firsthand look at

North Dakota's critical water issues. Water supply and quality, environmental restoration,
fish and wildlife, flood management, water conservation and more are all illustrated and
addressed by a wide variety of speakers representing different viewpoints during these one-
day tours. lndividual registration is $20 per person and includes tour transportation, meals,

refreshments, informational materials, and a one-year subscription to the North Dakota
Water magazine.

o Fargo-Moorhead Flood and Water
Management Tour - August 1

Major flooding in the Red
RiverValley has become
commonplace in the Fargo-
Moorhead area. Stops on

this tour will include levels
of protection around the
city, existing flood
control facilities,
Weather Mod lnc.

Devils Lake Solutions in Action -
June 20

This year's tour will
highlight water
management and flood
control projects within
the Devils Lake Basin.
The full-day tour will look
at inundated farmland
where a pioposed water
management project was
denied and farmland that was reclaimed because of a successful
water management project. The tour will also look at the East
End infrastructure (Tolna Coulee Control Structure and East End
State Outlet) that were designed, constructed, and operated
for the protection of both the Devils Lake Basin as well as
downstream interests. The tour will also visit one of the many
successful resorts on the shores of Devils Lake. The tour begins
and ends in Devils Lake.

@ fvf ittouri River Expedition - June27
Learn about the historic Missouri River and its relation
to Native American culture on this exciting tourl Stops
include the North Dakota Heritage Center, Chief Looking's
Village, the Lewis & Clark lnterpretive Center, and the
Knife River lndian Villages National Historic Site. A team
of interpretive guides from Nativeways Travel & Tours will
personally introduce you to their culture and lands. Each
tribal nation of the Great Plains is unique in its history
and traditìons, and yet they all share common values that include a deep respect for Mother
Earth. The tour begins and ends in Bismarck.

headquarters, and projects under construction on both
sides of the river.This tour begins and ends in Fargo.

Missouri River DevelopmentTour -
August 17Ø

@ Wrr"r and Oil Development Tour - July 'l 1

On this tour, you will
learn all about
Missouri River water
uses, starting at the
Blue Flint Ethanol
Plant and the Great
River Energy Coal
Creek Station,
moving on to the
Garrison Dam and Power Plant, and finishing the tour
at Harmon Lake. We will also stop by Cross Ranch State
Park, which will provide an opportunity to learn more
about the Missouri River system and the river's flora
and fauna. The tour will begin and end in Bismarck
and is limited to 50 people. All participants must wear
closed-toe shoes and bring their photo IDs.

This tour will help you discover the
ways water is used for oil development
in all of its stages. A presentation
of the oil pads, accompanied by a

knowledgeable speaker, will help
you learn and see the entire oil
development processes in real life.
This half-day tour will begin and end
in Williston and is limited to 50 people.

Minot

o

Ð
rcko Ø

Fargo-
Moorhead



Name:

Representing

Street Address:

City:

State/Province:

Phone:

Reg istration - taergone iL Welßomp!
Please indicate the number of people attending:
_ Managing the "Mighty" Mouse: June I 3 (half-day)

_ Devils Lake Solutions in Action: June 20

_ Missouri River Expedition: June 27

_Water and Oil Development Tour: July il (half-day)

_ Nesson Valley lrrigation Tour: July t 2 (half-day)

_ Fargo-Moorhead Flood and Water Management Tour: August l
_Missouri River DevelopmentTour: August l7

ZiplPostal Code:

E-mail

Special Needs

Tour registration fees are non-refundable and must be received
one week prior to the tours.

A confirmation letter outlining the schedule and departure place
will be sent to reg¡strants one week prior to each tour.

Total people x S2Olperson = Total S

To register online, go to www.ndwater.com.

Make check payable to NDWEF and mail to: pO Box2254
Bismarck, ND 58502

Or return this form andl payment to the address above.

For more information contact:
North Dakota Water Education Foundation
(701) 223-8332. (701) 223-4645 (fax)
jel I i ngson6ndwater.net

North Dakota Water
Education Foundation
PO Box2254
Bismarck, ND 58502

NON-PROFIT ORG

U.S. POSTAGE

PAID

BISMARCK, ND

PERMIT NO.433EGEIVE

By

MAY 1 O zOIE

tr\ó"

,,,tlil,ltllilt, l¡trltrll,¡rlrrillt,,l,1¡r¡,t¡rl¡,¡iltt,ilttlt ltl#ffiAUTO*ALL FOR AADC 580
RED LAKE WATERSHED DIST
1000 PenningtonAve
Thief River Falls MN 56701-4013 't5

11

For more information or to register for a woter tour, call the
North Dakota Water Education Foundation at (Z|t) 223-8332 today!

-.-.- .- .......', -:.- :,t- -'-i.', . : i -'--

r EducatÍon Foundation

20l8WaMT a



Today
Partly Cloudy
H81 L50

Wednesday, May 16, 2018

Thurs'
T-Storms
H62 L50

Fri
Rain

H55 L42

Sat
Partly Cloudy
H66 L42

Sun
Sunny

H72 L46

WE'RE ONLINE www.tricocanary.com

This week's eolored issue is sponsored bv the odrìdqe Munici

Grygla 4th and 5th graders are pictured with Ashley Hitt, Natural Resource Specialist at the Red Lake Watershed
District, and Kyle Glowa, GIS Mapping and Outreach Corps Member, (far back) who brought the 'River of Dreams'pro-
gram to the local classrooms. Phqtos by Gryglø Eøgle Newspøper

Grygla students launch
canoes down a river of dreams

Written by
Grygla Eagle Newspaper
Last Friday, May 1lth, was

an exciting day down at the
Mud River in Grygla. The 4th
and 5th grade classes have
been taking part in the "River
of Dreams" canoe launch pro-
gram. Representatives from
the International Water Insti-
tute, Conservations Corps ànd
Red Lake Watershed District
have been visiting the Grygla
classrooms to teach the kids
about our local watershed.

Ashley Hitt, Natural Re-
source Specialist at the Red
Lake Watershed District, and

Kyle Glowa, GIS Mapping
and Outreach Corps Member,
have been teaching the young
students watershed functions
and terminology, and the ge-
ography of local watersheds
and how they fit into a larger
drainage area.

The River of Dreams pro-
gram explores the' connectivity
of our planet's water supply
and include.s connections to
reading, writing, social stud-
ies, science, math and art.

Interactive classroom activ-
ities invoìved the Grygla 4th
and 5th graders designing and
decorating a 14" cedar canoe

that was assigned a'tracking
number so each canoe can be
tracked and viewed online (at
riverofdreams.org). Students
were asked to imaginä their
canoe's journey down the local
rivers and then write a story to
describe the adventure. Photos
of each canoe, the individual
stories and tracking status can
all be found on the website for
students to view.

After learning about the
local river systems, students
had high hopes as they set out
to send their canoes down the
Mud River last Friday morn-
ing; some even thought theirs
would reach Canada by the
weekend! For your informá-
tion and enjoyment, let's give
you the same path the kids
were given: the Mud River
begins at the Moose River Im-
poundment. It is a 21-mile long
stream that flows westwards
to the Agassiz National Wild-
life Refuge. It is part of the
Thief River watershed, which

drains via the Red Lake River,
the Red River of the North,
Lake Winnipeg, and the Nel-
son River to Hudson Bay!

Students imagined their ca-
noes making it all the way to
the Hudson Bay and floating
past Polar Bears and Beluga
Whales!

If someone happens to find
the canoe, the instructions to
log its whereabouts are glued
in with the use of epoxy resin.
Once they go to the website for
that canoe, they can view all
of the information, along with
special messâges from the stu-
dents. One student asked, "If
you frnd me and I need fixing,
please repair me before put-
ting me back in the water."
Another suggested if found
close to the winter season to
bring it home until spring and
then relaunch!

What a great learning ac-
tivity for these young minds!

't'ìiht{lIt1'{'r*èJt'"'* 
l t 

'
. , , 

" 
l:l ì ';-' 

''i'''t't *'u' i:\\\ìr' r\ "1- " ' ""

! .r j,,' , ! ì.

4ffiñþ.*'rürì{ri\t.,r"r-{Ì't

'!rft.mlþ{l$N!

t¡\i5 |
iìl¡,.Ì'!'{1ìlri \ri

Eir er r'tf Dr 'l;ìr ''ì^'
..\," ",".: r"ì'



Myron Jesme

From:
Sent:
To:
Cc:

Subject:

Lisa Frenette <frenettela@gmail.com>

Tuesday, May 22,2018 1:29 PM

Rob Sip; Nikki Swenson

Kevin Ruud; Myron Jesme;Joel Praska;Jamie Beyer, BDSWD; Tracy Halstengard

Mini End of Session Recap

(RRWMB Board bcc'd)

Good afternoon -

The legislature wrapped up it biannual legislative session on Sunday with five minutes to spare. That's about 5 minutes better

than previous years. They sent an almost 1,000 page supplemental bill, a tax bill, a bonding bill, and a pensions bill to the

Governor for his signature. He has stated thleat he will not sign the supplemental budget bill or the tax bill and has give no

indication that he will sign the bonding bill. ln previous years, even though there has been bipartisan support, he has vetoed the

pensions bill. Yesterday, he vetoed the Ag Policy bill.

The bonding b¡ll at S85O million provided 520 million in FDR funding. With that said, it was loaded up with another 5800 million

plus of environmental trust fund money giving me pause to think he may, emphasis on may, veto the bill. The Commissioner of

the Office of Minnesota Management and Budget testified on Sunday afternoon that the bill did not pass the Governor's smell

test. Time willtell.

The supplemental budget bill has some important watershed district legislation, including but not limited to Coordinated

Watersheds and Drainage Workgroup legislation. The supplemental budget bill is loaded with provisions the Governor likes but

has several provisions that he either doesn't like or has already vetoed. One of those provisions was on wild rice standards. He

vetoed a stand alone bill so the legislature added language into the supplemental budget bill. The hope is that he will sign the

bill even though he doesn't like provisions in it.

The tax bill was a disappointment for the watershed districts this year. MAWD sponsored and the RRWMB provided assistance

for watershed districts to have the ability to leverage funds from the various Clean Water funds. The language was inserted into

the final Senate position but was removed when the overall House and Senate bill was amended into one bill.

The ag policy bill contained to provisions that the RRWMB was closely lobbying for. First, was the soil loss provision. A few

years ago, BWSR had language inserted into the final environment bill that would allow BWSR to have APO authority for soil loss

and erosion. This year's language would have limited what BWSR was able to do. Second, was a very important piece that the

DWG had agreed to allowing drainage authorities to borrow money from the AG BMP program to repair and maintain

ditches. The bill was vetoed.

As stated in the subject line, this is a mini recap. When we know what the Governor has decided there will be a broader

legislative wrap up.

Have a nice day!

Lisa Frenette
Frenette Legislative Advisors
frenettela@gmail.com
www.frenettelegislativeadvisors. com
651-785-5202

Lisa

1


	Agenda
	May 10, 2018 Minutes
	Financial Report 5-23-18
	Sheet1

	Investment Summary 5-23-18
	May 23

	RRWMB May 2018 Meeting Highlights
	RRWMB-Public Information Update May 2018
	RRWMB-Dan Wilkens Resignation
	RLWD Permit Violation 18-028
	Petition-RLWD Ditch 7, Proj. 20
	Permits
	Aluminum Trailer Quotes
	2017 Annual Report Final
	Adminstrators Report
	Admin Report - Agassiz NWR
	Admin. Report 2018 ND Water Tours
	Admin Report River Of Dreams_Grygla Eagle_2018
	Admin RRWMB Legislative Update

